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In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, or Annual Report, the “Company,” “HTGC,” “we,” “us” and “ourfee to Hercules Technology
Growth Capital, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries and its affiliated securitizatiists unless the context otherwise requires.

PART |
Item 1. Business
GENERAL

We are a specialty finance company that provides debt and equity growth caeithinology-related companies at all stages of
development from seed and emerging growth to expansion and established stages of de/eldpch include select publicly listed
companies and lower middle market companies. We primarily finance privatdigdmapanies backed by leading venture capital and private
equity firms and also may finance certain select publicly-traded companiéschaccess to public capital or are sensitive to equity ownership
dilution. We source our investments through our principal office located in Silickey\Vas well as our additional offices in Boston, Boulder,
and Chicago.

Our goal is to be the leading structured debt financing provider of choice for venture aagipeivate equity-backed technology-related
companies requiring sophisticated and customized financing solutions. Our stedtegyaluate and invest in a broad range of companies
active in the technology and life-science industries and to offer a full sugr@wth capital products up and down the capital structure. We
invest primarily in structured debt with warrants and, to a lesser extent, ém debi and equity investments. We use the term “structured debt
with warrants” to refer to any debt investment, such as a senior or subordinated $ean, that is coupled with an equity component,
including warrants, options or rights to purchase common or preferred stock. Owrstiutebt with warrants investments will typically be
secured by select or all of the assets of the portfolio company.

We focus our investments in companies active in the technology industry sub-deatacdarized by products or services that require
advanced technologies, including, but not limited to, computer software and hardwarekingtaystems, semiconductors, semiconductor
capital equipment, information technology infrastructure or services, Ihsnsumer and business services, telecommunications,
telecommunications equipment, renewable or alternative energy, media auitlifees. Within the life sciences ssdtor, we generally foc
on medical devices, bio-pharmaceutical, drug discovery, drug delivery, health véressand information systems companies. We refer to all
of these companies as “technology-related” companies and intend, under noramas@rees, to invest at least 80% of the value of our assets
in such businesses.

Our primary business objectives are to increase our net income, net operatingancone¢ asset value by investing in structured debt
with warrants and equity of venture capital and private equity backed technolatgdredmpanies with attractive current yields and the
potential for equity appreciation and realized gains. Our structured debt inmestypécally include warrants or other equity interests, giving
us the potential to realize equity-like returns on a portion of our investments. In ssesewa receive the right to make additional equity
investments in our portfolio companies in connection with future equity financing rdDaggal that we provide directly to venture capital
private equity backed technology-related companies is generally used for growtmaral werking capital purposes as well as in select cases
for acquisitions or recapitalizations.

Our portfolio is comprised of, and we anticipate that our portfolio will continue tomerised of, investments in technology-related
companies at various stages of development. Consistent with regulatory requsremeentest primarily in United States based companie
to a lesser extent in foreign companies. Since 2007, our investing emphasis has beiy gniprédwate companies in later rounds of
financing, which we refer to as expansion-stage companies and private conmpanie®f their final rounds of equity financing
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prior to a liquidity event, select publicly-traded companies that lack access to gaytitial or are sensitive to equity ownership dilution and
lower middle market companies, which we refer to as established-stagentesnjrathe near term, we are shifting our focus to expansion and
established stage companies because we believe these investmenty quoedt higher account yields. We have also historically performed
investment activities in private companies following or in connection with filngti institutional round of equity financing, which we refer tc
emerging growth companies. During 2008, we made a strategic decision to greatyaedinvestments in emerging-growth companies.

CURRENT ECONOMIC AND MARKET ENVIRONMENT

The U.S. capital and credit markets have been experiencing extreme volatilitgrampdich for more than 12 months as evidenced by a
lack of liquidity in the debt capital markets, significant write-offs in tharicial services sector, the repricing of credit risk in the broadly
syndicated credit market and the failure of many major financial institutionse ®vents have contributed to worsening general economic
conditions that are materially and adversely impacting the broader financiakalitchearkets and reducing the availability of credit and equity
capital for the markets as a whole and financial services firms in partioutluding us.

At the same time, the venture capital market for the technology-related comipawigich we invest has continued to be active, but is
beginning to show signs of stress and contraction. Therefore, to the extent we haleaidble, we believe this is an opportune time to
invest on a limited basis in the structured lending market for technology-relatpaies Early in 2008, we announced our “slow and steady”
investment strategy and the shift in our investment focus to established-stagesraniddle market, companies. These changes were made to
manage our credit performance, maintain adequate liquidity and manage our gpeqa¢inses in this extremely challenging and
unprecedented credit environment. We have also added a Senior Credit Offidgerfadused on both the life science and technology portfolio
to further assist in mitigating credit loss in our portfolio.

Like many other companies, we have begun engaging in activities to deleverage our Ihelenaadsstrengthen cash resources available
to us. Our credit facility with Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp. and Deutsahk Becurities Inc. (the “Credit Facility”) expired under
normal terms on October 31, 2008 and entered a period of amortization. All outstanding lmmtipéerest due under the Credit Facility r
be repaid by April 30, 2009. As discussed herein, to strengthen our liquidity position and praskere Eebruary 2009, our Board of
Directors declared that 90%, or approximately $9.5 million, of our first quarter 2@i@d@miil would be paid with newly issued shares of
common stock and no more than 10%, or approximately $1.1 million, would be paid in cash.

The market value per share of common stock used to compute the stock dividend will be tleeweilyimed average price per share of
HTGC’s common stock for the three business day period of March 23, March 24 and March 25g2808eBhe value of shares to be
distributed will be determined subsequent to the filing of our Annual Report on Fokmwi®do not know the actual number of shares we
issue to satisfy the dividend. Accordingly, we have not reflected these changes in @mlistrapture retroactively in these financial statem

We experienced an approximate $18.6 million reduction in our net worth during the second half ofi2@0By pesulting from net
unrealized depreciation on our portfolio, which reflects market conditions. Wesaimea credit facility with Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC (the
“Wells Facility”) that requires, among other covenants, that we maintain a alitangible net worth of $360 million. As of December 31,
2008, we had a net worth of approximately $382 million. We are actively monitoring this andosthearnts to minimize disruptions in our
business as a result of current market conditions. At December 31, 2008, we were iarc@mnpith all of the covenants.
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In February 2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 included a provigiasimcthe current limit of guaranteed
debentures available from the Small Business Administration (“SBA”) to $150i6mfiiom the previous limit of $137.1 million, subject to
periodic adjustments by the SBA. The limit may be increased to $225.0 million withpheval of a second lender license and the additional
investment of $37.5 million of regulatory capital. We intend to submit an applicatiorsémoad lender license, although there is no assurance
that such license will be granted. In addition, there is no assurance that we wik be @ialw up to the maximum limit available under the
program.

CORPORATE HISTORY AND OFFICES

We are a Maryland Corporation formed in December 2003 that began investment oper&eptember 2004. We are an internally
managed, non-diversified, closed-end investment company that has elected atelleaisea business development company under the
Investment Company Act of 1940 Act. As a business development company, we are requeetvarious regulatory tests. A business
development company is required to invest at least 70% of its total assets ifyliggalésets,” including securities of private and thinly traded
public U.S. companies, cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities and high-quatiestetents that mature in one year or less. A
business development company also must meet a coverage ratio of totalted¢baesa senior securities, which include all of our borrowings
(including accrued interest payable) except for debentures issued by the SmkBuésiministration, and any preferred stock we may issue
in the future, of at least 200% subsequent to each borrowing or issuance of senidgese8ast‘ltem 1. Business—Regulation as a Business
Development Company”.

From incorporation through December 31, 2005, we were taxed as a corporation under Subafapteim@ernal Revenue Code of
1986 or as amended (the “Code”). We have elected to be treated for federal income taes@mspoegulated investment company, or “RIC,”
under the Code. In order to continue to qualify as a RIC for federal income tax purposesstweeet certain requirements, including certain
minimum distribution requirements. See “ltem 1. Business—Certain UniiggeisS-ederal Income Tax Considerations.”

Our principal executive offices are located at 400 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 310, Ral€alifornia 94301 and our telephone number is
(650) 289-3060. We also have additional offices in Boston, Boulder and Chicago. We maintbgite evethe Internet at
www.herculestech.com. Information contained in our website is not incorporatecsnc into this Annual Report, and you should not
consider that information as part of this Annual Report. Our annual reports on Forpga@rterly reports on Form 10-Q and our current
reports on Form 8-K, as well as any amendments to those reports, are ava@bfecfrarge through our website as soon as reasonably
practicable after we file them with the Securities and Exchange Ceiomi8SEC”). These reports are also available on the SEC’s website at
WWW.SEC.gov.

OUR MARKET OPPORTUNITY

We believe that technology-related companies compete in one of the largest anapidfsgrowing sectors of the U.S. economy and
that continued growth is supported by ongoing innovation and performance improvements in techodiogig pis well as the adoption of
technology across virtually all industries in response to competitive preséledselieve that an attractive market opportunity exists for a
specialty finance company focused primarily on investments in structured debt witht&an technology-related companies for the following
reasons:

« Technolog-related companies have generally been underserved by traditional lending ¢

« Unfulfilled demand exists for structured debt financing to technology-related oieses the number of lenders has declined due
to the recent financial market turmc
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e Structured debt with warrants products are less dilutive and complemetytfetaricing from venture capital and private equity
funds; anc

¢ Valuations currently assigned to technology-related companies in privateifigaoends have decreased during 2008 as a result of
the turmoil in the general market and should provide a good opportunity for attractia epins

Technology-Related Companies are Underserved by Traditional Lend¥esbelieve many viable technologstated companies back
by financial sponsors have been unable to obtain sufficient growth financing frorotr@dignders, including financial services companies
such as commercial banks and finance companies, particularly due to the redemarket dislocation and because traditional lenders have
continued to consolidate and have adopted a more risk-averse approach to lending. Maaetijnpeetbelieve traditional lenders are
typically unable to underwrite the risk associated with financial sponsor-baclediergigrowth or expansion-stage companies effectively.

The unique cash flow characteristics of many technology-related companies inghifieasit research and development expenditures
and high projected revenue growth thus often making such companies difficult to efraluegecredit perspective. In addition, the balance
sheets of emerging-growth and expansitage companies often include a disproportionately large amount of intellecipattprassets, whic
can be difficult to value. Finally, the speed of innovation in technology and rapid shifts in esrdemeand and market share add to the
difficulty in evaluating technology-related companies.

Due to the difficulties described above, we believe traditional lenders aralfenefraining from entering the structured mezzanine
marketplace for emerging-growth and expansion-stage companies, insteathgréferrisk-reward profile of asset based lending. Traditional
lenders generally do not have flexible product offerings that meet the needs ofdgghetdted companies. The financing products offere
traditional lenders typically impose on borrowers many restrictive coveaadtsonditions, including limiting cash outflows and requiring a
significant depository relationship to facilitate rapid liquidation.

Unfulfiled Demand for Structured Debt Financing to Technology-Relatedi@panies Private debt capital in the form of structured
debt financing from specialty finance companies continues to be an important sowrudireg for technology-related companies. We believe
that the level of demand for structured debt financing to emerging-growth and expsitagje companies is a function of the level of annual
venture equity investment activity. In 2008, venture cajbigadked companies received, in approximately 2,550 transactions, equity finat
an aggregate amount of approximately $28.8 billion, representing a 8% decrease fraroatimgryear, as reported by Dow Jones
VentureSource. In addition, overall, the median round size in 2008 was $7.0 million, down framil§ddin 2007. These decreases were
primarily a result of overall economic decline. Overall, seed- and first-rouaid aede up 20% of the deal flow in 2008, and later-stage deals
made up roughly 52% of all capital invested.

Given the increasingly challenging times and the high volatility we witnessawydhe fourth quarter, we anticipate that the current
macro-economic conditions will likely continue to adversely affect ventureatdpitdraising activities. We expect a slower rate of new
venture capital investments or deployments, which may, accordingly, cause the demtumarket to contract. Even with this anticipated
contraction, we estimate venture capital investments for 2009 will approx®2@.i@ billion to $22.0 billion. Our addressable market repre
20% to 40% of the annual venture capital deployments, or $4.0 billion to $8.0 billion in 2009.

We believe that demand for structured debt financing is currently under served,iaqaarse of the credit market collapse in 2008 and
the resulting exit of debt capital providers to technology-related companies duringr2@@8ition, lending requirements of traditional lenders
have recently become more stringent due to the significant write-offs in theidinsenwices sector relating to subprime mortgages, the re-
pricing of credit risk in the broadly syndicated market, and the current financiit@ffecting the banking system and financial
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market, which have negatively impacted the debt and equity capital market in td Btaites and most other markets. At the same time, the
venture capital market for the technology-related companies in which we insegirftmued to be active. Therefore, to the extent we have
capital available, we believe this is an opportune time to be active in the gdiemnding market for technology-related companies.

Structured Debt with Warrants Products Complement Equity Financingpf Venture Capital and Private Equity Fund&Ve believe
that technology-related companies and their financial sponsors will continiewtstvuctured debt securities as an attractive source of capital
because it augments the capital provided by venture capital and private equity fertuidiede that our structured debt with warrants product
provides access to growth capital that otherwise may only be available through imtetéemestments by existing equity investors. As such,
we provide portfolio companies and their financial sponsors with an opportunity to diveesifgdpital sources. Generally, we believe
emerging-growth and expansion-stage companies target a portion of theirtodpéalebt in an attempt to achieve a higher valuation through
internal growth. In addition, because financial sponsor-backed companies have reachedrature stage prior to reaching a liquidity event,
we believe our investments could provide the debt capital needed to grow or receghitétigehe extended period prior to liquidity events.

Higher Valuations for Private Technology-Related Compani@&ring the downturn in technology industries that began in 2000, the
markets saw sharp and broad declines in valuations of venture capital and puitstbacked technology-related companies. According to
Dow Jones VentureSource, the median pre-money valuation for venture capital-backediesrim 2000 was $25.0 million declining to a low
of $10.0 million in 2003. As of December 31, 2008, the median pre-money valuation for ventulebeaiizd companies was $23.1 million
compared to $17.4 million as of December 31, 2007. We believe the valuations currentlydassigméure capital and private equity-backed
technology-related companies in private financing rounds are reasonably valued ad@itmuls to continue to build a portfolio of equity-
related securities at attractive valuation levels.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY

Our strategy to achieve our investment objective includes the following key étemen

Leverage the Experience and Industry Relationships of Our ManagememinTand Investment Professionalg/e have assembled a
team of experienced investment professionals with extensive experience as vepitalists, commercial lenders, and originators of struc
debt and equity investments in technology-related companies. Our investment pnalsdsive, on average, more than 15 years of experience
as equity investors in, and/or lenders to, technology-related companies. In additioapronreémbers have originated structured debt with
warrants investments in over 200 technologlated companies, representing over $2.5 billion in investments, and have developextiaaf
industry contacts with investors and other participants within the venture cayitpfigate equity communities. In addition, members of our
management team also have operational, research and development and finance ewitbriecbaology-related companies. We have
established contacts with leading venture capital and private equity fund sppudicsand private companies, research institutions and other
industry participants, which should enable us to identify and attract well-poditwaspective portfolio companies.

We concentrate our investing activities generally in industries in which owstineat professionals have investment experience. We
believe that our focus on financing technolaglated companies will enable us to leverage our expertise in structuringgtingspe/estment:
to assess the value of both tangible and intangible assets, to evaluate the buspestsmnd operating characteristics of technology-related
companies and to identify and originate potentially attractive investmemitsheie types of companies.

5
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Mitigate Risk of Principal Loss and Build a Portfolio of Equity-Related Secig# We expect that our investments have the potential to
produce attractive risk adjusted returns through current income, in the form oftistedefee income, as well as capital appreciation from
equity-related securities. We believe that we can mitigate the risksobfosur debt investments through the combination of loan principal
amortization, cash interest payments, relatively short maturities, tyeioterests in the assets of our portfolio companies, and on select
investment covenants requiring prospective portfolio companies to have certain amawaitabfe cash at the time of our investment and the
continued support from a venture capital or private equity firm at the time we makeestment.

Historically our structured debt investments to technology-related compamies|lyyinclude warrants or other equity interests, giving
us the potential to realize equity-like returns on a portion of our investment. In additiomercases, we receive the right to make additional
equity investments in our portfolio companies in connection with future equity financinds.oe believe these equity interests will create
the potential for meaningful long-term capital gains in connection with the fiquidity events of these technology-related companies.

Provide Customized Financing Complementary to Financial Sponsors’ Capité. offer a broad range of investment structures and
possess expertise and experience to effectively structure and price invesintechnology-related companies. Unlike many of our
competitors that only invest in companies that fit a specific set of invesprasmeters, we have the flexibility to structure our investments to
suit the particular needs of our portfolio companies. We offer customized finaswdinigons ranging from senior debt to equity capital, with a
focus on structured debt with warrants.

We use our relationships in the financial sponsor community to originate investmeritojtigs: Because venture capital and private
equity funds typically invest solely in the equity securities of their portfolio caiepawe believe that our debt investments will be viewed as
an attractive and complimentary source of capital, both by the portfolio company and bytfiblgompany’s financial sponsor. In addition,
we believe that many venture capital and private equity fund sponsors encourage tiodiv pompanies to use debt financing for a portion of
their capital needs as a means of potentially enhancing equity returns, miningizitygddution and increasing valuations prior to a subsec
equity financing round or a liquidity event.

Invest at Various Stages of DevelopmeWe provide growth capital to technology-related companies at all stages of deseipfrom
emerging-growth companies, to expansion-stage companies and establishedrsfmyeas. We believe that this provides us with a broader
range of potential investment opportunities than those available to many of ouritarsipgho generally focus their investments on a
particular stage in a company’s development. Because of the flexible structurérofestments and the extensive experience of our
investment professionals, we believe we are well positioned to take aglvafithese investment opportunities at all stages of prospective
portfolio companies’ development.

Benefit from Our Efficient Organizational StructureWe believe that the perpetual nature of our corporate structure enables us to be a
long-term partner for our portfolio companies in contrast to traditional merzand investment funds, which typically have a limited life. In
addition, because of our access to the equity markets, we believe that we mayrbemaflower cost of capital than that available to private
investment funds. We are not subject to requirements to return invested capitaistors nor do we have a finite investment horizon. Capital
providers that are subject to such limitations are often required to segldityi event more quickly than they otherwise might, which can
result in a lower overall return on an investment.

Deal Sourcing Through Our Proprietary Databas®/e have developed a proprietary and comprehensive structured query language-
based (SQL) database system to track various aspects of our investment pragdisg is@urcing, originations, transaction monitoring and

post-investment performance. As of December 31, 2008, our proprietary SQL-basedetsytatems included over 17,500 technology-related
companies and over 4,500 venture capital, private equity sponsors/investors, as wigluaotier industry contacts. This
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proprietary SQL system allows us to maintain, cultivate and grow our industrpmstgips while providing us with comprehensive details on
companies in the technology-related industries and their financial sponsors.

OUR INVESTMENTS AND OPERATIONS

We principally invest in debt securities and, to a lesser extent, equity ss;writih a particular emphasis on structured debt with
warrants.

We generally seek to invest in companies that have been operating for at leassixaoths prior to the date of our investment. We
anticipate that such entities may, at the time of investment, be generatinges or will have a business plan that anticipates generation of
revenues within 24 to 48 months. Further, we anticipate that on the date of our investmdhgereevélly obtain a lien on available assets,
which may or may not include intellectual property, and these companies will h&igesti€ash on their balance sheet to operate as well as
potentially amortize their debt for at least three to nine months following outiimeets We generally require that a prospective portfolio
company, in addition to having sufficient capital to support leverage, demonstrate aimggaen capable of generating cash flows or raising
the additional capital necessary to cover its operating expenses and semgt®,ifor an additional six to twelve months subject to market
conditions.

We expect that our investments will generally range from $1.0 million to $25.0 milliertypitally structure our debt securities to
provide for amortization of principal over the life of the loan, but may include ar#ttenly period of 3 to 18 months for emerging growth
and expansion-stage companies and longer for established-stage companies. Quilt lmmosllateralized by a security interest in the
borrower’s assets, although we may not have the first claim on these assetsamsétthemay not include intellectual property. Our debt
investments carry fixed or variable contractual interest rates whichagigrmanged from Prime to 17% as of December 31, 2008. As of
December 31, 2008, 62% of our loans were at variable rates or variable rates eothaadl 38% of the loans were at fixed rates. In additi
the cash yields received on our loans, in some instances, certain loans may also myotdidieeafollowing: end of term payments, exit fees,
balloon payment fees, success fees, payment-in-kind (“PIK”) provisions or prepagegnivhich we may be required to include in income
prior to receipt. We also generate revenue in the form of commitment and faeitity fe

In addition, the majority of our venture capitscked companies structured debt investments generally have equity enhancemen
typically in the form of warrants or other equity-related securitiegdesdito provide us with an opportunity for potential capital appreciation.
The warrants typically will be immediately exercisable upon issuance andatheméll remain exercisable for the lesser of five to seven years
or one to three years after completion of an initial public offering. The ergudices for the warrants varies from nominal exercise prices to
exercise prices that are at or above the current fair market value of the eguihidh we receive warrants. We may structure warrants to
provide minority rights provisions or on a very select basis put rights upon the occurfreataia events. We generally target a total
annualized return (including interest, fees and value of warrants) of 12% to 25% étmboimvestments.

Typically, our structured debt and equity investments take one of the following forms:

e Structured debt with warran We seek to invest a majority of our assets in structured debt with warrants ofcixespertfolio
companies. Traditional “mezzanine” debt is a layer of fdghpon financing between debt and equity that most commonly tak
form of subordinated debt coupled with warrants, combining the cash flow and risk ehistiastof both senior debt and equity.
However, our investments in structured debt with warrants may be the only debt@apitalbalance sheet of our portfolio
companies, and in many cases we have a first priority security interest imatl pdrtfolio company’s assets, or in certain
investments we may have a negative pledge on intellectual property. Our struightevith warrants typically have maturities of
between two and seven yee
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with full amortization after an interest only period for emerging-growth orresipa-stage companies and longer deferred
amortization for select established-stage companies. Our structureslihelverrants generally carry a contractual interest rate
between Prime and 17% and may include an additional end-of-term payment or PIKr{“Rimid"), and are in an amount between
$3.0 million and $25.0 million. In most cases we collateralize our investments byindptsecurity interests in our portfolio
companies’ assets, which may include their intellectual property. In otherwaseay prohibit a company from pledging or
otherwise encumbering their intellectual property. We may structure aatwsed debt with warrants with restrictive affirmative
and negative covenants, default penalties, prepayment penalties, lien protecttgreadiguchange-in-control provisions or board
observation rights

« Senior Deb We seek to invest a limited portion of our assets in senior debt. Senior debt nodiptkeatized by accounts
receivable and/or inventory financing of prospective portfolio companies. Senior delsdrasrgosition with respect to a
borrower’s scheduled interest and principal payments and holds a first priotitityseterest in the assets pledged as collateral.
Senior debt also may impose covenants on a borrower with regard to cash flows and chami@s stracture, among other iter
We generally collateralize our investments by obtaining security interests pofalio companies’ assets, which may include
their intellectual property. In other cases we may obtain a negative pledge covesmgany’s intellectual property. Our senior
loans, in certain instances, may be tied to the financing of specific assets. Intioonweh a senior debt investment, we may also
provide the borrower with a working capital line-of-credit that will carryrderest rate ranging from Prime to 12%, generally
maturing in one to three years, and will be secured by accounts receivable and/orynieiconnection with a senior debt
investment, we may also provide the borrower with a working capital line-oitatgfixed rates or variable rates based on Prime or
LIBOR plus a spread, generally maturing in one or two years, and will be securetbbgtaaeceivable and/or invento

« Equipment Loan We intend to invest a limited portion of our assets in equipment-based loanly{&tage prospective portfolio
companies. Equipment-based loans are secured by a first priority securitgtimenaly the specific assets financed. These loans
are generally for amounts up to $3.0 million, carry a contractual interest ratebdime and Prime plus 10%, and have an
average term between three and four years. Equipment loans may also include engayteents

* Equity-Related Securitie The equity-related securities we hold consist primarily of warrants or etjuéty interests generally
obtained in connection with our structured debt investments. In addition to the wae@gived as a part of a structured debt
financing, we typically receive the right to make equity investments in a portfotipany in connection with that company’s next
round of equity financing. We may also on certain debt investments have the right to aqueian of the debt investment into
equity. These rights will provide us with the opportunity to further enhance our returngrénrough opportunistic equity
investments in our portfolio companies. These equity-related investmenypiaedy in the form of preferred or common equity
and may be structured with a dividend yield, providing us with a current return, and with ayséorti-dilution protection and
preemptive rights. In the future, we may achieve liquidity through a merger or ioguiia portfolio company, a public offering
of a portfolio company’s stock or by exercising our right, if any, to require a portfolipaoyrto buy back the equity-related
securities we hold. We may also make stand alone direct equity investments irgliopasthpanies in which we may not have any
debt investment in the company. As of December 31, 2008, we held equity interests in 39 portipanies
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A comparison of the typical features of our various investment alternatisesfisrth in the chart below.

Structured debt with

Senior Deb warrants Equipment Loans Equity Securities
Typical Structure [Term or revolving| Term debt with Term debt with Preferred stock or
debt warrants warrants common stock
Investment Usually under 3 |Long term, ranging Ranging from 3 to [/Ranging from 3 to 7 years
Horizon years from 2 to 7 years, years
with an average of
3 years
Ranking/Security |Senior/First lien |Senior secured, either first out or last out secondSiecured only by [None/unsecure
underlying
equipment
Covenants Generally Less restrictive; None None
borrowing base |Mostly financial;
and financial Maintenance-based
Risk Tolerance |Low Medium/High High High
Coupon/Dividend |Cash pay—floatingCash pay—fixed Cash pay-floating | Generally none
or fixed rate and floating rate; or fixed rate and
Payment-in-kind in may include
limited cases Payment-in-kind
Customization or |Little to none More flexible Little to none Flexible
Flexibility
Equity Dilution None to lov Low to medium Low High

Investment Criteria

We have identified several criteria, among others, that we believe argamigarachieving our investment objective with respect to
prospective portfolio companies. These criteria, while not inclusive, provideadigidelines for our investment decisions.

Portfolio Composition.While we generally focus our investments in venture capital and private equigdiachnology-related
companies, we seek to diversify across various financial sponsors as wedisssvatious stages of companies’ development and various
technology industry sub-sectors and geographies. During 2008, we began increasing ournts/gstaveer middle market companies that
may be or are approaching an operational level where they are EBITDA positive aitlypresh flow positive thereby decreasing their
reliance on additional venture capital or private equity investments.

Continuing Support from One or More Financial Sponsorg/e generally invest in companies in which one or more established
financial sponsors have previously invested and continue to make a contribution to the neahaféme business. We believe that having
established financial sponsors with meaningful commitments to the busimessyicharacteristic of a prospective portfolio company. In
addition, we look for representatives of one or more financial sponsors to maintainrsét@e Board of Directors of a prospective portfolio
company as an indication of such commitment.

Company Stage of Developmefft/hile we invest in companies at various stages of development, we generallg teguprospective

portfolio companies be beyond the seed stage of development and generally have receiigpate éamhave commitments for their first
institutional round of equity financing for early
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stage companies. During 2008, we began shifting our focus to expansion and establighedrspanies that have revenues or significant
anticipated revenue growth. We expect a prospective portfolio company to demonstyegein its product development or demonstrate a
path towards revenue generation or increase its revenues and operating cash ftomeo\ére anticipated growth rate of a prospective
portfolio company is a key factor in determining the value that we ascribe to any warratiter equity securities that we may acquire in
connection with an investment in debt securities.

Operating Plan.We generally require that a prospective portfolio company, in addition to having potecéiss & capital to support
leverage, demonstrate an operating plan capable of generating cash flows or thio gduiténtially raise the additional capital necessary to
cover its operating expenses and service its debt for a specific periodicafigcifie require that a prospective portfolio company demonstrate
at the time of our proposed investment that it has cash on its balance sheattloe [grocess of completing a financing so that it will have
on its balance sheet, sufficient to support its operations for a minimum of three tmamths.

Security Interestln many instances we seek a first priority security interest in all of thiellmcompany’s tangible and intangible
assets as collateral for our debt investment, subject in some cases ttedezruieptions. In other cases we may obtain a negative pledge
prohibiting a company from pledging or otherwise encumbering their intellectualryrofithough we do not intend to operate as an asset-
based lender, the estimated liquidation value of the assets, if any, coltaigrle debt securities that we hold is an important factor in our
credit analysis and subject to assumptions that may change over the lifenvketenent especially when attempting to estimate the value of
intellectual property. We generally evaluate both tangible assets, such as siceceivable, inventory and equipment, and intangible assets,
such as intellectual property, customer lists, networks and databases.

CovenantsOur investments may include one or more of the following covenants; cross-defawdtedahadverse change provisions,
require the portfolio company to provide periodic financial reports and operatingsreatd will typically limit the portfolio company’s ability
to incur additional debt, sell assets, dividend recapture, engage in transactioafiieites and consummate an extraordinary transaction,
as a merger or recapitalization without our consent. In addition, we may requirpetioemance or financial based covenants, as we deem
appropriate.

Exit Strategy.Prior to making a debt investment that is accompanied by an equity-related secatypspective portfolio company, we
analyze the potential for that company to increase the liquidity of its equity througheaduéunt that would enable us to realize appreciati
the value of our equity interest. Liquidity events may include an initial publicidfea private sale of our equity interest to a third party, a
merger or an acquisition of the company or a purchase of our equity position by the company or ctecghitiders.

Investment Process
We have organized our management team around the four key elements of our investasst pro
¢ Origination;
« Underwriting;
« Documentation; an
¢ Loan and Compliance Administratic
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Our investment process is summarized in the following chart:

Origination
Deal Sourcing and Screening and Preliminary Due Diligence.
Term Sheet Structuring, Negotiatiom and Execution,

!

Underwriting i
Farmal Due Diligence ta Create nvestmerdt Memprandum.

Transaction Reviewed By Investment Commiliee,
R T e
_— — iz =
i ™ oo
S Approval . -\k Rejection J

Documentation |
Loan Documents Dirafted and .'l-'-!,_t;an'r}rfri | Sl P
Due Diligence Finalized.
Laan Documents Executed,

==

Loan and Compliance Administration
Loan Funded and Recorded,
Omgoing fnvoicing and Collection.
Tracking, Moniioring, Reviewing, Reporting, Plotting,
Analyzing, Valwing, Restructuring, Credit Scoring, efe.

Origination
The origination process for our investments includes sourcing, screening, prefichieadiligence and deal structuring and negotiation,

all leading to an executed non-binding term sheet. Our investment origination team, evisisiiscof approximately 25 investment
professionals, is headed by our Senior Managing Directors of Technology and Life Saiehoar Chief Executive Officer. The origination
team is responsible for sourcing potential investment opportunities and memthersneestment origination team use their extensive
relationships with various leading financial sponsors, management contactstegtiology-related companies, trade sources, technology
conferences and various publications to source prospective portfolio companies. Oorénvesigination team is divided into technology .
life sciences sub-teams to better source potential portfolio companies.

In addition, we have developed a proprietary and comprehensive SQL-based databasi $§etk various aspects of our investment
process including sourcing, originations, transaction monitoring and post-investrrferrtnpace. As of December 31, 2008, our proprietary
SQL-based database system included over 17,500 technology-related companies and overtdreQthpéal private equity
sponsors/investors, as well as various other industry contacts. This proprietasy<s€n allows our origination team to maintain, cultivate
and grow our industry relationships while providing our origination team with compreheiesars on companies in the technology-related
industries and their financial sponsors.

If a prospective portfolio company generally meets certain underwriting arivegi perform preliminary due diligence, which may
include high level company and technology assessments, evaluation of its financialsSpupgart, market analysis, competitive analysis,
identify key management, risk analysis and transaction size, pricing, returnsaalystructure analysis. If the preliminary due diligence is
satisfactory, and the origination team recommends moving forward, we thenrgtrneigotiate and execute a non-binding term sheet with the
potential portfolio company. Upon execution of a term sheet, the investment opportunitytmthee underwriting process to complete formal
due diligence review and approval.

11
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Underwriting
The underwriting review includes formal due diligence and approval of the proposed eneistite portfolio company.

Due DiligenceOur due diligence on a prospective investment is typically completed by two or mariameprofessionals whom we
define as the underwriting team. The underwriting team for a proposed investmesiisoofiisie deal sponsor who typically possesses general
industry knowledge and is responsible for originating and managing the transactiom\ehkenent professional(s) who perform due
diligence, credit and corporate financial analyses and, as needed, our Chief lfiegalaDfl other legal professionals. To ensure consistent
underwriting, we generally use our standardized due diligence methodologies, which inclddigenee on financial performance and credit
risk as well as an analysis of the operations and the legal and applicable redrdatemwork of a prospective portfolio company. The
members of the underwriting team work together to conduct due diligence and undéstatationships among the prospective portfolio
company’s business plan, operations and financial performance.

As part of our evaluation of a proposed investment, the underwriting team preparestmenvenemorandum for presentation to the
investment committee. In preparing the investment memorandum, the undertedtindypically interviews with select keyanagement of tt
company and select financial sponsors and assembles information necessary tetimemecision. If and when appropriate, the investment
professionals may also contact industry experts and customers, vendors or, in sefreoogsstitors of the company.

Approval ProcessThe sponsoring managing director or principal presents the investment memorandumyesiareint committee for
consideration. The unanimous approval of our investment committee is requiredvizefmeceed with any investment. The members of our
investment committee are our Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Leg&edfind our Chief Financial Officer. The investment committee
generally meets weekly and more frequently on an as-needed basis. Our investmétieeqmoess is generally the same at our wholly-
owned subsidiary Hercules Technology Il, L.P. (“HT II") except that our two Senior Mam&giectors are also members of the committee.
The Senior Managing Directors abstain from voting with respect to investthegtsriginate.

Documentation

Our documentation group, headed by our Chief Legal Officer, administers the front-enueaitation process for our investments. This
group is responsible for documenting the term sheet approved by the investment commita®tialize the transaction with a prospective
portfolio company. This group negotiates loan documentation and, subject to the approval offthegahi®fficer and/or the Associate
General Counsel, final documents are prepared for execution by all parties. Thermtatomgroup generally uses the services of externe
firms to complete the necessary documentation.

Loan and Compliance Administration

Our loan and compliance administration group, headed by our Chief Financial Officexraod@&edit Officer, administers loans and
tracks covenant compliance, if applicable, of our investments and oversees peri@dis of our critical functions to ensure adherence with
our internal policies and procedures. After funding of a loan in accordance with theniewesommittees approval, the loan is recorded in
loan administration software and our SQL-based database system. The loan anahcenaplininistration group is also responsible for
ensuring timely interest and principal payments and collateral managemeeit as advising the investment committee on the financial
performance and trends of each portfolio company, including any covenant violations that oddwrs o assessing the appropriate course of
action for each portfolio company and evaluating overall portfolio quality. In addition, thatmhcompliance administration group advise
investment committee and the Valuation Committee of the board, accordingly, nggdwelcredit and investment grading for each portfolio
company as well as changes in the value of collateral that may occur.
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The loan and compliance administration group monitors our portfolio companies incoddgg¢ertmine whether the companies are me:
our financing criteria and their respective business plans and also monitamaitiegad trends of each portfolio company from its monthly or
quarterly financial statements to assess the appropriate course of actash company and to evaluate overall portfolio quality. In addition,
our management team closely monitors the status and performance of each indontpaty through our SQL-based database system and
periodic contact with our portfolio companies’ management teams and thektresfieancial sponsors.

Credit and Investment Grading Systédur loan and compliance administration group uses an investment grading system terérerac
and monitor our outstanding loans. Our loan and compliance administration group monitors and, vadpeiaggpecommends changes to
investment grading. Our investment committee reviews the recommendations Aad@ge<cto the investment grading, which are submitted on
a quarterly basis to the Valuation Committee and our Board of Directors favahpr

From time to time, we will identify investments that require closer mongastr become workout assets. We develop a workout strategy
for workout assets and our investment committee monitors the progress dgasisttegy. We will incur losses from our investing activities,
however, we work with our troubled portfolio companies in order to recover as much of our envssasiis practicable. There can be no
assurance that principal will be recovered.

We use the following investment grading system approved by our Board of Directors:

Grade 1. Loans involve the least amount of risk in our portfolio. The borrower is perfpaimbve expectations, and the trends and
risk profile is generally favorabli

Grade z  The borrower is performing as expected and the risk profile is neutral to faveklsiew loans are initially graded

Grade 3. The borrower may be performing below expectations, and the loan’s risk éasadaenaterially since origination. We
increase procedures to monitor a borrower that may have limited amounts of castingeon the balance sheet, is
approaching its next equity capital raise within the next three to six monthshermi$timated fair value of the enterprise
may be lower than when the loan was originated. We will generally lower the loan@eativel 3 even if the company is
performing in accordance to plan as it approaches the need to raise additionalfaad its operations. Once the borrower
closes its new equity capital raise, we may increase the loan grade baadet@.

Grade 4. The borrower is performing materially below expectations, and the lo&asisubstantially increased since origination.
Loans graded 4 may experience some partial loss or full return of principal bupacteel to realize some loss of interest
which is not anticipated to be repaid in full, which, to the extent not already rdfletds require the fair value of the loan
to be reduced to the amount we anticipate will be recovered. Grade 4 investmerdsedyenabnitored

Grade 5. The borrower is in workout, materially performing below expectations andfecamgmisk of principal loss is probable.
Loans graded 5 will experience some partial principal loss or full loss ofemadrincipal outstanding is expected. Grade
5 loans will require the fair value of the loans be reduced to the amount, if any, ewgadativill be recoverec

At December 31, 2008, our investments had a weighted average investment grading of 2.39.
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Managerial Assistance

As a business development company, we are required to offer, and provide upon request, iresssg@nae to our portfolio
companies. This assistance could involve, among other things, monitoring the operations ofadiar gmripanies, participating in board and
management meetings, consulting with and advising officers of portfolio companies aidéihgrother organizational and financial guidance.
We may receive fees for these services.

COMPETITION

Our primary competitors provide financing to prospective portfolio companies and indodmnk financial institutions, federally or
state chartered banks, venture debt funds, financial institutions, venture fuaqiglprivate equity funds, investment funds and investment
banks. Many of these entities have greater financial and managerial resbance® thave, and the 1940 Act imposes certain regulatory
restrictions on us as a business development company to which many of our competitorsubjectoHowever, we believe that few of our
competitors possess the expertise to properly structure and price debt inve&indentsre capital and private equity backed technology-
related companies. We believe that our specialization in financing techrrellagsd companies will enable us to determine a range of po
values of intellectual property assets, evaluate the business prospects atidgpplearacteristics of prospective portfolio companies and, as a
result, identify investment opportunities that produce attractive risksted] returns. For additional information concerning the competitive
risks we face, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to our Businessactdrgt—\We operate in a highly competitive market for
investment opportunities, and we may not be able to compete effectively.”

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

We are a Maryland corporation and an internally-managed, non-diversified, elodéavestment company that has elected to be
regulated as a business development company under the 1940 Act. Hercules Technology [ITUIR, ¢t wholly-owned subsidiary, is
licensed under the Small Business Investment Act of 1958 as a Small BusinsgaémréCompany (“SBIC”). Hercules Technology SBIC
Management, LLC (*HTM”), another wholly-owned subsidiary, functions as the geneta¢paf our subsidiary HT Il. Hercules Funding |
LLC, our wholly owned subsidiary, and Hercules Funding Trust | function as vehicles toreditateans under our Credit Facility. We also
use wholly owned subsidiaries, all of which are structured as Delaware camp®i@td limited liability companies, to permit us to hold
portfolio companies organized as limited liability companies, or LLCs, (or &thas of pass-through entities) and still satisfy the RIC tax
requirement that at least 90% of our gross income for income tax purposes is inv@storee. In August 2008, we formed a wholly owned
subsidiary Hercules Funding II, LLC. to collateralize loans under our seedrftzility with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc.

Our principal executive offices are located at 400 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 310, Ral€alifornia 94301. We also have offices in:
Boston, Massachusetts; Boulder, Colorado; Chicago, lllinois; and San Diego, Calfanith was closed in January 2009).
BROKERAGE ALLOCATIONS AND OTHER PRACTICES

Because we generally acquire and dispose of our investments in privately eegotiasactions, we rarely use brokers in the normal
course of business. In those cases where we do use a broker, we do not execute trahsawtjorany particular broker or dealer, but will
seek to obtain the best net results for Hercules, taking into account such faprice éacluding the applicable brokerage commission or
dealer spread), size
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of order, difficulty of execution, and operational facilities of the firm and tine'dirisk and skill in positioning blocks of securities. While we
generally seek reasonably competitive execution costs, we may not necessdtily lpayest spread or commission available. Subject to
applicable legal requirements, we may select a broker based partly upon brokeesgamhrservices provided to us. In return for such
services, we may pay a higher commission than other brokers would charge if wergebergood faith that such commission is reasonable in
relation to the services provided. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 we paid &gdpi$&hG00 and $22,000 in brokerage
commissions, respectively.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2008, we had 45 employees, including approximately 25 investment and pe@miagjerment professionals all of
whom have extensive experience working on financing transactions for technologg-celaganies. Given the current economic uncertainty
in the credit market, we do not intend to expand our managing directors, financial anabystsating personnel in the near term.

REGULATION AS A BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

The following discussion is a general summary of the material prohibitions angptiess governing business development companies
generally. It does not purport to be a complete description of all of the laws and regat#otisg business development companies.

A business development company primarily focuses on investing in or lending to private cerapdnieaking managerial assistance
available to them. A business development company provides stockholders with theaf®liain the liquidity of a publicly-traded stock,
while sharing in the possible benefits of investing in emerging-growth, expanagmestestablished-stage companies. The 1940 Act contains
prohibitions and restrictions relating to transactions between business develapmeanies and their directors and officers and principal
underwriters and certain other related persons and requires that a majority oét¢t@rsibe persons other than “interested persons,” as that
term is defined in the 1940 Act. In addition, the 1940 Act provides that we may not change thehatubusiness so as to cease to be, or to
withdraw our election as, a business development company unless approved by a majoritytstanding voting securities. A majority of
the outstanding voting securities of a company is defined under the 1940 Act as thef1¢8<87% or more of such company’s shares present
at a meeting if more than 50% of the outstanding shares of such company are prepeesemtesl by proxy, or (ii) more than 50% of the
outstanding shares of such company.

Qualifying Assets

Under the 1940 Act, a business development company may not acquire any asset othsetthahthe type listed in Section 55(a) of
1940 Act, which are referred to as qualifying assets, unless, at the timejtigtan is made, qualifying assets represent at least 70% of the
company'’s total assets. The principal categories of qualifying assetanteiewair proposed business are the following:

(1) Securities purchased in transactions not involving any public offering from the @sweh securities, which issuer (subject to
certain limited exceptions) is an eligible portfolio company, or from any personswbotias been during the preceding 13 months,
an affiliated person of an eligible portfolio company, or from any other person, subgerth rules as may be prescribed by the
SEC. An eligible portfolio company is defined in the 1940 Act as any issuer v

@ is organized under the laws of, and has its principal place of business in, the Uatis

(b) is not an investment company (other than a small business investment compayywhedl by the business development
company) or a company that would be an investment company but for certain exclusions uh@i¢0 thet; anc
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(c)  does not have any class of securities listed on a national securities excinafng&as securities listed on a national
securities exchange such company has a market capitalization of less than $280imdbntrolled by the business
development company and has an affiliate of a business development company on its boestbrs; dir meets such other
criteria as may be established by the S

(2) Securities purchased in a private transaction from a U.S. issuer thaaiisingestment company or from an affiliated person of the
issuer, or in transactions incident thereto, if the issuer is in bankruptcy and sub@grganization or if the issuer, immediately
prior to the purchase of its securities was unable to meet its obligatitreyasame due without material assistance other than
conventional lending or financing arrangeme

(3) Securities of an eligible portfolio company purchased from any person in a praregaction if there is no ready market for such
securities and we already own 60% of the outstanding equity of the eligible portfolio got

(4) Securities received in exchange for or distributed on or with respect titissaescribed in (1) through (4) above, or pursuant to
the exercise of warrants or rights relating to such secul

(5) Cash, cash equivalents, U.S. Government securities or high-quality deltieecuamturing in one year or less from the time of
investment

Control, as defined by the 1940 Act, is presumed to exist where a business developmanydeneficially owns more than 25% of
outstanding voting securities of the portfolio company.

We do not intend to acquire securities issued by any investment company that excedtstmedosed by the 1940 Act. Under these
limits, we generally cannot acquire more than 3% of the voting stock of any investme@ngofas defined in the 1940 Act), invest more than
5% of the value of our total assets in the securities of one such investment comip&egtanore than 10% of the value of our total assets in
the securities of such investment companies in the aggregate. With regardptirtibatof our portfolio invested in securities issued by
investment companies, it should be noted that such investments might subjeatkhlders to additional expenses.

Significant Managerial Assistance

In order to count portfolio securities as qualifying assets for the purpose of thest@istassed above, a business development
company must either control the issuer of the securities or must offer to mékélawggnificant managerial assistance; except that, where the
business development company purchases such securities in conjunction with one ohengrersdns acting together, one of the other
persons in the group may make available such managerial assistance. Makifdeasigitéficant managerial assistance means, among other
things, any arrangement whereby the business development company, through its dirdcesspo#mployees, offers to provide and, if
accepted, does so provide, significant guidance and counsel concerning the managemegohsapenasiness objectives and policies of a
portfolio company through monitoring of portfolio company operations, selective partcipatboard and management meetings, consulting
with and advising a portfolio company’s officers or other organizational or finagidénce.

Temporary Investments

Pending investment in other types of qualifying assets, as described above, our mgestayeconsist of cash, cash equivalents, U.S.
government securities or high quality debt securities maturing in one year opleghé time of investment, which we refer to, collectively
temporary investments, so that 70% of our assets are qualifying assets. Fypieativest in U.S. treasury bills or in repurchase agreements,
provided that such agreements are fully collateralized by cash or secgstied by the U.S. government or its agencies. A repurchase
agreement involves the purchase by an investor, such as us, of a specified securitgiandtfreeous agreement by the seller to repurchase it
at an agreed upon future date and at a price which is greater
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than the purchase price by an amount that reflects an agreed-upon interest ratis. filvpercentage restriction on the proportion of our assets
that may be invested in such repurchase agreements. However, if more than 25% af assets constitute repurchase agreements from a
single counterparty, we would not meet the diversification tests imposed on us by the Gaige to qualify as a RIC for federal income tax
purposes. Thus, we do not intend to enter into repurchase agreements with a single cyuntexzess of this limit. We will monitor the
creditworthiness of the counterparties with which we enter into repurchasenagtdeansactions.

Warrants and Options

Under the 1940 Act, a business development company is subject to restrictions on thieofimvarrants, options, restricted stock or
rights to purchase shares of capital stock that it may have outstanding at arg piarticular, the amount of capital stock that would result
from the conversion or exercise of all outstanding warrants, options or rights to pucapéal stock cannot exceed 25% of the business
development company’s total outstanding shares of capital stock. This amount isl ted2@% of the business development company’s total
outstanding shares of capital stock if the amount of warrants, options or rightspsssigant to an executive compensation plan would exceed
15% of the business development company’s total outstanding shares of capital stock. Wedeae exemptive relief from the SEC
permitting us to issue stock options and restricted stock to our employees araisigeloject to the above conditions, among others. For a
discussion regarding the conditions of this exemptive relief, see Note 6 to our datesbfinancial statements.

Senior Securities; Coverage Ratio

We will be permitted, under specified conditions, to issue multiple cla$sedebtedness and one class of stock senior to our common
stock if our asset coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, is at least equal to 200%atelynafier each such issuance. In addition, we may not
be permitted to declare any cash dividend or other distribution on our outstanding commsnosimanehase any such shares, unless, at the
time of such declaration or purchase, we have asset coverage of at least 20G&dafteng the amount of such dividend, distribution, or
purchase price. We may also borrow amounts up to 5% of the value of our total aseetpdoaty or emergency purposes. For a discuss
the risks associated with the resulting leverage, see “ltem 1A. Risk $adRisks Related to Our Business & Structure—Because we borrow
money, there could be increased risk in investing in our company.”

Capital Structure

We are not generally able to issue and sell our common stock at a price belowtnetlasgger share. We may, however, sell our
common stock, at a price below the current net asset value of the common stockyamaatis, options or rights to acquire such common
stock, at a price below the current net asset value of the common stock if our boaedtofgidetermines that such sale is in the best interests
of the Company and our stockholders have approved the practice of making such sales. Ouretoeldprtuzed a proposal at our 2008
annual meeting of Stockholders permitting us to sell up to an amount equal to 20% of our outstandiog stock at a price below our net
asset value. We did not conduct any public offering of our shares at a price below ourtnetlassiiring 2008. We intend to include a
similar proposal in our proxy statement for our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. In anysecthe price at which our securities are to
be issued and sold may not be less than a price which, in the determination of our boartbo$,ditesely approximates the market value of
such securities (less any distributing commission or discount).

Code of Ethics

We have adopted and will maintain a code of ethics that establishes procedpersdoal investments and restricts certain personal
securities transactions. Personnel subject to the code may invest ineséuritheir personal investment accounts, including securities that
may be purchased or held by us, so long as such
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investments are made in accordance with the sagguirements. Our code of ethics will generally not permit investments by ployees ir
securities that may be purchased or held by us. We may be prohibited under the 1940 Amtdiactirg certain transactions with our
affiliates without the prior approval of our directors who are not interestednseasd, in some cases, the prior approval of the SEC.

Our code of ethics is posted on our website at www.herculestech.com and wastlfildttevBEC as an exhibit to the registration
statement (Registration No. 333-126604) for our initial public offering. You may read ancheomyde of ethics at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room in Washington, D.C. You may obtain information on the operation of the Pulri@nB=Room by calling the SEC at 1-202-
942-8090. In addition, the code of ethics is available on the EDGAR Database on tedrg@&i@et site at http://www.sec.gov. You may ok
copies of the code of ethics, after paying a duplicating fee, by electronic requesbHottiag email address: publicinfo@sec.gov, or by
writing the SEC’s Public Reference Section, Washington, D.C. 20549.

Privacy Principles

We are committed to maintaining the privacy of our stockholders and safeguardimgpthpublic personal information. The following
information is provided to help you understand what personal information we collect, howteat firat information and why, in certain ca
we may share information with select other parties.

Generally, we do not receive any non-public personal information relating to our stockhaltf®ugh certain non-public personal
information of our stockholders may become available to us. We do not disclose any non-putntial ricrmation about our stockholders or
former stockholders, except as permitted by law or as is necessary in omside stockholder accounts (for example, to a transfer agent).

We restrict access to non-public personal information about our stockholders to coyesaptlith a legitimate business need for the
information. We maintain physical, electronic and procedural safeguards designeigto the non-public personal information of our
stockholders.

Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures

We vote proxies relating to our portfolio securities in the best interest of ouhetdeks. We review on a case-by-case basis each
proposal submitted to a stockholder vote to determine its impact on the portfolitisetaid by us. Although we generally vote against
proposals that may have a negative impact on our portfolio securities, we may voté fmpsaposal if there exists compelling long-term
reasons to do so.

Our proxy voting decisions are made by our investment committee, which is responsibénifioring each of our investments. To
ensure that our vote is not the product of a conflict of interest, we require )tlaaty¢ne involved in the decision making process disclose to
our Chief Compliance Officer any potential conflict that he or she is awarglarey contact that he or she has had with any interested party
regarding a proxy vote; and (ii) employees involved in the decision making process or voteteatiomare prohibited from revealing how
intend to vote on a proposal in order to reduce any attempted influence from interegtsd part

Exemptive Relief

On June 21, 2005, we filed a request with the SEC for exemptive relief to allow us tertizke actions that would otherwise be
prohibited by the 1940 Act, as applicable to business development companies. Syeeificediquested that the SEC permit us to issue stock
options to our non-employee directors as contemplated by Section 61(a)(3)(B){i)(#) 1940 Act. On February 15, 2007, we received
approval from the SEC on this exemptive request. In addition, in June 2007, we filed an amemdimeefRe¢lbruary 2007 order to adjust the
number of shares issued to the non-employee directors. On October 10, 2007, we receivedfapprinaBEC on this amended exemptive
request.
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On April 5, 2007, we received an exemptive relief from the SEC that permits usudeKré indebtedness that our wholly-owned
subsidiary, HT II, which is qualified as a small business investment company, ieshe Small Business Administration from the 200% asset
coverage requirement applicable to us.

On May 2, 2007, we received approval from the SEC on our exemptive request permitting usrésigsterl stock to our employees,
officers and directors. On June 21, 2007, our shareholders approved amendments to the 200w &g/ Plan and 2006 Non-Employee
Incentive Plan permitting such restricted grants.

Other
We will be periodically examined by the SEC for compliance with the 1934 Act and the £840 A

We are required to provide and maintain a bond issued by a reputable fidelity inswrapeay to protect us against larceny and
embezzlement. Furthermore, as a business development company, we are prohibiteatécimgpany director or officer against any liability
to our stockholders arising from willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligereektass disregard of the duties involved in the conduct of
such person'’s office.

We are required to adopt and implement written policies and procedures reastasidned to prevent violation of the federal securities
laws, review these policies and procedures annually for their adequacy anddtieeeféss of their implementation. We have designated
Mr. Harvey, our Chief Legal Officer, as our Chief Compliance Officer who isoresple for administering these policies and procedures.

Small Business Administration Regulations

HT Il, our wholly-owned subsidiary, is licensed by the Small Business Admiistrasé a small business investment company (“SBIC”)
under Section 301(c) of the Small Business Investment Act of 1958. At December 31, 2008, westad approximately $65.3 million in
regulatory capital in HT Il permitting us to borrow under up to $130.6 million under our guaranbesdules commitment from the SBA, of
which, $127.2 million was outstanding. The maximum borrowing available from the SBA coulcrbased to the $137.1 million with an
additional regulatory capital investment of $3.25 million allowing us access td#ioaal $6.5 million, subject to SBA approval. In February
2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 included a provision increasingetitdimit to $150.0 million, a $13 million
increase from the previous of $137.1 million limit as of December 31, 2008, subject gigpadustments by the SBA. The limit may be
increased to $225.0 million with the approval of a second SBIC lender license and the ddiditastiaent of $37.5 million of regulatory
capital. We intend to submit an application for a second license, although ther@ssunance that such license will granted. In addition, there
is no assurance that we will be able to draw up to the maximum limit availadde the SBIC program. As of December 31, 2008, the assets
held by HT Il represented approximately 31.8% of the total assets of the Company.

SBICs are designed to stimulate the flow of private capital to eligibld bosihesses. Under present SBA regulations, eligible small
businesses include businesses that have a tangible net worth not exceeding $18 milliva andrage annual fully taxed net income not
exceeding $6 million for the two most recent fiscal years. In addition, SBICsdenste 20% of its investment activity to “smaller” concerns
as defined by the SBA. A smaller concern is one that has a tangible net worth edirex@& million and has average annual fully taxed net
income not exceeding $2 million for the two most recent fiscal years. SBA regslaiso provide alternative size standard criteria to
determine eligibility, which depend on the industry in which the business is engaged aaded on such factors as the number of employees
and gross sales. According to SBA regulations, small business investment compmniaake long-term loans to small businesses, invest in
the equity securities of such businesses and provide them with consulting and adwsoeg.sehrough our wholly-owned subsidiary HT 11,
we plan to provide long-term loans to qualifying small businesses, and in connectiavitthenake equity investments.
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HT Il will be periodically examined and audited by the SBA'’s staff to deternsrminpliance with SBIC regulations.

CERTAIN UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a general summary of the material federal income taxdesasons applicable to us.

Conversion to Regulated Investment Company Status

Prior to 2006, we were taxed as a C Corporation under the Code. We operate to quaéfyudeted investment company, or RIC, under
Subchapter M of the Code. If we qualify as a RIC and annually distribute to our stockholdgmsely ananner at least 90% of our investment
company taxable income, we will not be subject to federal income tax on the portion ofadnle iacome and capital gains we distribute tc
shareholders. Taxable income generally differs from net income as defined by geawggited accounting principles due to temporary and
permanent timing differences in the recognition of income and expenses, retcapitaifand net unrealized appreciation or depreciation.

We have met the criteria specified below to qualify as a RIC, and electedréatezitas a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code with the
filing of our federal tax return for 2006. As a RIC, we generally will not have to pay cagarxass on any income we distribute to our
stockholders as dividends, which allows us to reduce or eliminate our corporatexe®eldr to the effective date of our RIC election, we
were taxed as a regular corporation under Subchapter C of the Code. On December 31, 200%saethavith “built-in gain,” which are
assets whose fair market value as of the effective date of the electiedexceir tax basis. We elected to recognize all of our netibghins
at the time of the conversion and paid tax on the built-in gain with the filing of our 200%u&ax ta making this election, we marked our
portfolio to market at the time of our RIC election and paid approximately $294,000 in tax esuhieg gains.

Taxation as a Regulated Investment Company
For any taxable year in which we:
« qualify as a RIC; an

« distribute at least 90% of our net ordinary income and realized net short-iestirgexcess of realized net lotgrm capital losse
if any (the“Annual Distribution Requireme”);

We generally will not be subject to federal income tax on the portion of our investmeampitaxable income and net capital gaie.(net
realized long-term capital gains in excess of net realized short-tgitaldosses) we distribute to stockholders with respect to that year. As
described above, we made the election to recognizeibuyjtiins as of the effective date of our election to be treated as a RIC andréweit

not be subject to built-in gains tax when we sell those assets. However, if we subgemqagnté built-in gain assets from a C corporation in a
carryover basis transaction, then we may be subject to tax on the gains recognized higpesitions of such assets unless we make a special
election to pay corporate-level tax on such built-in gain at the time the agsatgaired.) We will be subject to United States federal income
tax at the regular corporate rates on any income or capital gain not distributednj@ddgistributed) to our stockholders.

In order to qualify as a RIC for federal income tax purposes and obtain the tax befrRRfisstatus, in addition to satisfying the Annual
Distribution Requirement, we must, among other things:

« have in effect at all times during each taxable year an election to be rdgdadusiness development company under the 1940
Act;

« derive in each taxable year at least 90% of our gross income from (a) dividendst, iptgmeents with respect to certain securities
loans, gains from the sale of stock or other securities, or other ir

20

file://c:\WINNT\Profiles\hallers\Desktop\2009 -k hercules.htr 5/10/201(



Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, - Page23 of 14C

Table of Contents

derived with respect to our business of investing in such stock or securities andifbdmet derived from an interest in a
“qualified publicly traded limited partnersl” (the“90% Income Te”); and

diversify our holdings so that at the end of each quarter of the taxable year:

« atleast 50% of the value of our assets consists of cash, cash equivalents, U.S. gogewguriges, securities of other RICs, and
other securities if such other securities of any one issuer do not represertiands&otof the value of our assets or more than 10%
of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer;

* no more than 25% of the value of our assets is invested in (i) securities (other$hagovernment securities or securities of other
RICs) of one issuer, (ii) securities of two or more issuers that are tbedtrms determined under applicable tax rules, by us and that
are engaged in the same or similar or related trades or businessesexujitjes of one or more “qualified publicly traded
partnership” (the“Diversification Test”).

Qualified earnings may exclude such income as management fees received in@omvitttur SBIC or other potential outside
managed funds and certain other fees.

Pursuant to a recent revenue procedure issued by the IRS (Revenue Procedure 2009-8Mathmticated that it will treat
distributions from certain publicly traded RICs (including BDCs) that are paidrpeash and part in stock as dividends that would satisfy the
RIC’s annual distribution requirements and qualify for the dividends paid deductimrtdone tax purposes. In order to qualify for such
treatment, the revenue procedure requires that at least 10% of the total aistbleypaid in cash and that each shareholder have a right t
to receive its entire distribution in cash. If the number of share-holdersgléztieceive cash would cause cash distributions in excess of 10%,
then each shareholder electing to receive cash would receive a proportionaté gfesash to be distributed (although no shareholder el
to receive cash may receive less than 10% of such shareholder’s distributior).iiTk&stevenue procedure applies to distributions made with
respect to taxable years ending prior to January 1, 2010.

As a RIC, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductible federal excise tax omearthstributed income unless we distribute in a timely
manner an amount at least equal to the sum of (1) 98% of our ordinary income for eadr yalend2) 98% of our capital gain net income
the 1-year period ending October 31 in that calendar year and (3) any income realized, butlhaedjsn the preceding year (the “Excise
Tax Avoidance Requirement”). We will not be subject to excise taxes on amountsobnwehare required to pay corporate income tax (such
as retained net capital gains). Depending on the level of taxable income earned irea, tar yeay choose to carry over taxable income in
excess of current year distributions from such taxable income into the next tanggayaa 4% excise tax on such income, as required. The
maximum amount of excess taxable income that may be carried over for distrinutie next year under the Code is the total amount of
dividends paid in the following year, subject to certain declaration and paymentmesddio the extent we choose to carry over taxable
income into the next tax year, dividends declared and paid by us in a year may diffexfbla ilacome for that year as such dividends may
include the distribution of current year taxable income, the distribution of prior yedoléancome carried over into and distributed in the
current year, or returns of capital.

We may be required to recognize taxable income in circumstances in which we doinetaaske. For example, if we hold debt
obligations that are treated under applicable tax rules as having original issust{sach as debt instruments with payment-in-kind interest
or back-end fee interest, in certain cases, increasing interest ragsgemt with warrants), we must include in income each year a portion of the
original issue discount that accrues over the life of the obligation, regardlesstbewbash representing such income is received by us in the
same taxable year. Because any original issue discount accrued will bedriolode investment company taxable income for the year of
accrual, we may be required to make a distribution to our stockholders in order jotbati&hnual Distribution Requirement, even though we
will not have received any corresponding cash amount.
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Gain or loss realized by us from the sale or exchange of warrants acquired byellsaasawy loss attributable to the lapse of such
warrants generally will be treated as capital gain or loss. Such gain or lossllgemsd be long-term or short-term, depending on how long we
held a particular warrant.

We are authorized to borrow funds and to sell assets in order to satisfy the Arstibudn Requirement and the Excise Tax
Avoidance Requirement (collectively, t“Distribution Requirements”). However, under the 1940 Act, we are not pernutredke
distributions to our stockholders while our debt obligations and other senior secnétieutstanding unless certain “asset coverage” tests are
met. See “Regulation—Senior Securities; Coverage Ratio.” Moreover, oity &biflispose of assets to meet the Distribution Requirements
may be limited by (1) the illiquid nature of our portfolio, or (2) other requiremelatng to our status as a RIC, including the Diversification
Tests. If we dispose of assets in order to meet the Distribution Requirememtsy make such dispositions at times that, from an investment
standpoint, are not advantageous.

Any transactions in options, futures contracts, hedging transactions, and forwaadtsomiil be subject to special tax rules, the effect of
which may be to accelerate income to us, defer losses, cause adjustmentwiitigeperiods of our investments, convert long-term capital
gains into short-term capital gains, convert short-term capital lossesmigtadrm capital losses or have other tax consequences. These rules
could affect the amount, timing and character of distributions to stockholders. We deoraotlg intend to engage in these types of
transactions.

A RIC is limited in its ability to deduct expenses in excess of its “invegtommpany taxable income” (which is, generally, ordinary
income plus net realized short-term capital gains). If our expenses in a givergest gross taxable income (e.g., as the result of large
amounts of equity-based compensation), we would experience a net operating losy&artiddwever, a RIC is not permitted to carry
forward net operating losses to subsequent years. In addition, expenses can be usedsetiynicestment company taxable income, not net
capital gain. Due to these limits on the deductibility of expenses, we may for tax gunpeseaggregate taxable income for several years that
we are required to distribute and that is taxable to our stockholders even if suole is@reater than the aggregate net income we actually
earned during those years. Such required distributions may be made from our cashr dgs@juidation of investments, if necessary. We
realize gains or losses from such liquidations. In the event we realize nat gajis from such transactions, you may receive a larger capital
gain distribution than you would have received in the absence of such transactions.

Failure to Qualify as a Regulated Investment Company

If we were unable to qualify for treatment as a RIC, we would be subject to t#hobowa taxable income at regular corporate rates. We
would not be able to deduct distributions to stockholders, nor would they be required to be madéstSiations (if made in a taxable year
beginning on or before December 31, 2010) would be taxable to our stockholders and, providedatéitigiperiod and other requirements
were met, could qualify for treatment as “qualified dividend income” eligibléh®r15% maximum rate to the extent of our current and
accumulated earnings and profits. Subject to certain limitations under the Codeateodxiributions would be eligible for the dividends-
received deduction. Distributions in excess of our current and accumulated earningsitswi@uid be treated first as a return of capital tc
extent of the stockholder’s tax basis, and any remaining distributions would bd asateapital gain. To requalify as a RIC in a subsequent
taxable year, we would be required to satisfy the RIC qualification requiremetitafgear and dispose of any earnings and profits from any
year in which we failed to qualify as a RIC. Subject to a limited exception agglizaRICs that qualified as such under Subchapter M of the
Code for at least one year prior to disqualification and that requalify as adR&@er than the second year following the nonqualifying yea
could be subject to tax on any unrealized net built-in gains in the assets held by us duririgdtie pésich we failed to qualify as a RIC that
are recognized within the subsequent 10 years, unless we made a special elpatiaotporate-level tax on such built-in gain at the time of
our requalification as a RIC.
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DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

We determine the net asset value per share of our common stock quarterly. Thet val@sper share is equal to the value of our total
assets minus liabilities and any preferred stock outstanding divided by the total mifiisHeres of common stock outstanding. As of the date
of this report, we do not have any preferred stock outstanding.

At December 31, 2008, approximately 96% of our total assets represented inveBirpertfslio companies recorded at fair value.
Value, as defined in Section 2(a) (41) of the 1940 Act, is (i) the market price ferdbasgrities for which a market quotation is readily
available and (ii) for all other securities and assets, fair value isersnile¢d in good faith by the Board of Directors in accordance with
established valuation procedures and the recommendation of the Valuation @enafiitte Board of Directors. Since there is typically no
readily available market value for the investments in our portfolio, we valueastibfly all of our investments at fair value as determined in
good faith by our Board of Directors pursuant to a valuation policy and a consistent vafwatiess. Due to the inherent uncertainty in
determining the fair value of investments that do not have a readily availatidetwalue, the fair value of our investments determined in good
faith by our Board of Directors may differ significantly from the value that whalte been used had a ready market existed for such
investments, and the differences could be material.

There is no single standard for determining fair value in good faith. As a resetmaeng fair value requires that judgment be applie
the specific facts and circumstances of each portfolio investment. Walikes, we are not permitted to provide a general reserve for anti
loan losses. Instead, we must determine the fair value of each individual ienestma quarterly basis. We will record unrealized depreciation
on investments when we believe that an investment has decreased in value, includdnzpiidetion of a loan or realization of an equity
security is doubtful. Conversely, we will record unrealized appreciation if vievbehat the underlying portfolio company has appreciated in
value and, therefore, our investment has also appreciated in value, where appropriate.

As a business development company, we invest primarily in illiquid securitieslingldebt and equity-related securities of private
companies. Our investments are generally subject to some restrictionslermnesgenerally have no established trading market. Because of
the type of investments that we make and the nature of our business, our valuationrpquiessan analysis of various factors. Our valuation
methodology includes the examination of, among other things, the underlying investment pedorfinancial condition and market chang
events that impact valuation, estimated remaining life, and interest raelspfesimilar securities as of the measurement date. If there is a
significant deterioration of the credit quality of a debt investment, we may condigerfadtors that a hypothetical market participant would
use to estimate fair value, including the proceeds that would be received in aitbquéchetlysis.

With respect to private debt and equity-related securities, each invessmahted using industry valuation benchmarks and, where
appropriate, equity values are assigned a discount reflecting the illiquid natinesimfestment and our minority, naontrol position. When
qualifying external event such as a significant purchase transaction, publingffarsubsequent debt or equity sale occurs, the pricing
indicated by the external event will be used to corroborate our private debt or equétyoval

We periodically review the valuation of our portfolio companies that have not been mhwolaejualifying external event to determine if
the enterprise value of the portfolio company may have increased or decreasetkedimstevaluation measurement date. We may consider, but
are not limited to, industry valuation methods such as price to enterprise valieedo@quity ratios, discounted cash flow, valuation
comparisons to comparable public companies or other industry benchmarks in our evalubgdaiof/alue of our investment. Securities that
are traded in the over-the-counter market or on a stock exchange will be valued atatiegigd price on the valuation date.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefudligst described below and all other
information contained in this Annual Report, including our financial statements and the relasdndtthe schedules and exhibits to this
Annual Report. The risks set forth below are not the only risks we face. If any of thenfplieks occur, our business, financial condition .
results of operations could be materially adversely affected. In such case, our ngahssand the trading price of our common stock could
decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to our Business and Structure

We have a limited operating history as a business development company, whiglaffect our ability to manage our business and may
impair your ability to assess our prospects.

We were incorporated in December 2003 and commenced investment operations ilh&epd®4h. We are subject to all of the business
risks and uncertainties associated with any new business enterprise, includisk tiegt we will not achieve our investment objective and that
the value of our common stock could decline substantially. We have a limited operatingdsstdusiness development company. As a
result, we have limited operating results under these regulatory frametlvarksin demonstrate to you either their effect on the business
ability to manage the business within these frameworks. If we fail to maintaitatws as a business development company or fail to qua
a RIC, our operating flexibility and results of operations would be significantgtefd.

We are currently in a period of capital markets disruption and recession andlavaot expect these conditions to improve in the near
future.

The U.S. capital markets have been experiencing extreme volatility and disruptiooréathian 12 months as evidenced by a lack of
liquidity in the debt capital markets, significant write-offs in the findredavices sector, the repricing of credit risk in the broadly syndicated
credit market and the failure of major financial institutions. Despitadtiens of the United States federal government, these events have
contributed to worsening general economic conditions that are materially and Bdwvepseting the broader financial and credit markets and
reducing the availability of credit and equity capital for the markets as a wholsandidl services firms in particular. We believe that the
U.S. economy has entered into a period of recession, and forecasts for fiscal 2088ygmlifor a weakening economy in the United States,
with the continuation of the economic recession and possibly an economic depressiuptiddsin the capital markets have increased the
spread between the yields realized on risk-free and higher risk securitidtingean illiquidity in the debt capital markets. We believe these
conditions may continue for a prolonged period of time or worsen in the future. A prolonged peniadkef illiquidity may cause us to redt
the value of loans we originate and/or fund, which could have an adverse effect on our busémesal, ¢ondition, and results of operations.
Unfavorable economic conditions also could increase our funding costs, limit @ssdcdhe capital markets or result in a decision by lenders
not to extend credit to us. These events could prevent us from increasing our invesgirattans and negatively impact our operating
results.

Current market conditions have materially and adversely impacted debt andyeqapital markets in the United States, which could
result in a negative impact on our business and operations.

The debt and equity capital markets in the United States have been negativelydrogaigmificant write-offs in the financial services
sector relating to subprime mortgages and therieiag of credit risk in the broadly syndicated market, among other things. Thess, alemny
with the deterioration of the housing market, the failure of major financialutistis and the resulting United States Federal government
actions have led to worsening general economic conditions, which have matedadigheersely impacted the broader financial and credit
markets and have reduced the availability of debt and equity capital for thet amekerhole and financial firms in particular. Commercial
finance companies have previously utilized the securitization market to finanedrs@satment activities and we had intended to use
securitization financing. Due to the current dislocation of the securitizatarket, which

24

file://c:\WINNT\Profiles\hallers\Desktop\2009 -k hercules.htr 5/10/201(



Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, - Page27 of 14C

Table of Contents

we believe may continue for an extended period of time, access to this funding soussehtally been eliminated. We and other companies
in the commercial finance sector may have to access alternative debtsnarirder to grow. The debt capital that will be available may be at
a higher cost, and terms and conditions may be less favorable which could negatetlguaffinancial performance and results. In addition,
the prolonged continuation of further deterioration of current market conditions couldelghimpact our business.

We have and may in the future choose to pay dividends in our own stock, in whighyeasmay be required to pay tax in excess of the
cash you receive.

Under a recently issued IRS revenue procedure, up to 90% of any such taxable dividend for 2089 mayddble in our stock. We
recently determined to pay 90% of our first quarter 2009 dividend in shares of newly issuedncstock, and we may in the future determine
to distribute taxable dividends that are payable in part in our common stock. Tdraekl®klers receiving such dividends will be required to
include the full amount of the dividend as ordinary income (or as long-term capitab glaeextent such distribution is properly designated as
a capital gain dividend) to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings andqrbfitéefd States federal income tax purposes. As a
result, a U.S. stockholder may be required to pay tax with respect to such dividends imkangs=sash received. If a U.S. stockholder sells
the stock it receives as a dividend in order to pay this tax, the sales proceeds maytznlthe amount included in income with respect to the
dividend, depending on the market price of our stock at the time of the sale. Furthernforespétt to non-U.S. stockholders, we may be
required to withhold U.S. tax with respect to such dividends, including in respect oaglbotion of such dividend that is payable in stock. In
addition, if a significant number of our stockholders determine to sell shares obduirsbrder to pay taxes owed on dividends, it may put
downward pressure on the trading price of our stock.

We are dependent upon key management personnel for our future success,uarycManuel A. Henriquez, and if we are not able to
hire and retain qualified personnel, or if we lose any member of our senior agement team, our ability to implement our business
strategy could be significantly harmed.

We depend upon the members of our senior management, particularly Mr. Henriqudzaaother key personnel for the identificati
final selection, structuring, closing and monitoring of our investments. These engpl@aeecritical industry experience and relationships on
which we rely to implement our business plan. If we lose the services of Miigher, or of any other senior management members, we may
not be able to operate the business as we expect, and our ability to compete could dhewtracmeould cause our operating results to suffer.
We believe our future success will depend, in part, on our ability to identify, attichcet@in sufficient numbers of highly skilled employee
we do not succeed in identifying, attracting and retaining such personnel, we may nettoeoglerate our business as we expect.

Our business model depends to a significant extent upon strong referraliceighips with venture capital and private equity fund
sponsors, and our inability to develop or maintain these relationships, or therkiof these relationships to generate investment
opportunities, could adversely affect our business.

We expect that members of our management team will maintain their retggiomsth venture capital and private equity firms, and we
will rely to a significant extent upon these relationships to provide us with ouroealffwe fail to maintain our existing relationships or to
develop new relationships with other firms or sources of investment opportunitiesyeheill not be able to grow our investment portfolio. In
addition, persons with whom members of our management team have relationshioatgated to provide us with investment opportur
and, therefore, there is no assurance that such relationships will lead to theiongheebt or other investments.

We operate in a highly competitive market for investment opportunities, @adnay not be able to compete effectively.

A number of entities compete with us to make the types of investments that we pl&e tim m@spective portfolio companies. We
compete with a large number of venture capital and private equity firms, assweih
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other investment funds, investment banks and other sources of financing, includingn@ééitencial services companies such as commercial
banks and finance companies. Many of our competitors are substantially largevardrsiderably greater financial, technical, marketing
other resources than we do. For example, some competitors may have a lowernwcaig ahfl/or access to funding sources that are not
available to us. This may enable some competitors to make commercial |dangevést rates that are comparable to or lower than the rates
that we typically offer. We may lose prospective portfolio companies if we do rioh m@mpetitors’ pricing, terms and structure. If we do
match competitors’ pricing, terms or structure, we may experience decreasgdnest income and increased risk of credit losses. In addition,
some of our competitors may have higher risk tolerances or different riskrasa¢sswhich could allow them to consider a wider variety of
investments, establish more relationships and build their market sharéerifare, many potential competitors are not subject to the
regulatory restrictions that the 1940 Act imposes on us as a business develapnpartycor that the Code would impose on us as a RIC.

are not able to compete effectively, our business, financial condition, and resptsrations will be adversely affected. As a result of this
competition, there can be no assurance that we will be able to identify and takege\drttractive investment opportunities that we ide

or that we will be able to fully invest our available capital.

Because we intend to distribute substantially all of our income to ourldtatders in order to qualify as a RIC, we will continue to need
additional capital to finance our growth. If additional funds are unavailable or notaélable on favorable terms, our ability to grow will
be impaired.

In order to satisfy the tax requirements applicable to a RIC, to avoid paymewis# taxes and to minimize or avoid payment of income
taxes, we intend to distribute to our stockholders substantially all of our ordircaryé and realized net capital gains except for certain
realized net long-term capital gains, which we may retain, pay applicable inapesenith respect thereto and elect to treat as deemed
distributions to our stockholders. As a business development company, we generaliymee to meet a coverage ratio of total assets to total
borrowings and other senior securities, which includes all of our borrowings and angeprefeck that we may issue in the future, of at least
200%. This requirement limits the amount that we may borrow. This limitation maynpres/&om incurring debt and require us to raise
additional equity at a time when it may be disadvantageous to do so. Given the cuweatidisin the credit market, we cannot assure you
that debt and equity financing will be available to us on favorable terms, or at all, anthaetinfjs may be restricted by the terms of any of
our outstanding borrowings. If we are unable to incur additional debt, we may be required tmidiiional equity at a time when it may be
disadvantageous to do so. In addition, shares of closed-end investment companieshtyérested at discounts to their net asset values and
our stock has been discounted in the market. This characteristic of closed-estché@mtecompanies is separate and distinct from the risk that
our net asset value per share may decline. We cannot predict whether shares of our ¢coockmalh tsade above, at or below our net asset
value. If our common stock trades below its net asset value, we generally willadgielie issue additional shares of our common stock at its
market price without first obtaining the approval for such issuance from our stoclshataeour independent directors. If additional funds are
not available to us, we could be forced to curtail or cease new lending and investiaiietsaeind our net asset value could decline.

Because we borrow money, there could be increased risk in investing in ampany.

Lenders have fixed dollar claims on our assets that are superior to the claiotkbbklers, and we have granted, and may in the future
grant, lenders a security interest in our assets in connection with borrowings. &se¢ie a liquidation event, those lenders would receive
proceeds before our stockholders. In addition, borrowings, also known as leverage, magnifgntiied fmtgain or loss on amounts invested
and, therefore, increase the risks associated with investing in our secuetiesage is generally considered a speculative investment
technique. If the value of our assets increases, then leveraging would causediseinalue attributable to our common stock to increase
more than it otherwise would have had we not leveraged. Conversely, if the value of tudessases, leveraging would cause the net asset
value attributable to our common stock to decline more than it otherwise would have hatleveraged. Similarly, any increase in our
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revenue in excess of interest expense on our borrowed funds would cause our net incaeastrmare than it would without the leverage.
Any decrease in our revenue would cause our net income to decline more than it would havedtasbwewed funds and could negativ

affect our ability to make distributions on common stock. Our ability to servicdelt that we incur will depend largely on our financial
performance and will be subject to prevailing economic conditions and competitive ge¥¢erand, indirectly our stockholders will bear the
cost associated with our leverage activity. Our securitized creditifzcivith Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp. and Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc. and with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. contain financial and apgredvenants that could restrict our business activities, including
our ability to declare dividends if we default under certain provisions.

As of December 31, 2008, we had outstanding indebtedness of $89.6 million pursuant to our sectadizEddlity. All remaining
principal and interest outstanding under Credit Facility is due April 30, 2009. If our pmdfafivestments fails to provide adequate returns
and we are unable to otherwise raise funds, we may be unable to make inteiastpal payments on our indebtedness as it becomes due.
There was no outstanding borrowing under Wells Facility as of December 31, 2008. lonadgitotf December 31, 2008, we had
approximately $127.2 million outstanding under our SBA debenture. Despite current markeorsnde expect, in the future, to borrow
from, and issue senior debt securities to, banks, insurance companies and otheriferhadeing additional borrowings pursuant to the Wells
Facility. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @msdiBorrowings.”

As a business development company, generally we are not permitted to incur indehtetissssnmediately after such borrowing we
have an asset coverage for total borrowings of at least 200% (i.e., the amount of debtereget50% of the value of our assets). In
addition, we may not be permitted to declare any cash dividend or other distribution on @mndingstommon shares, or purchase any such
shares, unless, at the time of such declaration or purchase, we have asset cbaetagst @00% after deducting the amount of such divic
distribution, or purchase price. If this ratio declines below 200%, we may not be &itartadditional debt and may need to sell a portion of
our investments to repay some debt when it is disadvantageous to do so, and we may not be lebistsimaions. As of December 31,
2008 our asset coverage for senior indebtedness was 669%, excluding SBA leverage.

Because most of our investments typically are not in publicly-tradedisges, there is uncertainty regarding the value of our
investments, which could adversely affect the determination of ourasset value.

At December 31, 2008, portfolio investments, 99% of which are valued at fair value by tdeoBDé@ectors, were approximately 96%
of our total assets. We expect our investments to continue to consist primarilyritie®eissued by privately-held companies, the fair value of
which is not readily determinable. In addition, we are not permitted to maintaireeagjeeserve for anticipated loan losses. Instead, we are
required by the 1940 Act to specifically value each investment and record an earealiz or loss for any asset that we believe has increased
or decreased in value. There is no single standard for determining fair value inijund/éavalue these securities at fair value as determined
in good faith by our Board of Directors, based on the recommendations of our Valuation CenTrhi¢t&/aluation Committee uses its best
judgment in arriving at the fair value of these securities. As a resultirdeteg fair value requires that judgment be applied to the sp«
facts and circumstances of each portfolio investment while employing a corigiatgited valuation process for the types of investments we
make. However, the Board of Directors retains ultimate authority as to the approuation of each investment. Because such valuations
are inherently uncertain and may be based on estimates, our determinationgatfiéainay differ materially from the values that would be
assessed if a ready market for these securities existed. We adjustygtiatealuation of our portfolio to reflect the Board of Directors’
determination of the fair value of each investment in our portfolio. Any changds walfze are recorded in our statement of operations as net
change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation. Our net asset value could belyadfferded if our determinations regarding the fair value
of our investments were materially higher than the values that we ultimaaéierapon the disposal of such securities.

27

file://c:\WINNT\Profiles\hallers\Desktop\2009 -k hercules.htr 5/10/201(



Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, - Page30 of 14C

Table of Contents

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No.Febi7\alue MeasurementSFAS 157”) which provides enhanced guidance for
using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. FAS 157 applies wher@restahdards require (or permit) assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value but does not expand the use of fair value in any new circumg{eregspted FAS 157 on January 1, 2008. In 2008,
we recorded unrealized depreciation of approximately $21.4 million primarily due to ldyeseoin the current financial market and the
resulting impact on our portfolio company valuations in accordance with FAS 157. Thet shp&S157 on our consolidated financial
statements for future periods cannot be determined at this time as it wiflugnced by the estimates of fair value for those periods, the
number and amount of investments we originate, acquire or exit and the effect dflaimyal guidance or any changes in the interpretation of
this statement. See Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies"dtorNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in
Item 8.

Our financial results could be negatively affected if a significant gofio investment fails to perform as expected.

Our total investment in companies may be significant individually or in the aggrégah result, if a significant investment in one or
more companies fails to perform as expected, our financial results could baegatively affected and the magnitude of the loss could be
more significant than if we had made smaller investments in more companidslldiveng table shows the fair value of investments held at
December 31, 2008 that are greater than 5% of net assets:

December 31, 200
Percentage ¢

(in thousands' Fair Value Net Asset

Tectura Corporatic $ 25,02 6.5%
Zayo Bandwidth, In 24,56: 6.4%
Labopharm USA, In 21,21( 5.5%
Infologix, Inc 21,007 5.5%
QuatRx Pharmaceuticals, 20,85¢ 5.5%
Kamada, In 19,62: 5.1%

Tectura Corporation is a leading global provider of integrated business solutiomsrtarket companies and large enterprise divisions
specializing in Enterprise Resource Planning and Customer Relationship Memagelutions built on Microsoft Business Solutions software
(Axapta, Great Plains, Navision, Solomon, and CRM) and integrated with leadind4exigeoft products and technologies.

Zayo Bandwidth Corporation owns and operates fiber optic networks in various regibadJfited States and provides bandwidth
services to carriers, web-centric companies, public institutions and ésgsrpr

Labopharm, Inc. is a specialty pharmaceutical company, together with its subsjdiavelops drugs using its proprietary controlled-
release technologies. The Company'’s lead product, a uniquelaitgéermulation of tramadol, is being commercially launched in key me
globally and its second product, a novel formulation of trazodone for the treatment ofle@essive disorder, is under regulatory review by
the FDA.

InfoLogix, Inc. is a provider of enterprise mobility and radio frequency identificaR&#X) solutions. The Company provides these
solutions to its customers by utilizing a combination of products and servicesliimctonsulting, business software applications, managed
services, mobile workstations and devices, and wireless infrastructure.

QuatRx Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is a developer of therapeutic compounds for thertredtnelocrine, metabolic, and cardiovascular
diseases. The company’s main product candidates treat hormone deficiericiesuthfrom aging in men and women. Current products are
being developed for the treatment of vaginal atrophy, symptoms of andropause in aging males, efwlesterol levels, and mild to mode
psoriasis.
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Kamada, Inc., is a biopharmaceutical company. The Company engages in the developahestiopr and marketing of specialty plas
therapeutics, specific and general immune globulins, and other prescribed medivinesmpany produces various pharmaceuticals, incl
human plasma therapeutics for intravenous or intramuscular injection, anceparant nonplasma derived drugs for injection, as well as for
critical care situations in emergency rooms, operating theaters, and intearsivmits.

Our financial results could be negatively affected if these portfolio compan&sy of our other significant portfolio companies
encounter financial difficulty and fail to repay their obligations or to perform ascésqb.

Regulations governing our operations as a business development company affieability to, and the manner in which, we raise
additional capital, which may expose us to risks.

Our business will require a substantial amount of capital. We may acquir@add@apital from the issuance of senior securities,
including borrowings, securitization transactions or other indebtedness, or #recssd additional shares of our common stock. However, we
may not be able to raise additional capital in the future on favorable termdloW& anay issue debt securities, other evidences of
indebtedness or preferred stock, and we may borrow money from banks or other financiabirsstitlitich we refer to collectively as “senior
securities,” up to the maximum amount permitted by the 1940 Act. Under the 1940 Act,ive¢ peemitted to incur indebtedness unless
immediately after such borrowing we have an asset coverage for total borrowatdsast 200% (i.e., the amount of debt may not exceec
of the value of our assets). In addition, we may not be permitted to declare any cash divimtéed distribution on our outstanding common
shares, or purchase any such shares, unless, at the time of such declaration @, puediemse an asset coverage of at least 200% after
deducting the amount of such dividend, distribution, or purchase price. Our ability to megndi/or issue additional senior securities would
be restricted if our asset coverage ratio were not at least 200%. If the valureasBets declines, we may be unable to satisfy this test. If that
happens, we may be required to liquidate a portion of our investments and repay a portion obtedriade at a time when such sales may be
disadvantageous. As a result of issuing senior securities, we would also be expgsiedltdgks associated with leverage, including an
increased risk of loss. If we issue preferred stock, the preferred stock wakifeaior” to common stock in our capital structure, preferred
stockholders would have separate voting rights and might have rights, preferenceiegepnnore favorable than those of our common
stockholders and the issuance of preferred stock could have the effect of deldgimmgi®r preventing a transaction or a change of control
that might involve a premium price for holders of our common stock or otherwise be in gointéeest.

To the extent that we are constrained in our ability to issue debt or other senidreseave will depend on issuances of common stock
to finance operations. Other than in certain limited situations such as rigdriagdf as a business development company, we are generally not
able to issue our common stock at a price below net asset value without firstngpteéniired approvals from our stockholders and our
independent directors. If we raise additional funds by issuing more common stoclooissenrities convertible into, or exchangeable for, our
common stock, then the percentage ownership of our stockholders at that time wikdeand you might experience dilution. Moreover, we
can offer no assurance that we will be able to issue and sell additional equittiiesem the future, on favorable terms or at all.

In addition to issuing securities to raise capital as described above, eipaatihat, in the future, we may securitize our loans to
generate cash for funding new investments. The securitization market hagedffettut down with the recent financial market collapse and
we cannot assure you that will be able to securitize our loans in the neaydutatrall. An inability to successfully securitize our loan port
could limit our ability to grow our business and fully execute our business strategy.
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When we are a debt or minority equity investor in a portfolio company, we mayeah a position to control the entity, and managem
of the company may make decisions that could decrease the value of our portfoliagsldi

We make both debt and minority equity investments; therefore, we are subject s thatra portfolio company may make business
decisions with which we disagree, and the stockholders and management of such compakg nsks tor otherwise act in ways that do not
serve our interests. As a result, a portfolio company may make decisions that coesgelehe value of our portfolio holdings.

If we do not invest a sufficient portion of our assets in qualifying assets,cauld fail to qualify as a business development company (
precluded from investing according to our current business strategy.

As a business development company, we may not acquire any assets other than “qaafigtsigunless, at the time of and after giving
effect to such acquisition, at least 70% of our total assets are qualifying; &s=“Item 1. Business—Regulation as a Business Development
Company.”

We believe that most of the senior loans we make will constitute qualifying adsevever, we may be precluded from investing in what
we believe are attractive investments if such investments are not qualisgiets éor purposes of the 1940 Act. If we do not invest a sufficient
portion of our assets in qualifying assets, we could lose our status as a businiegsraiatecompany, which would have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Similarlyytfesseould prevent us from making follow-on investments
in existing portfolio companies (which could result in the dilution of our position) odaeguire us to dispose of investments at inappropriate
times in order to comply with the 1940 Act. If we need to dispose of such investments quigklyiditbe difficult to dispose of such
investments on favorable terms. For example, we may have difficulty in finding a Indyeven if we do find a buyer, we may have to sel
investments at a substantial loss.

We may have difficulty paying our required distributions if we recognizeome before or without receiving cash representing such
income.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and tax requiremeems|ude in income certain amounts that we have not
yet received in cash, such as contracted payment-in-kind interest, which repoesgractual interest added to a loan balance and due at the
end of such loan’s term. In addition to the cash yields received on our loans, in sonees)startain loans may also include any of the
following: end-of-term payments, exit fees, balloon payment fees or prepaymeniiiedncreases in loan balances as a result of contracted
payment-in-kind arrangements are included in income for the period in which such pawkiedtinterest was accrued, which is often in
advance of receiving cash payment, and are separately identified on our statécestiflows. We also may be required to include in income
certain other amounts that we will not receive in cash.

Any warrants that we receive in connection with our debt investments will gigrtezalalued as part of the negotiation process with the
particular portfolio company. As a result, a portion of the aggregate purchastoptiee debt investments and warrants will be allocated t
warrants that we receive. This will generally result in “original issseadint” for tax purposes, which we must recognize as ordinary income,
increasing the amount that we are required to distribute to qualify for thelfederae tax benefits applicable to RICs. Because these we
would not produce distributable cash for us at the same time as we are required tlisinibkions in respect of the related original issue
discount, we would need to obtain cash from other sources or to pay a portion of our distrimitigrshares of newly issued common stock,
consistent with Internal Revenue Service requirements, to satisfy stributiisn requirements. If we are unable to obtain cash from other
sources and are otherwise unable to satisfy such distribution requirementsy fedl toagualify for the federal income tax benefits allowable
to RICs and, thus, become subject to a corporate-level income tax on all our income.
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Other features of the debt instruments that we hold may also cause suchan&rimgenerate an original issue discount, resulting in a
dividend distribution requirement in excess of current cash interest receinee.iscertain cases we may recognize income before or without
receiving cash representing such income, we may have difficulty meeting thexREQuaement to distribute at least 90% of our net ordinary
income and realized net short-term capital gains in excess of realizedgwéetm capital losses, if any. If we are unable to meet these
distribution requirements, we will not qualify for the federal income tax fisrsfowable to a RIC. Accordingly, we may have to sell some of
our assets, raise additional debt or equity capital or reduce new investmentiorigit@tneet these distribution requirements. See “ltem 1.
Business—Certain United States Federal Income Tax Considerations.”

There is a risk that you may not receive distributions or that our disttibns may not grow over time.

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly basis to our stockholders. We cannoy@ssheat we will achieve investment results, or
our business may not perform in a manner that will allow us to make a speacifiedfldistributions or year-to-year increases in cash
distributions. In addition, due to the asset coverage test applicable to us asasdsirelopment company, we may be limited in our ability to
make distributions. Also, our credit facility limits our ability to declangd#inds if we default under certain provisions.

If we are unable to manage our future growth effectively, we may be unabkchieve our investment objective, which could adversely
affect our financial condition and results of operations and cause the valueanirynvestment to decline.

Our ability to achieve our investment objective will depend on our ability to sustain g®ugtaining growth will depend, in turn, on
senior management team'’s ability to identify, evaluate, finance and investablsaiompanies that meet our investment criteria.
Accomplishing this result on a c-effective basis is largely a function of our marketing capabilities, our mareagef the investment
process, our ability to provide efficient services and our access to financingssonr@eceptable terms. Failure to manage our future growth
effectively could have a material adverse effect on our business, financigiaomdid results of operations.

Our quarterly and annual operating results are subject to fluctuationaasesult of the nature of our business, and if we fail to achieve
our investment objective, the net asset value of our common stock may declin

We could experience fluctuations in our quarterly and annual operating results dueribexr of factors, some of which are beyond our
control, including, but not limited to, the interest rate payable on the debt sedbatiege acquire, the default rate on such securities, the level
of our expenses, variations in and the timing of the recognition of realized and unredhzeat ¢@sses, the degree to which we encounter
competition in our markets and general economic conditions. As a result of thiesg, f@sults for any period should not be relied upon as
being indicative of performance in future periods.

In addition, any of these factors could negatively impact our ability to achieve ounievegibjectives, which may cause our net asset
value of our common stock to decline.

Fluctuations in interest rates may adversely affect our profitability.

A portion of our income will depend upon the difference between the rate at which we flamds and the interest rate on the debt
securities in which we invest. Because we will borrow money to make investmentst imwesament income is dependent upon the difference
between the rate at which we borrow funds and the rate at which we invesutidseTiypically, we anticipate that our interest-earning
investments will accrue and pay interest at both variable and fixed rates, and thetrest-bearing liabilities will accrue interest at variable
rates. As a result, there can be no assurance that a significant change innteaidsttrates will not have a material adverse effect on our net
investment income. We anticipate using a combination of equity and long-term and shdrb#ie@wings to finance our investment activities.
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A significant increase in market interest rates could harm our ability &wttiew portfolio companies and originate new loans and
investments. We expect that most of our current initial investments in debitissowill be at floating rate with a floor. However, in the event
that we make investments in debt securities at variable rates, a signific@ase in market interest rates could also result in an increase in our
non-performing assets and a decrease in the value of our portfolio because ag-fatatloan portfolio companies may be unable to meet
higher payment obligations. In periods of rising interest rates, our cost of funds woeakkaesulting in a decrease in our net investment
income. In addition, a decrease in interest rates may reduce net inconusehe®a investments may be made at lower rates despite the
increased demand for our capital that the decrease in interest rates thasepiWe may, but will not be required to, hedge against the risk of
adverse movement in interest rates in our short-term and long-term borroglatgerto our portfolio of assets. If we engage in hedging
activities, it may limit our ability to participate in the benefits of loweeiest rates with respect to the hedged portfolio. Adverse developments
resulting from changes in interest rates or hedging transactions could have al mdverise effect on our business, financial condition, and
results of operations.

Our cost of borrowing is increased by the warrant participation agreement weshvaith one of our lenders. In addition, our realized
gains are reduced by amounts paid pursuant to the warrant participation agreement.

Citigroup has an equity participation right through a warrant participatioeragre on the pool of loans and certain warrants
collateralized under the Citigroup Facility. Pursuant to the warrant peatiisn agreement, we granted to Citigroup a 10% participation in all
warrants held as collateral. As a result, Citigroup is entitled to 10% ofdliseicgains on certain warrants until the realized gains paid to
Citigroup pursuant to the agreement equals $3,750,000 (the “Maximum Participatior).LTiné"obligations under the warrant participation
agreement continue even after the Citigroup Facility is terminated untillétiximum Participation Limit has been reached.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company reduced its realized gain by approximately $2&5t{@00uUp’s
participation in the gain on sale of equity securities and recorded a decreastcgapan liability and increased its unrealized gains by a net
amount of approximately $143,000 for Citigroup’s participation. Since inception of the agieemédave paid Citigroup approximately
$970,000 under the warrant participation agreement thereby reducing our realizechgaiditidn, our realized gains will be reduced by the
amounts owed to Citigroup under the warrant participation agreement. The valugrou@is participation right on unrealized gains in the
related equity investments since inception of the agreement was approximately $48B@6&naber 31, 2008 and is included in accrued
liabilities and increased the unrealized gain recognized by us at December 31, 2668uCstirights under the warrant participation
agreement increase our cost of borrowing and reduce our realized gains.

Itis likely that the terms of any long-term or revolving credit or waretseufacility we may enter into in the future could constrain our
ability to grow our business.

On August 25, 2008, we entered into the Wells Facility, a two-year revolving senior seeudlieéacility with an optional one-year
extension with initial commitments of $50 million at closing. The Wells Fadibs the capacity to increase to $300 million if additional
lenders are added to the lending syndicate. See Note 3 to our consolidated financiahttatesrof December 31, 2008, we didn’t have
outstanding borrowings under the Wells Facility.

As of December 31, 2008, we have not added any additional lenders under the Wells Remwlitghaf the credit markets re-open we
intend to do so in the future. Due to current credit conditions as a result of treéaecesr cost of borrowing may increase with the additic
additional lenders under the Wells Facility. The current lenders have, and anydntigeor lenders will have fixed dollar claims on our a:
that are senior to the claims of our stockholders and, thus, will have a prefevenceir stockholders with respect to our assets in the col
pool. In addition, we may grant a security interest in our assets in connection with any
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such borrowing. We expect such a facility to contain customary default provisions suofirasium net worth amount, a profitability test,

a restriction on changing our business and loan quality standards. An event of defaulhyrdediafacility would likely result, among other
things, in termination of the availability of further funds under that facility analcaelerated maturity date for all amounts outstanding under
the facility, which would likely disrupt our business and, potentially, the business méttfielio companies whose loans that we financed
through the facility. This could reduce our revenues and, by delaying any cash payment allesvedder our facility until the lender has b
paid in full, reduce our liquidity and cash flow and impair our ability to grow our busindssiaintain our status as a RIC.

Our $135 million Credit Facility with Citigroup and Deutsche Bank terminated aob@cB1, 2008. See Note 3 to our consolidated
financial statements. As a result, all subsequent payments received frpartfbko companies whose debt is included in the collateral pool
will be applied against interest and principal outstanding under the CretlityRattil April 30, 2009, when all outstanding interest and
principal are due and payable.

The terms of future available financing may place limits on our financial andtopefliexibility. If we are unable to obtain sufficient
capital in the future, we may:

« be forced to reduce or discontinue our operati
¢ not be able to expand or acquire complementary businesse
* not be able to develop new services or otherwise respond to changing business conditiomettive pressure

Amortization of our Credit Facility may negatively affect our net asselue and ability to pay dividends.

Our Credit Facility entered its amortization period effective October 31, 200Bigxthe amortization period, all proceeds from our
pledged investments will be used to reduce the outstanding borrowings under the Cilgglit®ad\pril 30, 2009, all remaining outstanding
borrowings under the Credit Facility will become due and payable. As a result@htheslatory repayments, our investment portfolio began
to de-lever commencing with the first payment of proceeds from our collaterabpdolvill continue to be significantly deleveraged unless we
are able to add additional lenders under the Wells Facility or secure antgheatale source of financing. Given the unfavorable conditions in
the credit markets, there is no guarantee that we will be able to secuienaflfinancing in the immediate future, or if we are able to obtain
financing, that the terms of such financing will be commensurate with the eéiims Credit Facility. Because our ability to generate net
investment income is based, in part, on the use of relatively inexpensive debnfinaveiiable to us, the amortization of the Credit Facility
may have a negative effect on our net asset value and our ability to generate net imiviestrme (even if our portfolio does not suffer any
adverse credit events) and may reduce our ability to pay dividends in the future.

In addition to regulatory restrictions that restrict our ability to raiseygital, the Wells Facility contains various covenants which, if not
complied with, could accelerate repayment under the facility, thereby radhg and adversely affecting our liquidity, financial conditior
results of operations and ability to pay dividends.

The credit agreement governing the Wells Facility requires us to complyerittircfinancial and operational covenants. These
covenants require us to, among other things, maintain certain financial ratioding@sset coverage, debt to equity and interest coverage, and
a minimum tangible net worth of $360 million. As of December 31, 2008, we were in compli@mtbese covenants. However, our ability to
continue to comply with these covenants in the future depends on many factors, soneh @frevbeyond our control. For example, during the
quarter ended December 31, 2008, as a result of depreciation of the fair value of aoreiniseour net worth declined to $382 million.
Accordingly, there are no assurances that we will be able to comply with theseots: Failure to comply with these covenants would r
in a default which, if
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we were unable to obtain a waiver from the lenders, could accelerate erggayrder the facilities and thereby have a material adverse impact
on our liquidity, financial condition, results of operations and ability to pay dividends.

If we cannot obtain additional capital because of either regulatory or market pdoestraints, we could be forced to curtail or cease our
new lending and investment activities, our net asset value could @serand our level of distributions and liquidity could be affected
adversely.

The current economic and capital markets conditions in the U.S. have severelyl rehitad availability. Reflecting concern about the
stability of the financial markets, many lenders and institutional investors édweed or ceased providing funding to borrowers. This market
turmoil and tightening of credit have led to increased market volatility and pvieies reduction of business activity generally.

Our ability to secure additional financing and satisfy our financial obligatiorsr umdebtedness outstanding from time to time will
depend upon our future operating performance, which is subject to the prevailing generaleaadarredit market conditions, including
interest rate levels and the availability of credit generally, and fiakrisiness and other factors, many of which are beyond our control. The
prolonged continuation or worsening of current economic and capital market conditions coudchiategial adverse effect on our ability to
secure financing on favorable terms, if at all.

As of December 31, 2008, we had no outstanding borrowings under the Wells Facility and $1@h2indtr SBA debenture and $5
million available borrowing capacity under these facilities. Our Creditifyatlerminated on October 31, 2008 and all subsequent payments
received from the portfolio companies whose debt is included in the collateral idm# applied against interest and principal outstanding
under the Credit Facility until April 30, 2009, when all outstanding interest and prinagpadliarand payable. As of December 31, 2008, we
had $89.6 million outstanding under the Credit Facility.

As of December 31, 2008, we have been unable to secure additional lenders under ouadilisl)saRd the amount of borrowing
capacity available to us has been significantly reduced as a result oftireateam of the Credit Facility. There can be no assurance that we
will be successful in obtaining any additional debt capital on terms acceptablertatwa!l. If we are unable to obtain debt capital, then our
equity investors will not benefit from the potential for increased returns on egsititing from leverage to the extent that our investment
strategy is successful and we may be limited in our ability to make new commtstardundings to our portfolio companies.

One of our wholly-owned subsidiaries is licensed by the U.S. Small BusiAdssinistration, and as a result, we will be subject to SBA
regulations.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary HT Il is licensed to act as a small business invésongpany and is regulated by the SBA. Under current
SBA regulations, a licensed SBIC can provide capital to those entities that taangbde net worth not exceeding $18.0 million and an avt
annual net income after Federal income taxes not exceeding $6.0 million for thesiveaent fiscal years. In addition, a licensed SBIC must
devote 20.0% of its investment activity to those entities that have a tangiblentieinat exceeding $6.0 million and an average annual net
income after Federal income taxes not exceeding $2.0 million for the two mattfiscal years. The SBA regulations also provide alternative
size standard criteria to determine eligibility, which depend on the industry ih w@dusiness is engaged and are based on factors such as
the number of employees and gross sales. The SBA regulations permit licenSsddBhke long term loans to small businesses, invest
equity securities of such businesses and provide them with consulting and advigogess&he SBA also places certain limitations on the
financing terms of investments by SBICs in portfolio companies and prohibits SBIEgpfoviding funds for certain purposes or to busine
in a few prohibited industries. Compliance with SBA requirements may causlet¢ifbrego attractive investment opportunities that are not
permitted under SBA regulations.
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Further, the SBA regulations require that a licensed SBIC be periodicathyreediand audited by the SBA to determine its compliance
with the relevant SBA regulations. The SBA prohibits, without prior SBA approvahange of control” of an SBIC or transfers that would
result in any person (or a group of persons acting in concert) owning 10.0% or more sfcd cégstal stock of a licensed SBIC. If HT Il fails
to comply with applicable SBA regulations, the SBA could, depending on the severityadli®n, limit or prohibit HT II's use of
debentures, declare outstanding debentures immediately due and payable, and/orllifn@griihaking new investments. Such actions by the
SBA would, in turn, negatively affect us because HT Il is our wholly owned subsidiary.

If we are unable to satisfy Code requirements for qualification as a RI@rthve will be subject to corporate-level income tax, which
would adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We elected to be treated as a RIC for federal income tax purposes witmtheffitiur federal corporate income tax return for 2006. We
will not qualify for the tax treatment allowable to RICs if we are unable to gomith the source of income, diversification and distribution
requirements contained in Subchapter M of the Code, or if we fail to maintairectiorelto be regulated as a business development company
under the 1940 Act. If we fail to qualify for the federal income tax benefits allewaliRICs for any reason and remain or become subject to a
corporate-level income tax, the resulting taxes could substantially reduce owatst thee amount of income available for distribution to our
stockholders and the actual amount of our distributions. Such a failure would haveial mdwerse effect on us, the net asset value of our
common stock and the total return, if any, obtainable from your investment in our common stockt dpsraigng losses that we incur in
periods during which we qualify as a RIC will not offset net capital gains (itereakzed long-term capital gains in excess of net realized
short-term capital losses) that we are otherwise required to distridnd we cannot pass such net operating losses through to our stockholders.
In addition, net operating losses that we carry over to a taxable year in which we qualRf@ normally cannot offset ordinary income or
capital gains.

Changes in laws or regulations governing our business could negatively affecprofitability of our operations.

Changes in the laws or regulations, or the interpretations of the laws andioegulahich govern business development companies,
small business investment companies, RICs or non-depository commercial lemddrsignificantly affect our operations and our cost of
doing business. We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulatiares argect to judicial and administrative decisions that affect
our operations, including our loan originations, maximum interest rates, fees anchatigessc disclosures to portfolio companies, the terms of
secured transactions, collection and foreclosure procedures, and other tctidesprié these laws, regulations or decisions change, or if we
expand our business into jurisdictions that have adopted more stringent requiremehisstnamwhich we currently conduct business, then
we may have to incur significant expenses in order to comply or we may have to resope@tions. In addition, if we do not comply with
applicable laws, regulations and decisions, then we may lose licenses neededdmduct of our business and be subject to civil fines and
criminal penalties, any of which could have a material adverse effect upon medsusisults of operations or financial condition.

Results may fluctuate and may not be indicative of future performance

Our operating results may fluctuate and, therefore, you should not rely on current acdliptnind results to be indicative of our
performance in future reporting periods. Factors that could cause operatingteeButtiate include, but are not limited to, variations in the
investment origination volume and fee income earned, changes in the accrual statukebf mwestments, variations in timing of
prepayments, variations in and the timing of the recognition of net realized géisses and changes in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation, the level of our expenses, the degree to which we encounter compatitiomarkets, and general economic conditions.
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Risks Related to Our Investments

Our investments are concentrated in certain industries and in a tedinumber of technologyelated companies, which subjects us to
risk of significant loss if any of these companies default on their obligaiamder any of their debt securities that we hold, or if any of
the technology-related industry sectors experience a downturn.

We have invested and intend to continue investing in a limited number of technoldgg-oelmpanies. A consequence of this limited
number of investments is that the aggregate returns we realize may bieaigigifidversely affected if a small number of investments perform
poorly or if we need to write down the value of any one investment. Beyond the asset datemsifequirements to which we will be subject
as a RIC, we do not have fixed guidelines for diversification or limitations onziefsour investments in any one portfolio company and our
investments could be concentrated in relatively few issuers. In addition, we fi@stethin and intend to continue investing, under normal
circumstances, at least 80% of the value of our total assets (including the aframunborrowings for investment purposes) in technology-
related companies. As of December 31, 2008, approximately 57.2% of the fair value of aliopeas composed of investments in four
industries: 20.3% was composed of investments in the communications and networking ia@u8¥ywas composed of investments in the
software industry; 12.1% was composed of investments in the drug discovery industt@;3dvas composed of investments in the
information services industries. As a result, a downturn in technology-retatestiy sectors and particularly those in which we are heavily
concentrated could materially adversely affect our financial condition.

Our investments may be concentrated in portfolio companies which may haviteti operating histories and financial resources.

We expect that our portfolio will continue to consist of investments that may hatreelglémited operating histories. These companies
may be particularly vulnerable to economic downturns such as the current recesgibayemore limited access to capital and higher
funding costs, may have a weaker financial position and may need more capital to exggangeaie. These businesses also may experience
substantial variations in operating results. They may face intense competitiodirigdrom companies with greater financial, technical and
marketing resources. Furthermore, some of these companies do business ted-éullatries and could be affected by changes in goveri
regulation. Accordingly, these factors could impair their cash flow or resather events, such as bankruptcy, which could limit their ability
to repay their obligations to us, and may adversely affect the return on, or the recpueanjfestment in these companies. We cannot assure
you that any of our investments in our portfolio companies will be successful. Our pactiolpanies compete with larger, more established
companies with greater access to, and resources for, further development irethésehnologies. We may lose our entire investment in any
or all of our portfolio companies.

Our investment strategy focuses on technology-related companies, wheBarject to many risks, including volatility, intense
competition, shortened product life cycles and periodic downturns, and you caslel &ll or part of your investment.

We have invested and will continue investing primarily in technology-related corsparaay of which may have narrow product lines
and small market shares, which tend to render them more vulnerable to compmtiiorss and market conditions, as well as to general
economic downturns. The revenues, income (or losses), and valuations of technotegyctetgpanies can and often do fluctuate suddenly
and dramatically. In addition, technology-related markets are generally chaegttey abrupt business cycles and intense competition.
Beginning in mid-2000, there was substantial excess production capacity and a sigsiiwdotvn in many technology-related industries.
This overcapacity, together with a cyclical economic downturn, resulted in sudistiaeteases in the market capitalization of many
technology-related companies. While such valuations have recovered to some estet¢,cseases in market capitalization may occur again,
and any
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future decreases in technology-related company valuations may be substantiay ayod lbeatemporary in nature. Therefore, our portfolio
companies may face considerably more risk of loss than do companies in other indtistsy se

Because of rapid technological change, the average selling prices of products asdrsaras provided by technology-related
companies have historically decreased over their productive lives. As a tesalterage selling prices of products and services offered by
technology-related companies may decrease over time, which could adverselthaffesperating results, their ability to meet obligations
under their debt securities and the value of their equity securities. This coulah, im&aterially adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We have invested in and may continue investing in technology-relatedoemnes that do not have venture capital or private equity firms
as equity investors, and these companies may entail a higher risk of logsdbaompanies with institutional equity investors, which
could increase the risk of loss of your investment.

Our portfolio companies will often require substantial additional equity fingrtci satisfy their continuing working capital and other
cash requirements and, in most instances, to service the interest and prineipaitgaon our investment. Portfolio companies that do not have
venture capital or private equity investors may be unable to raise any additjoited| toesatisfy their obligations or to raise sufficient
additional capital to reach the next stage of development. Portfolio companies tiwthdive venture capital or private equity investors m
less financially sophisticated and may not have access to independent merabers tm their boards, which means that they may be less
successful than portfolio companies sponsored by venture capital or private eoustyAtcordingly, financing these types of companies may
entail a higher risk of loss than would financing companies that are sponsored by wapitaieor private equity firms.

Price declines and illiquidity in the corporate debt markets could adveraéigct the fair value of our portfolio investments, reducing ¢
net asset value through increased net unrealized depreciation.

As a BDC, we are required to carry our investments at market value or, if no madeeisvascertainable, at fair market value as
determined in good faith by or under the direction of our board of directors. As part of théonghuacess, we may take into account the
following types of factors, if relevant, in determining the fair value of our invests: the enterprise value of a portfolio company (an estimate
of the total fair value of the portfolio company’s debt and equity), the nature armhbbaNalue of any collateral, the portfolio company’s
ability to make payments and its earnings and discounted cash flow, the markets irhe/picttfolio company does business, a comparison of
the portfolio company’s securities to publicly traded securities, changes in ttesimtte environment and the credit markets generally that
may affect the price at which similar investments may be made in the futurehanded¢vant factors. When an external event such as a
purchase transaction, public offering or subsequent equity sale occurs, we userthénglicated by the external event to corroborate our
valuation. Decreases in the market values or fair values of our investememézorded as unrealized depreciation. The continuing
unprecedented declines in prices and liquidity in the capital markets have resstieteinet unrealized depreciation in our portfolio. As of
December 31, 2008, conditions in the public and private debt and equity markets had contineetbtatdeind pricing levels continued to
decline. As a result, in the future, depending on market conditions, we could incur substdizéal lesses and may suffer substantial
unrealized depreciation in future periods, which could have a material adversé ampar business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Economic recessions or downturns could impair the ability of our portfolio @anies to repay loans, which, in turn, could increase our
non-performing assets, decrease the value of our portfolio, reduce our voloinmew loans and harm our operating results, which might
have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

The U.S. and most other markets have entered into a period of recession. Many of dio pontfoanies may be susceptible to
economic slowdowns or recessions and may be unable to repay our loans during such
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periods. Therefore, our non-performing assets are likely to increase and thefhalugortfolio is likely to decrease during such periods.
There were four loans on non-accrual status as of December 31, 2008 with a fair vpprexifreately $864,000. There were no loans on non-
accrual status as of December 31, 2007. Adverse economic conditions also may tleeneslse of collateral securing some of our loans and
the value of our equity investments. Economic slowdowns or recessions could lead talflnases in our portfolio and a decrease in
revenues, net income and assets. Unfavorable economic conditions also could incrizaskngucosts, limit our access to the capital markets
or result in a decision by lenders not to extend credit to us.

A portfolio company'’s failure to satisfy financial or operating covenants ingpmgels or other lenders could lead to defaults and,
potentially, termination of the portfolio company’s loans and foreclosure orciiseskassets, which could trigger cross-defaults under other
agreements and jeopardize the portfolio company’s ability to meet its otntigatnder the debt securities that we hold. We may incur expenses
to the extent necessary to seek recovery upon default or to negotiate new terandefathlting portfolio company. In addition, if a portfolio
company goes bankrupt, even though we may have structured our investment as senior debt or Isgdepdnding on the facts and
circumstances, including the extent to which we actually provided significzamidgerial assistance,” if any, to that portfolio company, a
bankruptcy court might re-characterize our debt holding and subordinate all or a podiorciaim to that of other creditors. These events
could harm our financial condition and operating results.

We do not control our portfolio companies. These portfolio companies may face irdernsetidon, including competition from
companies with greater financial resources, more extensive research and denglapanufacturing, marketing and service capabilities and
greater number of qualified and experienced managerial and technical personnelaymeethadditional financing which they are unable to
secure and which we are unable or unwilling to provide, or they may be subject to advergentevisl unrelated to the technologies they
acquire.

Any unrealized losses we experience on our investment portfolio may bedication of future realized losses, which could reduce our
income available for distribution.

As a BDC, we are required to carry our investments at market value or, if no madeeisvascertainable, at fair value as determined in
good faith by or under the direction of our Board of Directors. Decreases in the maunkstmefair values of our investments will be recorded
as unrealized depreciation. Any unrealized losses in our investment portfolio caurdriacation of a portfolio company’s inability to meet
its repayment obligations to us with respect to the affected investmentsotiligesult in realized losses in the future and ultimately in
reductions of our income available for distribution in future periods.

A continuing lack of initial public offering opportunities may cause compasi® stay in our portfolio longer, leading to lower returns,
unrealized depreciation, or realized losses.

Beginning in about 2001, fewer venture capital-backed companies per annum have been ablete icatmappublic offerings (“IPOs”)
than in the years of the previous decade. For the year ended December 31, 2008, only 7 ventrac&egitzompanies completed IPOs in
the United States according to Dow Jones Venture Source. Moreover, in 2008, according to Joa&oMenture Source, the venture capital-
backed companies that completed IPOs had a median age of about 8.3 years, which wesdldentedian age of venture capital-backed
IPOs in any period since 2001-2002. Now that some of our companies are becoming more mattinejragdack of IPO opportunities for
venture capital-backed companies could lead to companies staying longer in ouropastfoivate entities still requiring funding. This
situation may adversely affect the amount of available funding for early-siageaaies in particular as, in general, venture-capital firms are
being forced to provide additional financing to late-stage companies that cannot canpR® In the best case, such stagnation would
dampen returns, and in the worst case, could lead to unrealized depreciation aed lesdes as some companies run short of cash and
accept lower valuations in private fundings or are not able to access additiotedlategdl. A continuing lack of IPO opportunities for venture
capital-backed companies is
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also causing some venture capital firms to change their strategies, Isaniagf them to reduce funding of their portfolio companies and
making it more difficult for such companies to access capital and to fulfitl ghé&éntial, which can result in unrealized depreciation and
realized losses in such companies by other companies such as ourselves who aréoceimgesh companies.

To the extent venture capital or private equity firms decrease or disnaetfunding to their portfolio companies, our portfolio compan
may not be able to meet their obligations under the debt securities that W& ho

Most of our portfolio companies rely heavily on future rounds of funding from venture capitalategrquity firms in order to continue
operating their businesses and repaying their obligations to us under the debt s¢katitiee hold. Venture capital and private equity firms in
turn rely on their limited partners to pay in capital over time in order to fund theirr@ngod future investment activities.

To the extent that venture capital and private equity firms’ limited partnetmatse to fulfill their ongoing funding obligations, the
venture capital or private equity firms may be unable to continue financially singpibre ongoing operations of our portfolio companies. As a
result, our portfolio companies may be unable to repay their obligations under the debiesebat we hold, which would harm our financial
condition and results of operations.

If the assets securing the loans that we make decrease in value, thenawedark sufficient collateral to cover losses.

We believe that our portfolio companies generally will be able to repay our laangtfeir available capital, from future capital-raising
transactions, or from cash flow from operations. However, to attempt to mitigadit risks, we will typically take a security interest in the
available assets of these portfolio companies, including the equity interéis¢é sfubsidiaries and, in some cases, the equity interests of our
portfolio companies held by their stockholders. In many cases, our loans will includecagiénterest-only payments. There is a risk that the
collateral securing our loans may decrease in value over time, may be diffi@lltitosstimely manner, may be difficult to appraise and may
fluctuate in value based upon the success of the business and market conditionsgiasladiesult of the inability of a portfolio company to
raise additional capital. In some circumstances, our lien could be subordinatech®aflather creditors. Additionally, deterioration in a
portfolio company’s financial condition and prospects, including its inability e radditional capital, may be accompanied by deterioration in
the value of the collateral for the loan. Moreover, in the case of some of ourretdudélpt with warrants, we may not have a first lien position
on the collateral. Consequently, the fact that a loan is secured does not guhednteenill receive principal and interest payments according
to the loan’s terms, or that we will be able to collect on the loan should we be tomeirce our remedies. In addition, because we invest in
technology-related companies, a substantial portion of the assets securing onranvesy be in the form of intellectual property, if any,
inventory and equipment and, to a lesser extent, cash and accounts receivableusitettgzerty, if any, that is securing our loan could lose
value if, among other things, the company’s rights to the intellectual property demgkdlor if the company’s license to the intellectual
property is revoked or expires. Inventory may not be adequate to secure our loan if our valuh&anweitory at the time that we made the
loan was not accurate or if there is a reduction in the demand for the inventory.

Similarly, any equipment securing our loan may not provide us with the anticipateiysiéthere are changes in technology or
advances in new equipment that render the particular equipment obsolete oreof Viahiie, or if the company fails to adequately maintain or
repair the equipment. Any one or more of the preceding factors could materially dapability to recover principal in a foreclosure.

39

file://c:\WINNT\Profiles\hallers\Desktop\2009 -k hercules.htr 5/10/201(



Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, - Page42 of 14C

Table of Contents

The economic recession and future downturns or recessions coufghinthe value of the collateral for our loans to our portfolio
companies and consequently increase the possibility of an adverse effentrdimancial condition and results of operations.

Many of our portfolio companies are susceptible to the current economic recesdioray be unable to repay our loans during such
periods. Therefore, our non-performing assets are likely to increase and thefalugortfolio is likely to decrease during such periods.
Adverse economic conditions may also decrease the value of collateral secugnof ®amloans and the value of our equity investm

In particular, intellectual property owned or controlled by our portfolio companies tab@stan important portion of the value of the
collateral of our loans to our portfolio companies. Adverse economic conditions maggietne demand for our portfolio companies’
intellectual property and consequently its value in the event of a bankruptcy or reqlérdadeugh a foreclosure proceeding. As a result, our
ability to fully recover the amounts owed to us under the terms of the loans may hedhiyasuch events.

Economic slowdowns or recessions could lead to financial losses in our portfoli@aockase in revenues, net income and assets.
Unfavorable economic conditions also could increase our funding costs, limit essdcdhe capital markets or result in a decision by lenders
not to extend credit to us.

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financial or operating covenants ingpmgels or other lenders could lead to defaults and,
potentially, termination of the portfolio company’s loans and foreclosure orciiseskassets, which could trigger cross-defaults under other
agreements and jeopardize the portfolio company’s ability to meet its otntigatnder the debt securities that we hold. We may incur expenses
to the extent necessary to seek recovery upon default or to negotiate new terandefathlting portfolio company. In addition, if a portfolio
company goes bankrupt, even though we may have structured our investment as senior debt or lsgdepdnding on the facts and
circumstances, including the extent to which we actually provided significzamidgerial assistance,” if any, to that portfolio company, a
bankruptcy court might re-characterize our debt holding and subordinate all or a podiorciaim to that of other creditors. These events
could harm our financial condition and operating results.

We do not control our portfolio companies. These portfolio companies may face irdernsetidon, including competition from
companies with greater financial resources, more extensive research and denglapanufacturing, marketing and service capabilities and
greater number of qualified and experienced managerial and technical personnelaymeethadditional financing which they are unable to
secure and which we are unable or unwilling to provide, or they may be subject to advergentevisl unrelated to the technologies they
acquire.

The inability of our portfolio companies to commercialize their technolay@ create or develop commercially viable products or
businesses would have a negative impact on our investment returns.

The possibility that our portfolio companies will not be able to commercidléetechnology, products or business concepts presents
significant risks to the value of our investment. Additionally, although some of our ppdéohpanies may already have a commercially
successful product or product line when we invest, technology-related products acessgitein have a more limited market- or life-span than
have products in other industries. Thus, the ultimate success of these comtanidem#nds on their ability to continually innovate, or raise
additional capital, in increasingly competitive markets. Their inability toodwsld affect our investment return. In addition, the intellectual
property held by our portfolio companies often represents a substantial portion ofdtexaioif any, securing our investments. We cannot
assure you that any of our portfolio companies will successfully acquire or developratecheologies, or that the intellectual property the
companies currently hold will remain viable. Even if our portfolio companies azd@bevelop commercially viable products, the market for
new products and services is highly competitive and rapidly changing. Neither our podfopardes nor we have any control over the pa
technology development. Commercial success is difficult to predict, and thetimguéd®orts of our portfolio companies may not be succes
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An investment strategy focused primarily on privately-held companiesents certain challenges, including the lack of available
information about these companies, a dependence on the talents and effortsyadelv key portfolio company personnel and a greater
vulnerability to economic downturns.

We invest primarily in privately-held companies. Generally, very little ipubformation exists about these companies, and we are
required to rely on the ability of our management team to obtain adequate informatioluabeciee potential returns from investing in these
companies. If we are unable to uncover all material information about theseniespplaen we may not make a fully informed investment
decision, and we may not receive the expected return on our investment or lose sbofettoe aloney invested in these companies. Also,
privately-held companies frequently have less diverse product lines and a snaalet presence than do larger competitors. Privately-held
companies are, thus, generally more vulnerable to economic downturns and may experierstdstantial variations in operating results 1
do larger competitors. These factors could affect our investment returns.

In addition, our success depends, in large part, upon the abilities of the key managesoanepef our portfolio companies, who are
responsible for the day-to-day operations of our portfolio companies. Competition fifieduzrsonnel is intense at any stage of a company’s
development, and high turnover of personnel is common in technology-related companies. Theness afiore key managers can hinder or
delay a company’s implementation of its business plan and harm its financialarar@ditr portfolio companies may not be able to attract and
retain qualified managers and personnel. Any inability to do so may negatively impactestmient returns.

If our portfolio companies are unable to protect their intellectual propertghts, then our business and prospects could be harmed. If
our portfolio companies are required to devote significant resources to ptioigctheir intellectual property rights, then the value of our
investment could be reduced.

Our future success and competitive position depend in part upon the ability of our portfglianéesrto obtain and maintain proprietary
technology used in their products and services, which will often represent a sigmufidzon of the collateral, if any, securing our investment.
The portfolio companies will rely, in part, on patent, trade secret and trademvark paotect that technology, but competitors may
misappropriate their intellectual property, and disputes as to ownershieltgfdntal property may arise. Portfolio companies may, from time
to time, be required to institute litigation in order to enforce their patents, ghps/or other intellectual property rights, to protect their trade
secrets, to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of othededend against claims of infringement. Such litigation could
result in substantial costs and diversion of resources. Similarly, if a portfoiipany is found to infringe upon or misappropriate a third arty’
patent or other proprietary rights, that portfolio company could be required to pay damageshadyarty, alter its own products or
processes, obtain a license from the third party and/or cease activit@sgislich proprietary rights, including making or selling products
utilizing such proprietary rights. Any of the foregoing events could negatively affecthgofiottfolio company’s ability to service our debt
investment and the value of any related debt and equity securities that we owrn aassanglcollateral securing our investment.

We may not be able to realize our entire investment on equipment-based lodhs tase of default.

We may from time-to-time provide loans that will be collateralized only by eqnpof the portfolio company. If the portfolio company
defaults on the loan we would take possession of the underlying equipment to satisfytémelimgtslebt. The residual value of the equipment
at the time we would take possession may not be sufficient to satisfy the datgtdelot and we could experience a loss on the disposition of
the equipment.

Our investments in foreign securities may involve significargks in addition to the risks inherent in U.S. investments.

Our investment strategy contemplates that a portion of our investments may triiieseof foreign companies. Investing in foreign
companies may expose us to additional risks not typically associated with
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investing in U.S. companies. These risks include changes in exchange control regulattarad,gol social instability, expropriation,
imposition of foreign taxes, less liquid markets and less available informhainris generally the case in the U.S., higher transaction cos
government supervision of exchanges, brokers and issuers, less developed bankruptcyitaltg,idiénforcing contractual obligations, lack
of uniform accounting and auditing standards and greater price volatility.

Some of our portfolio companies may need additional capital, which may not be readdilable.

Our portfolio companies will often require substantial additional equity fingrtci satisfy their continuing working capital and other
requirements, and in most instances to service the interest and principahpggm our investment. Each round of venture financing is
typically intended to provide a company with only enough capital to reach the next stagdagmene We cannot predict the circumstances
or market conditions under which our portfolio companies will seek additional cadpiggbossible that one or more of our portfolio compa
will not be able to raise additional financing or may be able to do so only at a price or smtéarorable to us, either of which would
negatively impact our investment returns. Some of these companies may be aioldéntsufficient financing from private investors, public
capital markets or traditional lenders. Accordingly, financing these types of n@apaay entail a higher risk of loss than would financing
companies that are able to utilize traditional credit sources.

We may be unable or decide not to make additional cash investments in our portiothpanies which could result in our losing our
initial investment if the portfolio company fails.

We may have to make additional cash investments in our portfolio companies to protearailliinvestment value in the particular
company. We retain the discretion to make any additional investments as our managtsmairiate The failure to make such additional
investments may jeopardize the continued viability of a portfolio company, and deir(anitd subsequent) investments. Moreover, additional
investments may limit the number of companies in which we can make initialrirergst In determining whether to make an additional
investment our management will exercise its business judgment and apply shitélda to those used when making the initial investment. We
cannot assure you that we will have sufficient funds to make any necessary additiestahéents, which could adversely affect our succes
result in the loss of a substantial portion or all of our investment in a portfolio cgmpa

If our investments do not meet our performance expectations, you may noivedéstributions.

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly basis to our stockholders. We may not beaabievte operating results that will allow
us to make distributions at a specific level or to increase the amount of thabeitibsis from time to time. In addition, due to the asset
coverage test applicable to us as a business development company, we may be limiteaility aamaake distributions. See “Regulation.”
Also, restrictions and provisions in any future credit facilities may lomitability to make distributions. As a RIC, if we do not distribu
certain percentage of our income annually, we will suffer adverse tax consequreiads)g failure to obtain, or possible loss of, the federal
income tax benefits allowable to RICs. See “ltem 1. Business—CertdiedBiiates Federal Income Tax Considerations—Taxation as a
Regulated Investment Company.” We cannot assure you that you will receivieutisii$ at a particular level or at all.

Any unrealized depreciation that we experience on our loan portfolio magbéndication of future realized losses, which could reduce
our income available for distribution.

As a business development company, we are required to carry our investments avahegkat if no market value is ascertainable, at
the fair value as determined in good faith by our Board of Directors in accordanceaeitdyres approved by our Board of Directors.
Decreases in the market values or fair values of our investments wéittreled as unrealized depreciation. Any unrealized depreciation in our
loan portfolio could be an indication of a portfolio companiyability to meet its repayment obligations to us with respect to the affleetes
This could result in realized losses in the future and ultimately in reductians ofcome available for distribution in future periods.
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The lack of liquidity in our investments may adversely affect our businasd, if we need to sell any of our investments, we may not be
able to do so at a favorable price. As a result, we may suffer losses.

We generally invest in debt securities with terms of up to seven years and hold sstthémt® until maturity, and we do not expect that
our related holdings of equity securities will provide us with liquidity opporturiitiéise near-term. We invest and expect to continue investing
in companies whose securities have no established trading market and whoesaceiiand will be subject to legal and other restrictions on
resale or whose securities are and will be less liquid than are pubdidsd securities. The illiquidity of these investments may make it di
for us to sell these investments when desired. In addition, if we are requireddatéaall or a portion of our portfolio quickly, we may realize
significantly less than the value at which we had previously recorded these invesfsentesult, we do not expect to achieve liquidity in our
investments in the near-term. However, to maintain our qualification as a bud#vesspment company and as a RIC, we may have to dispose
of investments if we do not satisfy one or more of the applicable criteria undesfiestive regulatory frameworks. Our investments are
usually subject to contractual or legal restrictions on resale, or arevigddiiquid, because there is usually no established trading market for
such investments. The illiquidity of most of our investments may make it difficulisfto dispose of the investments at a favorable price and,
as a result, we may suffer losses.

Our portfolio companies may incur debt that ranks equally with, or senior ta; imwestments in such companies.

We invest primarily in debt securities issued by our portfolio companies. In soes pesfolio companies will be permitted to have
other debt that ranks equally with, or senior to, the debt securities in which we Buwes debt instruments may provide that the holders
thereof are entitled to receive payment of interest or principal on or lbfodates on which we are entitled to receive payments in respect of
the debt securities in which we invest. Also, in the event of insolvency, liquidatisaludien, reorganization or bankruptcy of a portfolio
company, holders of debt instruments ranking senior to our investment in that portfolio compahtypioally be entitled to receive payment
in full before we receive any distribution in respect of our investment. After regpawich senior creditors, such portfolio company might not
have any remaining assets to use for repaying its obligation to us. In the case of debegueiggvith debt securities in which we invest,
would have to share on a pari passu basis any distributions with other creditors holdingsircthdeevent of an insolvency, liquidation,
dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy. In addition, we would not be in a position to control olyopoompany by investing in its debt
securities. As a result, we are subject to the risk that a portfolio companycim wiinvest may make business decisions with which we
disagree and the management of such companies, as representatives of thefliblecommon equity, may take risks or otherwise act in
ways that do not best serve our interests as debt investors.

Our equity related investments are highly speculative, and we may radizezegains from these investments. If our equity investments do
not generate gains, then the return on our invested capital will be loweantit would otherwise be, which could result in a decline in the
value of shares of our common stock.

When we invest in debt securities, we generally expect to acquire warrartieroeauity securities as well. Our goal is ultimately to
dispose of these equity interests and realize gains upon disposition of such inteersis€) the gains that we realize on these equity
interests may offset, to some extent, losses that we experience on defauldebhdecurities that we hold. However, the equity interests that
we receive may not appreciate in value and, in fact, may decline in value. Accprdiaghay not be able to realize gains from our equity
interests, and any gains that we do realize on the disposition of any equity interests beaguffitient to offset any other losses that we
experience.
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We do not control any of our portfolio companies and therefore our portfolio companiag make decisions with which we disagree.

We do not control any of our portfolio companies, even though we may have board observation rights elsichgueements may
contain certain restrictive covenants. As a result, we are subject tokttigatis portfolio company in which we invest may make business
decisions with which we disagree and the management of such company, as rejweseftae holders of their common equity, may take
risks or otherwise act in ways that do not serve our interests as debt investors.

Prepayments of our debt investments by our portfolio companies could advensphct our results of operations and reduce our return
on equity.

In 2008, we received early loan repayments and paydown of working capital loans of appigXitr20el million. We are subject to the
risk that the investments we make in our portfolio companies may be repaid pridutidyn®hen this occurs, we will generally reinvest tt
proceeds in temporary investments, pending their future investment in new portfotiardem These temporary investments will typically
have substantially lower yields than the debt being prepaid and we could experierimastgiglays in reinvesting these amounts. Any future
investment in a new portfolio company may also be at lower yields than the debt thepaidsAs a result, our results of operations could be
materially adversely affected if one or more of our portfolio companiestelpeepay amounts owed to us. Additionally, prepayments could
negatively impact our return on equity, which could result in a decline in the madebpdur common stock.

We may not realize gains from our equity investments.

When we invest in debt securities, we generally expect to acquire warrartieroeauity securities as well. However, the equity interests
we receive may not appreciate in value and, in fact, may decline in value. Accprdiaghay not be able to realize gains from our equity
interests, and any gains that we do realize on the disposition of any equity interests beayuffitient to offset any other losses we
experience.

Our financial results could be negatively affected if we are unable tocorer our principal investment as a result of a negative pledge on
the intellectual property of our portfolio companies.

In some cases, we collateralize our investments by obtaining a first premitsity interest in a portfolio companies’ assets, which may
include their intellectual property. In other cases, we may obtain a first priecityity interest in a portion of a portfolio company’s assets and
a negative pledge covering a companiytellectual property and a first priority security interest in the posc&#em such intellectual propen
In the case of a negative pledge, the portfolio company cannot encumber or pledge tleeituiattroperty without our permission. In the
event of a default on a loan, the intellectual property of the portfolio company willikedgtbe liquidated to provide proceeds to pay the
creditors of the company. As a result, a negative pledge may affect our abilitly te€over our principal investment. In addition, there ca
no assurance that our security interest in the proceeds of the intellectuatyojpde enforceable in a court of law or bankruptcy court.

At December 31, 2008, approximately 65% of our portfolio company loans were securedsbypréofity security in all of the assets of
the portfolio company, 1% of our portfolio company loans were secured by a second priority seall of the assets of the portfolio
company and 34% portfolio company loans were prohibited from pledging or encumbering theatiratieproperty pursuant to negative
pledges.

We may choose to waive or defer enforcement of covenants in the debt sesinéid in our portfolio, which may cause us to lose all or
part of our investment in these companies.

We structure the debt investments in our portfolio companies to include businessmanif covenants placing affirmative and negative
obligations on the operation of the company’s business and its financial
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condition. However, from time to time we may elect to waive breaches of tneseants, including our right to payment, or waive or defer
enforcement of remedies, such as acceleration of obligations or foreclosurateralpbdepending upon the financial condition and prospects
of the particular portfolio company. These actions may reduce the likelihood of owingdbe full amount of future payments of interest or
principal and be accompanied by a deterioration in the value of the underlying colaterahy of these companies may have limited fina
resources, may be unable to meet future obligations and may go bankrupt. This couldinégaiaot our ability to pay dividends and cause
the loss of all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Investing in shares of our common stock may involve an above average degree of risk.

The investments we make in accordance with our investment objective mayrreshigher amount of risk, volatility or loss of principal
than alternative investment options. Our investments in portfolio companies may lyeshigtulative and aggressive, and therefore, an
investment in our common stock may not be suitable for investors with lower gskricé.

Our common stock may trade below its net asset value per share, which tnitability to raise additional equity capital.

If our common stock is trading below its net asset value per share, we will §ienetdie able to issue additional shares of our common
stock at its market price without first obtaining the approval for such issuameefr stockholders and our independent directors. Shares of
business development companies, including shares of our common stock, have been traatiogras @b their net asset values. As of
December 31, 2008, our net asset value per share was $11.56. The daily average closihgursteares on the NASDAQ Global Select
Market for the quarter ended December 31, 2008 was $7.47. If our common stock trades belet vadtiasghe higher cost of equity capital
may result in it being unattractive to raise new equity, which may limit our atalgyow. The risk of trading below net asset value is separate
and distinct from the risk that our net asset value per share may decline. We catinbtybiether shares of our common stock will trade
above, at or below our net asset value.

Provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law, and of our charter and bylaws|c¢deter takeover attempts and have an adverse
impact on the price of our common stock.

The Maryland General Corporation Law and our charter and bylaws contain provisionayhzve the effect of discouraging, delay
or making difficult a change in control of our company or the removal of our incumbent dirdtf®will be covered by the Business
Combination Act of the Maryland General Corporation Law to the extent that sude $atot superseded by applicable requirements of the
1940 Act. However, our Board of Directors has adopted a resolution exempting fromsthesBuCombination Act any business combination
between us and any person to the extent that such business combination receives gr@rairad our board, including a majority of our
directors who are not interested persons as defined in the 1940 Act. In addition, our byl@ivsacprovision exempting from the Control
Share Acquisition Act any and all acquisitions by any person of shares of our stock.shiesB@Combination Act (if our board should repeal
the resolution) and the Control Share Acquisition Act (if we amend our bylaws to betsalifeat Act) may discourage others from trying to
acquire control of us and increase the difficulty of consummating any offer.

Under our charter, our Board of Directors is divided into three classes sergggrsi@terms, which will make it more difficult for a
hostile bidder to acquire control of us. In addition, our Board of Directors may, witomkholder action, authorize the issuance of shares of
stock in one or more classes or series, including preferred stock. Subject to convpiiartice 1940 Act, our Board of Directors may, without
stockholder action, amend our charter to increase the number of shares of stock okanyseldss that we have authority to issue. The
existence of these provisions, among others, may have a negative impact on the pricerofraur stock and may discourage third party bids
for ownership of our company. These provisions may prevent any premiums being offered to yote$oofstar common stock.
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If we conduct an offering of our common stock at a price below net asset valuestovs are likely to incur immediate dilution upon the
closing of the offering.

At our Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May 29, 2008, stockholders approved a proposal authorizintj ug to 28% of our
common stock at a price below the Company’s net asset value per share, subjed tpBaasal of the offering. If we were to issue shares at
a price below net asset value, such sales would result in an immediate dilutistibg @ommon stockholders, which would include a
reduction in the net asset value per share as a result of the issuance. Taiswldutd also include a proportionately greater decrease in a
stockholder’s interest in our earnings and assets and voting interest in us tharetigeiircour assets resulting from such issuance.

In addition, if we determined to conduct additional offerings in the future there magheeater discounts if we determine to conduct
such offerings at prices below net asset value. As a result, investorspeitience further dilution and additional discounts to the price of our
common stock.

Because the number of shares of common stock that could be so issued and the tinyingsoéaoe is not currently known, the actual
dilutive effect of an offering cannot be predicted. We did not sell any of our common stacisce below our net asset value during year
ended December 31, 2008.

Current levels of market volatility are unprecedented. Our common stoakephas been and continues to be volatile and may decrease
substantially.

The capital and credit market have been experiencing extreme volatility amgtidisifor more than 12 months. In recent months, the
volatility and disruption have reached unprecedented levels, and we have experierteethgmreasual stock price volatility. In some cases,
the markets have produced downward pressure on stock prices and credit availabilitpifoisseiers without regard to those issuers’
underlying financial strength. If current levels of market volatility continue os@mrthere can be no assurance that we will not experience an
adverse effect, which may be material, on our ability to access capital andmrsmass, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, the trading price of our common stock following an offering may fluctuateastibfly. The price of the common stock that
will prevail in the market after an offering may be higher or lower than the price ysbammhthe liquidity of our common stock may be
limited, in each case depending on many factors, some of which are beyond our control andoaalreotly related to our operating
performance. These factors include, but are not limited to, the following:

¢ price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market from time to

« significant volatility in the market price and trading volume of securities GERbusiness development companies or other
financial services companie

« any inability to deploy or invest our capit
e fluctuations in interest rate
e any shortfall in revenue or net income or any increase in losses from levels expectedtoysSmresecurities analys

« the financial performance of specific industries in which we invest in on airezbasis; announcement of strategic developments,
acquisitions, and other material events by us or our competitors, or operating padewh companies comparable to

e changes in regulatory policies or tax guidelines with respect to RICs or $sisie@eclopment companie
¢ losing RIC status
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« actual or anticipated changes in our earnings or fluctuations in our operating mrsthi@snges in the expectations of securities
analysts

¢ changes in the value of our portfolio of investme
« realized losses in investments in our portfolio compal
* general economic conditions and trer
« inability to access the capital marke
¢ loss of a major funded source;
¢ departures of key personn
In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company’sisiesisecurities class action litigation has often been

brought against that company. Due to the potential volatility of our stock price, we niegytheget of securities litigation in the future.
Securities litigation could result in substantial costs and could divert manaigeatéention and resources from our business.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

Neither we nor any of our subsidiaries own any real estate or other physical propatégally important to our operation or any of our
subsidiaries. Currently, we lease approximately 11,200 square feet of office spatmeAitd California for our corporate headquarters. We
also lease office space in: Boston, Massachusetts; Boulder, Colorado; Chigags; #ind San Diego, California (which was subsequently
closed in January 2009).

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

As of December 31, 2008, we were not a party to any legal proceedings. However, fromtiinge We may be party to certain legal
proceedings incidental to the normal course of our business including the enforcemanigltits under contracts with our portfolio
companies. While the outcome of these legal proceedings cannot at this time egueitticcertainty, we do not expect that these
proceedings will have a material effect upon our financial condition or resufsecdtions.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
No matters were submitted to a vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of 2008.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matterd &suer Purchases of Equity Securities

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the synit®C'HThe following table sets forth the range
of high and low sales prices of our common stock as reported on the NASDAQ GlobaMzgelasttfor each of the quarterly periods during
2008 and 2007. Our common stock may trade at prices that are at, above, or below our net asset value.

Price Range

Quarter Ended High Low

March 31, 200 14.5C 12.7%
June 30, 20C 14.71 12.8(
September 30, 20 14.0z 11.3Z
December 31, 20( 13.6( 10.8i
March 31, 200 12.7¢ 9.5¢
June 30, 20C 11.3: 8.9¢
September 30, 20 11.3¢ 7.9
December 31, 20( 10.2¢ 4.57

As of February 23, 2009, we had 35 stockholders of record. Most of the shares of our commoee $telcklar brokers and other
institutions on behalf of stockholders. We believe that there are currently appielyi1800 additional beneficial holders of our common
stock.

Shares of business development companies may trade at a market pricesisathizr the value of the net assets attributable to those
shares. The possibility that our shares of common stock will trade at a disconmtetr asset value or at premiums that are unsustainable over
the long term are separate and distinct from the risk that our net asset Vatieergase. At times, our shares of common stock have trad
premium to net asset value and with the recent collapse of the financialsnatkethares of common stock have traded at a significant
discount to the net assets attributable to those shares.

SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2008, one of our Directors elected tottakbipaompensation in the form of comn
stock in lieu of cash. We issued a total of 6,668 shares of common stock to the Dirdéctor agigregate price for the shares of common stock
of approximately $70,000.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2008, we purchased a total of 445,607 shares of@ustmokin the open market for
distribution under our dividend reinvestment plan. We did not make any repurchases dugingrttieended December 31, 2008. Pursuant to
our dividend reinvestment plan, we primarily issue new shares of our stock in connethidistsibutions under the plan, although we also
have the ability to purchase shares in the open market to distribute as dividendshareliolders. Because the trading price of our common
stock was lower than our current net asset value at the dividend payment datedwe pptehase shares in the open market to distribute as
dividends to our shareholders. The aggregate purchase price for the shares of comovamssapproximately $4.7 million.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Information relating to compensation plans under which our equity securitiesthoeized for issuance is set forth under the heading
“Executive Compensation—Equity Compensation Plan Information” in our definitive ptatgngent for our 2009 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

As a RIC, we intend to distribute quarterly dividends to our stockholders. To the egtdotvot distribute during each calendar year an
amount at least equal to the sum of (1) 98% of our ordinary income for the calendar y&&% (f)our capital gains in excess of capital lo:
for the one year period ending on October 31 of the calendar year, and (3) any ordinary incomeagithhgains for the preceding year that
were not distributed during such years we are required to pay a 4% excise tax on oubutadistrtcome. To the extent that we earn annual
taxable income in excess of dividends paid from such taxable income for the year, warmpayer the excess taxable income into the next
year and such excess income will be available for distribution in the next year @sepelosnthe Code. We will not be subject to excise taxes
on amounts on which we are required to pay corporate income tax (such as retainedaheagagit In order to obtain the tax benefits
applicable to RICs, we will be required to distribute to our stockholders wjtkce® each taxable year at least 90% of our ordinary income
and realized net short-term capital gains in excess of realized net longateital losses. We currently intend to retain for investment realized
net long-term capital gains in excess of realized net short-term capétad |6dease refer to “Item 1. Business—Certain United States Federal
Income Tax Considerations” for further information regarding the consequences efemtion of net capital gains. We may, in the future,
make actual distributions to our stockholders of some or all realized net lomgdpital gains in excess of realized net short-term capital
losses. We can offer no assurance that we will achieve results thagmmiit phe payment of any distributions and, if we issue senior sect
we may be prohibited from making distributions if doing so causes us to fail to mairt@issit coverage ratios stipulated by the 1940 Act or
if distributions are limited by the terms of any of our borrowings. See Item 1. BusifiRegulation as a Business Development Company.”

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we recorded a provision for excise tax of $203,000 rekatalé indame that will be spilled
over and paid out as dividends to shareholders in 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2007, tva prouisien for excise tax of
$139,000. Effective in 2009, our Board of Directors adopted a policy to distribute four quagtrhutbns in an amount that approximate:
- 95% of our taxable income. In addition, at the end of the year we may also pay an additmabdispdend, such that we may distribute
approximately 98% of our annual taxable income in the year it was earned, instedithgfagr our excess taxable income.

Pursuant to a recent revenue procedure issued by the IRS (Revenue Procedure 2009-8Hathmticated that it will treat
distributions from certain publicly traded RICs (including BDCs) that are paidrpeash and part in stock as dividends that would satisfy the
RIC’s annual distribution requirements and qualify for the dividends paid deductimtdone tax purposes. In order to qualify for such
treatment, the revenue procedure requires that at least 10% of the total aistbleypaid in cash and that each shareholder have a right t
to receive its entire distribution in cash. If too many shareholders eleceiveeash, each shareholder electing to receive cash must receive a
proportionate share of the cash to be distributed (although no shareholder electieiyéaash may receive less than 10% of such
shareholder’s distribution in cash). This revenue procedure applies to distributidasvittarespect to taxable years ending prior to January 1,
2010.

On February 12, 2009, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of $0.32 per share to shaghrelctnd as of February 23, 2009
payable on March 30, 2009. In accordance with Revenue Procedure 2009-15 providing temporary ggafaling certain stock distribution

for public traded RICs, our Board of Directors determined that approximately 90% o¥ithendi would be paid in newly issued shares of our
common stock
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and no more than 10% will be paid in cash. The liquidity provided to us by paying 90% of the dividend/irssieed shares of common st
will assist us in preservation of capital, which we believe is prudent in thent@ezonomy. We will continue to review our dividend policy
quarterly throughout 2009.

The following table summarizes dividends declared and paid on all shares to date:

Date Declarec Record Date Payment Date liTgLﬁgtre
October 27, 20C November 1, 20C November 17, 20( $ 0.02¢
December 9, 20( January 6, 20( January 27, 20( 0.30(
April 3, 200¢ April 10, 200¢ May 5, 2001 0.30(
July 19, 200 July 31, 200 August 28, 200 0.30(
October 16, 20C November 6, 20C December 1, 20( 0.30(
February 7, 20C February 19, 20( March 19, 200 0.30(
May 3, 200° May 16, 200 June 18, 20C 0.30(¢
August 2, 200 August 16, 200 September 17, 20 0.30(
November 1, 20C November 16, 20( December 17, 20( 0.30(
February 7, 20C February 15, 20( March 17, 200 0.30(
May 8, 200t May 16, 200 June 16, 20C 0.34(
August 7, 200 August 15, 200 September 15, 20 0.34(
November 6, 20C November 14, 20( December 15, 20( 0.34(

$ 3.74¢

We maintain an “opt out” dividend reinvestment plan for our common stockholders. Astaifegeildeclare a dividend, cash dividends
will be automatically reinvested in additional shares of our common stock unlesgagifically “opt out” of the dividend reinvestment plan
and choose to receive cash dividends.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following stock performance graph compares the cumulative stockholderassuming that, on June 9, 2005, a person invested
$100 in each of our common stock, the S&P 500 Index, the S&P Asset Management & Custody Banks IndeSD#h@ Ridancial 100 and
the Dow Jones U.S. Financial Sector Index - IYF (iShares). The graph measalrelRareholder return, which takes into account both changes
in stock price and dividends. It assumes that dividends paid are reinvested in likisesecuri
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] — e e
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following consolidated financial data is derived from our audited consolidated finaratéahents. The selected consolidated
financial data should be read in conjunction w‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
and the consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere heteiitattata is not necessarily indicative of results to
be expected for any future period.

(1) Based on common shares outstanding at period

Period from
2/2/2004
(commencement ¢
operations) to

For the Years Ended December 3 December 31,
(in thousands, except per share amount: 200¢ 2007 200¢ 200¢ 200¢
Investment incom:
Interes $ 67,28 $ 48,757 $ 26,27¢ $ 9,791 $ 214
Fee: 8,552 5,121 3,23( 87¢€ —
Total investment incon 75,83¢ 53,88¢ 29,50¢ 10,66 214
Operating expens¢
Interes 13,12 4,40¢ 5,77( 1,801 —
Loan fee 2,64¢ 1,29( 81C 1,09¢ —
General and administrati 6,89¢ 5,437 5,40¢ 2,28¢ 411
Employee Compensatic
Compensation and bene 11,59 9,13¢ 5,77¢ 3,70¢ 1,16¢
Stock-based compensati 1,59( 1,127 617 252 68C
Total employee compensat 13,18¢ 10,26: 6,39¢ 3,95¢ 1,84¢
Total operating expens 35,85¢ 21,39: 18,38 9,14: 2,25¢
Net investment income (loss) before provision for income t
and investment gains and los 39,98: 32,49: 11,12 1,52¢ (2,047)
Provision for income tax — 2 642 25E —
Net investment income (los 39,98: 32,48¢ 10,48( 1,27 (2,047)
Net realized gain (loss) on investme 2,64: 2,791 (1,609 482 —
Provision for excise te (209) (139 — —
Net (decrease) increase in unrealized appreciatic
investment (21,42¢) 7,26¢ 2,50¢ 35z —
Net realized and unrealized (loss) ¢ (18,98¢) 9,92( 904 83t —
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from ope $ 20,99t $ 42,40¢ $ 11,38 $ 2,10¢ (2,047
Cash dividends declared per common s $ 132 $ 1.2 $ 0.9 $ 0.32 $ —
As of December 31,
(in thousands, except per share data) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Balance sheet data:
Investments, at vali $581,30: $529,97: $283,23¢ $176,67: $ 16,70(
Cash and cash equivale 17,24: 7,85¢ 16,40« 15,36: 8,67¢
Total asset 608,67 541,94 301,14. 193,64 25,23:
Total liabilities 226,21« 141,20t 45,72¢ 79,29¢ 15t
Total net asse 382,45¢ 400,73 255,41 114,35: 25,07¢
Other Data:
Total debt investments, at va 540,05 482,12: 266,72« 166,64t 16,70(
Total warrant investments, at va 17,88: 21,64¢ 8,441 5,16( —
Total equity investments, at va 23,36¢ 26,20: 8,06¢ 4,867 —
Unfunded Commitmen 82,00( 130,60: 55,50( 30,20¢( 5,00(
Net asset value per sh® $ 11.5¢ $ 12.31 $ 11.6f $ 11.67 $ 12.1¢

@ Based on common shares outstanding at period end.
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Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuft®©perations

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The matters discussed in this report, as well as in future oral and writesmestés by management of Hercules Technology Growth
Capital, that are forward-looking statements are based on current managepeetet®ns that involve substantial risks and uncertainties
which could cause actual results to differ materially from the resultesseul in, or implied by, these forward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements relate to future events or our future financial performangen&lly identify forwardeoking statements by terminolo
such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “could,intends,” “target,” “projects,” “contemplates,” “believes,”
“estimates,” “predicts,” “potential” or “continue” or the negative of thesms or other similar words. Important assumptions include our
ability to originate new investments, achieve certain margins and levels a&bpildgfi, the availability of additional capital, and the ability to
maintain certain debt to asset ratios. In light of these and other uncertaimties|tision of a projection or forward-looking statement in this
report should not be regarded as a representation by us that our plans or objectbeeacstiieved. The forward-looking statements contained
in this report include statements as to:

« the impact of a protracted decline in the liquidity of the credit markets on omelss;

¢ timing, form and amount of any dividend distributio

« impact of fluctuation of interest rates on our busin

« valuation of our investments in portfolio compani

« our ability to access the debt and equity mart

« our future operating result

e our business prospects and the prospects of our prospective portfolio conr

e our ability to recover unrealized loss

« the impact of investments that we expect to m

e our informal relationships with third partie

« the dependence of our future success on the general economy and its impact on tiesimdustich we invesi

« the ability of our portfolio companies to achieve their objecti

« our expected financings and investme

e our regulatory structure and tax stai

« our ability to operate as a business development company and a regulated investmant;

« the adequacy of our cash resources and working capita

« the timing of cash flows, if any, from the operations of our portfolio compe

For a discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to diffefoinward-looking statements contained in this report, please see

the discussion under “Risk Factors.” You should not place undue reliance on these fookargldtatements. The forward-looking statements

made in this report relate only to events as of the date on which the statementdea’®/enandertake no obligation to update any forward-
looking statement to reflect events or circumstances occurring aftertéhefdhis report.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated finamtéhents and related notes and other financial

information appearing elsewhere in this report. In addition to historical infarmahe following discussion and other parts of this report
contain forward-looking information that
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involves risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ mageriath those anticipated by such forwdabking information due to tf
factors discussed under Iltem 1A—"Risk Factors” and “Forward-Looking Statefhadrthis Item 7.

Overview

We are a specialty finance company that provides debt and equity growth caeithinology-related companies at all stages of
development from seed and emerging growth to expansion and established stages of dezéld@mprimarily finance privately-held
companies backed by leading venture capital and private equity firms, and may alse §iekect publicly listed companies and lower middle
market companies. Our principal office is located in the Silicon Valley artthwe additional offices in the Boston, Boulder and Chicago. Our
goal is to be the leading senior debt provider of choice for venture capital and privatédagkéd technology-related companies requiring
sophisticated and customized financing solutions. Our strategy is to evaluate andhiavastad range of companies active in the technology
and life science industries and to offer a full suite of growth capital products up andrdoeapital structure. We invest primarily in structi
debt with warrants and, to a lesser extent, in senior debt and equity investments.thiéeteise “structured debt with warrants” to refer to any
debt investment, such as a senior or subordinated secured loan, that is coupled with aarepaitgmt, including warrants, options or rights
to purchase common or preferred stock. Our structured debt with warrants investifiégpically be secured by some or all of the assets of
the portfolio company.

Our investment objective is to maximize our portfolio total return by generatingn¢imcome from our debt investments and capital
appreciation from our equity-related investments. We are an internally managetiyersified closed-end investment company that has
elected to be regulated as a business development company under the 1940 Act. As albusippssent company, we are required to
comply with certain regulatory requirements. For instance, we generally hawves at least 70% of our total assets in “qualifying assets,”
including securities of private U.S. companies, cash, cash equivalents, U.S. goveserneities and highuality debt investments that mat
in one year or less.

From incorporation through December 31, 2005, we were taxed as a corporation under Subafapteim@ernal Revenue Code (the
Code). We are treated for federal income tax purposes as a RIC under Subchapter ®lodfet as of January 1, 2006. To qualify for the
benefits allowable to a RIC, we must, among other things, meet certain soumcerné and asset diversification and income distribution
requirements. Pursuant to this election, we generally will not have to pay cofeordtaxes on any income that we distribute to our
stockholders. However, such an election and qualification to be treated as a iRi€srdtat we comply with certain requirements contained in
Subchapter M of the Code. For example, a RIC must meet certain requiremdmtsngnsource-of-income, asset diversification and income
distribution requirements. The income source requirement mandates thaeive 80% or more of our income from qualified earnings,
typically referred to as “good income.” Qualified earnings may exclude such inconaagement fees received in connection with our SBIC
or other potential outside managed funds and certain other fees.

Our portfolio is comprised of, and we anticipate that our portfolio will continue temerised of, investments primarily in technology-
related companies at various stages of their development. Consistent withorggelatiirements, we invest primarily in United States based
companies and to a lesser extent in foreign companies. During 2008, our investing emphzess pimarily on private companies following
or in connection with a subsequent institutional round of equity financing, which wéaefe expansion-stage companies and private
companies in later rounds of financing and certain public companies, which wiorageestablishestage companies and lower middle ma
companies. We have also historically focused our investment activitieisateptompanies following or in connection with the first
institutional round of financing, which we refer to as emerging-growth companieéag®08 we made a strategic decision to greatly reduce
our investments in emerging-growth companies.
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Current Economic and Market Environment

The U.S. capital markets have been experiencing extreme volatility and disruptiooréathian 12 months as evidenced by a lack of
liquidity in the debt capital markets, significant write-offs in the findredavices sector, the repricing of credit risk in the broadly syndicated
credit market and the failure of major financial institutions. These gVv@ve contributed to worsening general economic conditions that are
materially and adversely impacting the broader financial and credit markkteducing the availability of credit and equity capital for the
markets as a whole and financial services firms in particular, including us.

At the same time, the venture capital market for the technology-related comipawigich we invest has continued to be active.
Therefore, to the extent we have capital available, we believe this is an oppontete lie active in the structured lending market for
technology-related companies. Early in 2008, we announced our “slow and steady” investaegy and the shift in our investment focus to
established-stage companies. These changes were made to manage ourforedénoey, maintain adequate liquidity and manage our
operating expenses in this extremely challenging and unprecedented credit environeneae\illso added a Senior Credit Officer who is
focused on both the life science and technology portfolio to further assist in mdigetdit loss in our portfolio.

Like many other companies, we have begun engaging in activities to deleverage our Ihelenaadsstrengthen cash resources available
to us. Our Credit Facility expired under normal terms on October 31, 2008 and entered a @emiodinétion. All outstanding principal and
interest due under the Credit Facility must be repaid by April 30, 2009. As discussadtbheseengthen our liquidity position and preserve
cash, in February we determined to pay 90% of our first quarter 2009 dividend using newly isseeedfstanmon stock and no more than
10%, or approximately $1.1 million, would be paid in cash.

We experienced an approximately $18.6 million reduction in our net worth during the second®baB gbrimarily resulting from net
unrealized depreciation on our portfolio, which reflects market conditions. THe Pégility requires, among other covenants, that we ma
a minimum tangible net worth of $360 million. As of December 31, 2008, we had a net worth of $882 Wv# are actively monitoring this
and other covenants to minimize disruption in our business as a result of current oradikeirc At December 31, 2008, we were in
compliance with all of the covenants.

Portfolio and Investment Activity

The total value of our investment portfolio was $581.3 million at December 31, 2008, asewhop$30.0 million at December 31,
2007. During the year ended December 31, 2008, we made debt commitments to 40 portfolio compangeBifal million and funded
$346.0 million to 56 companies. We also made equity investments in 9 portfolio compatiies aproximately $5.9 million during the year
ended December 31, 2008. During the year ended December 31, 2008, we also converted approximatéilgn$® dehit to equity in four
portfolio companies, bringing total equity investments at fair value to approxn$2®.4 million at December 31, 2008. The fair value of our
warrant portfolio at December 31, 2008 was $17.9 million. For the year ended December 31, 2668gmieed net unrealized depreciation
on our debt, equity and warrant portfolios of approximately $4.6 million, $8.6 million and $8.2 milspectively, in accordance with FAS
157. This unrealized depreciation reflects the general decline in the finaacieet in the second half of 2008. At December 31, 2008, we had
unfunded contractual commitments of $82.0 million to 28 portfolio companies. These camtritmil be subject to the same underwriting
and ongoing portfolio maintenance as are the on-balance sheet financial instthatamteshold. Since these commitments may expire without
being drawn upon, the total commitment amount does not necessarily represent ituegjaceiements. In addition, we executed a non-
binding term sheet for $7.0 million for one proposed future commitment.

In response to the current lack of liquidity in the debt and capital markets, during 20@8ve® sur origination activities, adopting a

slow and steady investment strategy and shifting our focus to establishedestagmies. These changes were made to manage our credit
performance, maintain adequate liquidity and manage

54

file://c:\WINNT\Profiles\hallers\Desktop\2009 -k hercules.htr 5/10/201(



Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, - Page57 of 14C

Table of Contents

our operating expenses in this extremely challenging and unprecedented credit envirdferexgect to continue our origination and follow-
on investment activity consistent with our slow and steady investment stratdggarket conditions improve. Investing in accordance with
this strategy may result in limited, no, or negative growth until market conditions imamdenay negatively impact our operating results.

We receive payments in our loan portfolio based on scheduled amortization of the cugstataiices. In addition, we receive
repayments of some of our loans prior to their scheduled maturity date. The frequeoleyrar of these repayments may fluctuate
significantly from period to period. During the year ended December 31, 2008, we receivedproraizdl repayments of $110.3 million, and
early repayments and working line of credit paydowns totaling $159.6 million. Total poitfeéstment activity (exclusive of unearned
income) as of and for each of the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

(in millions) 2008 2007

Beginning Portfolit $ 530.( $ 283.c
Purchase of debt investme 346.( 355.F
Equity Investmen 5.6 12.€
Sale of investmen (17.5) (66.5)
Principal payments received on investm (110.9) (62.2)
Early pay-offs and recoverie (159.¢) (5.9
Accretion of loan discounts and p-in-kind principa 8.2 2L
Net change in unrealized appreciation on investn (21.9 10.€
Ending Portfolic $ 581.: $ 530.

The following table shows the fair value of our portfolio of investments by assetslas®ecember 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007
(excluding unearned income):

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Investments at Fair

Percentage of Total

Investments at Fair

Percentage of Total

(in thousands Value Portfolio Value Portfolio
Senior secured debt with warrs $ 445,57 76.€% $ 429,76( 81.1%
Senior secured de 106,26t 18.2% 61,48: 11.€%
Preferred stoc 21,24¢ 3.8% 23,26 4.4%
Senior det-second lien with warrar 6,097 1.C% 12,07¢ 2.2%
Common Stoc 2,11¢ 0.4% 2,93¢ 0.5%
Subordinated debt with warra — — 44¢ 0.1%
$ 581,30: 100.(% $ 529,97 100.(%

A summary of the company’s investment portfolio at value by geographic location Ibasfo

December 31, 200

Investments at Fait

Percentage of Tota

December 31, 200

Investments at Fait

Percentage of Tota

(in thousands) Value Portfolio Value Portfolio
United State $ 537,47( 92.5% $ 512,72 96.8%
Canad 21,21( 3.€% 15,00: 2.8%
Israe 19,62 3.4% 2,24; 0.4%
Netherland 3,00( 0.5%

$ 581,30: 100.(% $ 529,97. 100.(%
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Our portfolio companies are primarily privately held expansion-and establitiggleompanies in the biopharmaceutical,
communications and networking, consumer and business products, electronics and coemgutgrsinformation services, internet consumer
and business services, medical devices, semiconductor and software industsy $hese sectors are characterized by high margins, high
growth rates, consolidation and product and market extension opportunities. Value iestigehitv intangible assets and intellectual property.

The largest companies vary from year to year as new loans are recorded and loand.pay offvenue, consisting of interest, fees, and
recognition of gains on equity interests, can fluctuate dramatically when a |oaid isff or a related equity interest is sold. Revenue
recognition in any given year can be highly concentrated among several portfolio comparyesur§ ended December 31, 2008 and 200°
ten largest portfolio companies represented approximately 33.6% and 33.7% of thertetdliéadf our investments, respectively. At
December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had six and three investments, respectively, that representedr&%f the net assets. At December 31,
2008, we had six equity investments representing approximately 43.8% of the total fair valueadity investments, and each represented
5% or more of the total fair value of such investments. At December 31, 2007, we hayufiyérerestments which represented approxime
50% of the total fair value of our equity investments, and each represented 5% or rher®ti tfair value of such investments.

At December 31, 2008, we had investments in three portfolio companies deemed ttidteAffncome derived from these investments
was less than $280,000 since these investments became Affiliates. No realizeat gzsses related to Affiliates were recognized during the
years end December 31, 2008, 2007 or 2006. We recognized depreciation of approximately $4 dnuilib@ million on Affiliate
investments in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The following table shows the fair value of our portfolio by industry sector at Decemt20@land December 31, 2007 (excluding
unearned income):

December 31, 200 December 31, 200
Investments at Fait Percentage of Tota Investments at Fait Percentage of Tota
(in thousands) Value Portfolio Value Portfolio
Communications & networkir $ 118,13 20.2% $ 114,01« 21.5%
Software 80,88¢ 13.9% 38,96: 7.4%
Drug discover 70,32( 12.1% 95,29 18.(%
Information service 63,53: 10.€% 58,46¢ 11.(%
Electronics & computer hardwe 40,48: 7.C% 50,95: 9.€%
Specialty pharmaceutici 29,87( 5.1% 45,64¢ 8.€%
Biotechnology tool 29,12« 5.C% 9,71¢ 1.8%
Consumer & business produ 25,25( 4.2% 2,817 0.5%
Drug deliven 24,95; 4.2% 22,72¢ 4.2%
Internet consumer & business
service 19,75¢ 3.4% 16,91¢ 3.2%
Semiconductol 17,76¢ 3.1% 25,50 4.8%
Media/Content/Informatic 17,66% 3.1% 7,19¢ 1.4%
Therapeuti 15,66: 2.7% 12,85: 2.4%
Diagnostic 13,49 2.2% 2,31¢ 0.5%
Surgical Device 10,01: 1.7% 16,82: 3.2%
Energ) 4,39: 0.8% 7,01¢€ 1.2%
Advanced Specialty Materials
Chemical: —_ — 2,76¢ 0.5%
$ 581,30: 100.(% $ 529,97. 100.(%
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We use an investment grading system, which grades each debt investment on a sode tof dhiaracterize and monitor our expected
level of returns on the debt investments in our portfolio with 1 being the highest quaditiitede 1. Business—Investment Procedsan anc
Compliance Administration.” The following table shows the distribution of our outstgri#ibt investments on the 1 to 5 investment grading
scale at fair value as of December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007:

December 31, 200 December 31, 200
Investments at Fair Percentage of Total Investments at Fair Percentage of Total
(in thousands) Value Portfolio Value Portfolio
Investment Grading
1 $ 22,29t 4.1% $ 27,67¢ 5.7%
2 326,10¢ 60.4 341,59¢ 70.¢
3 159,98( 20.€ 103,38( 21.4
4 29,46( 5.t 9,467 2.C
5 2,21F 0.4 — —
$ 540,05 100.0(% $ 482,12 100.0(%

As of December 31, 2008, our investments had a weighted average investment grading of 2.39%ed tw& @8 at December 31, 20
We intend for our shift in focus to expansion- and established-stage companiesttasassimaintaining our portfolio credit quality despite
current market volatility. However, there is no guarantee that this stratddyevgiliccessful. Our policy is to lower the grading on our portfolio
companies as they approach the point in time when they will require additional egitéy. @edditionally, we may downgrade our portfolio
companies if they are not meeting our financing criteria and their respective bysares Various companies in our portfolio will require
additional funding in the near term or have not met their business plans and hawedleref downgraded until their funding is complete or
their operations improve. Risk ratings are used by us to indicate companies reqeaingahitoring and are not generally indicative of loan
valuation. At December 31, 2008, 19 portfolio companies were graded 3 and 5 portfolio companigsded 4, as compared to 15 and 3
portfolio companies, respectively, at December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2008, 5 portfolioiesmsie graded 5, no portfolio company
was graded 5 at December 31, 2007.

The effective yield on our debt investments during the year was 13.5% and was attrilpstedo interest charges and fees related to
loan restructurings and acceleration of fee income recognition from earlyelp@yments. The overall weighted average yield to maturity of
our loan obligations was approximately 12.87% at December 31, 2008, increased shigipéyed to 12.70% at December 31, 2007, attrik
to increased investments to both expansion and established-stage companies hadeasfinancing offered to more mature middle market
companies. The weighted average yield to maturity is computed using the intexest edfect at the inception of each of the loans, and
includes amortization of the loan facility fees, commitment fees and magmiypns or discounts over the expected life of the debt
investments, weighted by their respective costs when averaged and based on theomsthanati contractual loan commitments have been
fully funded and held to maturity.

We generate revenue in the form of interest income, primarily from our investimeieist securities, and commitment and facility fees.
Fees generated in connection with our debt investments are recognized over thtiédifiloah or, in some cases, recognized as earned. In
addition, we generate revenue in the form of capital gains, if any, on warrants ceqifterelated securities that we acquire from our
portfolio companies. Our investments generally range from $1.0 million to $25.0 milliomleBuinvestments have a term of between two and
seven years and typically bear interest at a rate ranging from prime to 17% asrabBe8%, 2008. In addition to the cash yields received on
our loans, in some instances, our loans may also include any of the following: ena-phjenents, exit fees, balloon payment fees, PIK
provisions, prepayment fees, and diligence fees, which may be required to be included éngriooto receipt. In most cases, we collateralize
our investments by obtaining security interests in our portfolio companies’ adsiets,may include their intellectual property. In other cases,
we may obtain a negative pledge covering a company’s intellectual property.
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At December 31, 2008, approximately 65% of our portfolio company loans were securedsbpréofity security in all of the assets of 1
portfolio company, 1% of our portfolio company loan was secured by a second priority seculitf thelassets of the portfolio company and
34% of our portfolio company loans were prohibited from pledging or encumbering their iotdll@operty. Interest on debt securities is
generally payable monthly, with amortization of principal typically occurring oveethe ¢f the security for emerging-growth, expansion-
stage and established-stage companies. In addition, certain loans may includesidntg period ranging from three to eighteen months for
emerging-growth and expansion-stage companies and longer for established-stzy@e=orn limited instances in which we choose to defer
amortization of the loan for a period of time from the date of the initial imesdt the principal amount of the debt securities and any accrued
but unpaid interest become due at the maturity date.

Our investments in structured debt with warrants also generally have equity emeahéeatures, typically in the form of warrants or
other equity-related securities designed to provide us with an opportunity for egpitatiation. As of December 31, 2008, we have received
warrants in connection with the majority of our debt investments in each podfofipany, and have realized gains on eighteen warrant
positions since inception. We currently hold warrants in 92 portfolio companiésa fatr value of approximately $17.9 million included in
investment portfolio of $581.3 million. The fair value of the warrant portfolio has aleeteby 17.1% as compared to the fair value of $21.6
million at December 31, 2007. The decline in value is primarily attributed to thatial adjustments required under FAS 157 related to the
general deterioration in the financial market in the second half of 2008. Thesatwatdings would allow us to invest approximately $55.0
million if such warrants are exercised. However, these warrants may not afgreaialue and, in fact, may decline in value. Accordingly, we
may not be able to realize gains from our warrant interests.

Results of Operations
Comparison of periods ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
Operating Income

Interest income totaled approximately $67.3 million and $48.8 million for 2008 and 2007, respettieehcrease in interest income
was directly related to increases in origination activity as net investmiefatis value grew by $57.9 million during 2008. In 2008 and 2007,
interest income included approximately $4.3 million and $1.8 million of income froreatexit fees. Income from commitment, facility and
loan related fees totaled approximately $8.6 million and $5.1 million for 2008 and 2007, repektiecember 31, 2008 and 2007, we had
approximately $6.9 million and $6.6 million of deferred income related to commitment alitsf faes, respectively.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses totaled approximately $35.9 million and $21.4 million during 2008 and 2007 vebgp@gterating expenses for 1
years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 included interest expense, loan fees and unusedrideesiof approximately $15.8 million and
$5.7 million, respectively. The 177.2% increase in interest expense was pritueito a higher average debt balance of $196.9 million in
2008 as compared to $66.3 million in 2007. The weighted average cost of debt was approximat&e&nber 31, 2008 as compared to
6.5% at December 31, 2007. The increase was primarily due to higher interestddtssainder our Credit Facility after the loan was
amended in May 2008 and as we entered into the amortization period on October 31, 2008. Empipgasation and benefits were
approximately $11.6 million and $9.1 million during 2008 and 2007, respectively. The increase in ermnplopensation and benefits is due
to increased number of employees from 38 to 45 and salary increases at the begiheiygarf. tGeneral and administrative expenses include
legal and accounting fees, insurance premiums, rent and various other expensgst@lnillion and $5.4 million in 2008 and 2007
respectively. We incurred approximately $1.6 million of stock-based compensegtiemse in 2008 as compared to $1.1 million in 2007 due to
additional option and restricted stock grants made in 2008. We anticipate thaingpexpénses will decrease over the next twelve months as
we continue to incur lower interest expense on lower average outstanding debt bataiuoesthe number of
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our employees and general operating expenses needed to support our investment porédiowour business activity and adjust to the
current liquidity constriction in the financial markets. We anticipate the tiedua workforce by 5 employees that occured in January 2009 is
expected to reduce compensation expense by approximately $800,000 in 2009.

Net Investment Income Before Income Tax Expense and Investment GainsLaisses

Net investment income before income tax expense for the year ended December 31, R@0B4@12 million as compared with a net
investment income before income tax expense in 2007 of approximately $32.5 million. The emangade up of the items described above
under “Operating Income” and “Operating Expenses.”

Net Investment Realized Gains and Losses and Unrealized AppreciatiorDeptleciation

Realized gains or losses are measured by the difference between the nelsgrooe¢he repayment or sale and the cost basis of the
investment without regard to unrealized appreciation or depreciation previousiinized, and include investments charged off during the
period, net of recoveries. Net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciatiarilpnieflects the change in portfolio investment values
during the reporting period, including the reversal of previously recorded unrealizediatgmesr depreciation when gains or losses are
realized.

In 2008, we generated realized gains totaling approximately $6.9 million from thef sal@mon stock of two software, two drug
discovery, one advanced specialty materials & chemicals, one therapeutic, onetidiagm@gommunications & networking and one comg
hardware portfolio companies. We recognized realized losses in 2008 of appebxi®dad million on the disposition of investments in ten
portfolio companies. We recognized realized gains of approximately $3.6 million dueiggar ended December 31, 2007 from seven
portfolio companies. We recognized realized losses in 2007 of approximately $800,000 on theodigfasarrants of six portfolio
companies. A summary of realized and unrealized gains and losses for the yeagsemtdd 31, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

December 31,

(in millions) 2008

Realized gair $ 6.¢
Realized loss¢ (4.9)
Net realized gair $ 2.€

December 31,
2007

$ 3.€

(0.9)
$ 2.€

For the year ended December 31, 2008, net unrealized investment depreciation totaleshafglydd21.4 million and for the year enc
December 31, 2007, net unrealized appreciation totaled approximately $7.3 million. Tteyes decrease primarily reflects the impact in
the general decline in the financial market in the second half of 2008. The net udrapfireciation and depreciation of investments is based
on portfolio asset valuations determined in good faith by our Board of Directors. As of iDeErc®in 2008, the net unrealized investment
appreciation recognized by the company was reduced by approximately $143,000 for a waicgratjperagreement with Citigroup. For a
more detailed discussion, see the discussion set forth under “Borrowings” oéthig.|The following table itemizes the change in net
unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments for 2008 and 2007:

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

($ in millions) Companies Amount Companies Amount
Gross unrealized appreciation on portfolio investn 31 $ 6.1 59 $17.7
Gross unrealized depreciation on portfolio investrr 65 (25.2) 25 (9.4)
Reversal of prior period net unrealized appreciation upon a reali (2.49) (0.2
Citigroup Warrant Participatic 0.1 (0.7)
Net unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on portfolio investr $(21.9) $ 7.3
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Income and Excise Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of Statementrafifdid@counting Standards No. 108;counting for
Income Taxe, which requires that deferred income taxes be determined based upon the efuitmaedx effects of differences between the
financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities given the prowbibesenacted tax law. Valuation allowances are used to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount likely to be realized.

Through December 31, 2005 we were taxed under Subchapter C of the Code. We elected td be adri€ under Subchapter M of
Code with the filing of our 2006 federal income tax return. Provided we continue to quaifRI&€, our income generally will not be subject
to federal income or excise taxes to the extent we make the requisite distribustmskholders. At December 31, 2008, we elected to pay an
excise tax of approximately $203,000 on approximately $5.0 million of undistributed earningspecations and capital gains that we intend
to distribute in 2009. See “ltem 1. Business—Certain United States Feurmale Tax Considerations.” Of the dividends declared during the
year ended December 31, 2008, $1.23 comprised ordinary income and $0.09 comprised long-termicapiklliajahe dividends declared
during the year ended December 31, 2007 were comprised of ordinary income.

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operations and Earnings Per&

For the year ended December 31, 2008 net income totaled approximately $21.0 million comparedamesof approximately
$42.4 million for the period ended December 31, 2007. These changes are made up of the itemly plesddbsd.

Basic and fully diluted net income per share were both $0.64, for the year ended De&&Er@bé8, compared to basic net income per
share of $1.50 and fully diluted net income per share of $1.49 for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Comparison of periods ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
Operating Income

Interest income totaled approximately $48.8 million and $26.3 million for 2007 and 2006, respekti2é07 and 2006, interest income
included approximately $1.8 million and $713,000 of income from accrued exit fees, respectogiye from commitment and facility fees
totaled approximately $5.1 million and $3.2 million for 2007 and 2006, respectively. The entrdagh interest and fee income was directly
related to increases in origination activity, as net loan investments aaliae grew by $215.4 million by the end of 2007. At December 31,
2007 and 2006, we had approximately $6.6 million and $3.4 million of deferred income related toneemimnd facility fees.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses totaled approximately $21.4 million and $18.4 million during 2007 and 2006yedgp@gierating expenses for
2007 and 2006 included interest expense, loan fees and unused commitment fees of apgrésimadlion and $6.6 million, respectively.
The decrease in interest expense was due to a lower average debt balance of §&6i8 8007, as compared to $70.7 million in 2006.
Employee compensation and benefits were approximately $9.1 million and $5.8 million during 2007 and R&€®;akys The increase in
employee compensation and benefits is due to an increased number of employees from 26 to @88sesdfapproximately $3.7 million
accrued in 2007. General and administrative expenses were $5.4 million for both 2007 and 2afioiy we incurred approximately $1.1
million of stock-based compensation expense in 2007 as compared to $618,000 in 2006. The intoe&dEmsed compensation expense
due to the additional stock option grants made in 2007.
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Net Investment Income Before Income Tax Expense and Investment GainsLaisses

Net investment income before income tax expense for the year ended December 31, RA0F3Idta million as compared with a net
investment income before income tax expense in 2006 of approximately $11.1 million. Thisishaade up of the items described above.

Net Investment Realized Gains and Losses and Unrealized AppreciatiorDexptleciation

In 2007, we generated realized gains totaling approximately $3.6 million from thef sal@mon stock of two communications and
networking company, two internet consumer and business services company and thremadmlaal companies. We recognized realized
losses in 2007 of approximately $800,000 on the disposition of warrants in six portfolio cesndairecognized a realized gain of
approximately $3.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2006 from the sale of common stoclowihomeications and networking
company, one internet consumer and business services company and two biopharmacewimat portfanies. We recognized realized los
in 2006 of approximately $4.9 million on the disposition of loans to two portfolio companies.

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, net unrealized investment appreciation tatiedihp6H7.3 million and $2.5
million, respectively. The year to year increase is primarily attributaliteetoncreased number of companies in the portfolio. The net
unrealized appreciation and depreciation of investments is based on portfoliaassiins determined in good faith by our Board of
Directors. As of December 31, 2007, the net unrealized investment gains recognize dooyphieycwere reduced by approximately $690,000
for a warrant participation agreement with Citigroup.

Income Taxes

Through December 31, 2005 we were taxed under Subchapter C of the Code. We elected td be adri€ under Subchapter M of
Code with the filing of our 2006 federal income tax return. Provided we continue to quaifRI&€, our income generally will not be subject
to federal income or excise taxes to the extent we make the requisite distribusomskholders. At December 31, 2007, we elected to pay an
excise tax of approximately $139,000 on approximately $4.3 million of undistributed earningspiecations and capital gains that we
distributed in 2008.

During 2007, we distributed $1.20 per share to our shareholders, of which 100% was deemed tolbetiardisf income and was
considered ordinary income to our shareholders in 2007.

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operations and Earnings Per&
For the year ended December 31, 2007 net income totaled approximately $42.4 million compdredamesof approximately
$11.4 million for the period ended December 31, 2006. These changes are made up of the itemly plesddbsd.

Basic and fully diluted net income per share was $1.50 and $1.49, respectively, for #nedggBDecember 31, 2007, compared to basic
net income per share of $0.85 and fully diluted net income per share of $0.84 for the year enddteD8t, 2006.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2008, we had approximately $17.2 million in cash and cash equivalents abteaa@itowing capacity of $50.0
million under our Wells Credit Facility and $9.9 million availability under the SB#gmm, subject to existing terms and advance rates. Of
this amount, $6.5 million requires commitment approval from the SBA and investmenttidraaddiegulatory capital of $3.25 million. We
primarily invest cash on hand in interest bearing deposit accounts.
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As of December 31, 2008, we had approximately $89.6 million outstanding under our Creitijt Fadidnuary we reduced the balance
outstanding under the Credit Facility to approximately $70.9 million using proceeds fromygurieaipal repaymenby Memory
Pharmaceuticals and normal principal received from operations. We inteqayotihe outstanding balance due under the Credit Facility by
April 30, 2009 using primarily the following sources of capital: capital availabla fefinancing select current loans; early princ
repayments; capital available to us under the Wells Facility; and normghtepts of loans in the Credit Facility’s collateral pool. Although
we anticipate being able to pay the outstanding balance under the Credit Faeilitgué) there can be no assurance that we will be able to do
so, which could lead to an event of default. See “Risk Factors.”

For the year ended December 31, 2008, net cash used in operating activities totaled aepréaima million as compared to $201.1
million in 2007. This decrease was due primarily due to principal payments receiveddebbinvestments of $269.9 million offset by $3&
million used for investments, as compared to $128.7 million of proceeds received ipghfiasiments offset by $368.1 million used for
investments in our portfolio companies in 2007. Cash used in investing activities foattenged December 31, 2008, totaled approximately
$612,000 and was primarily used for the purchase of computer equipment, leasehold impmoaedheffice furniture. Net cash provided by
financing activities totaled $37.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. In 2008, we badhigerof $72.1 million of SBA
debentures, net borrowings of $10.4 million from our Credit Facility; we receivedxapgately $934,000 in net proceeds from the exercise of
warrants for our common stock offset by cash dividend payments of $41.9 million and $dek wiillion paid on our credit facilities and
debenture borrowings.

As of December 31, 2008, net assets totaled $382.5 million, with a net asset valueepet $hh.56. We intend to generate additional
cash primarily from future borrowings as well as cash flows from operations, incladimgé earned from investments in our portfolio
companies and, to a lesser extent, from the temporary investment of cash in U.S. govsennrities and other high-quality debt investments
that mature in one year or less. Our primary use of funds will be investments in padfolpanies and cash distributions to holders of our
common stock. After we have used our current capital resources, we expect tdd#isead capital to support our future growth through
future equity offerings, issuances of senior securities and/or future borrowvairigs,éxtent permitted by the 1940 Act. To the extent we
determine to raise additional equity through an offering of our common stock at a prieenbeasset value, which we have received
shareholder approval to do, existing investors will experience dilution. However, thdye na assurance that these capital resources will be
available in the near term given the credit constraints of the banking and capkatsn

As required by the 1940 Act, our asset coverage must be at least 200% after each @fss@nior securities. Our asset coverage as of
December 31, 2008 was approximately 669%, excluding SBA leverage.

As of December 31, 2008, we had $89.6 million outstanding under the Credit Facility, apprigx$ha®2 million under the SBA
program and there were no outstanding borrowings under the Wells Facility. Upon repayiem@nodtint outstanding under the Credit
Facility, the facility's collateral will be released and available to collateralize thesWatlility or other financings or borrowings at a later ¢
As of December 31, 2008, there were $56.1 million of loans in the Wells Facilityecallpbols and, based on eligible loans in the pools
existing advance rates, we have access to approximately $21.1 million of borrowingycaypsiible under the $50.0 million currently
available through the Wells Facility. On October 31, 2008 our Credit Facility expired thedesrmal terms and no future borrowings were
available under the facility. All subsequent payments secured from the portfoijgaoies whose debt is included in the Credit Facility
collateral pool are being applied against interest and principal outstandinghmdedit Facility until April 30, 2009, when all outstanding
interest and principal are due and payable. During the amortization period, the Compamgen@éys a non-use fee on the Credit Facility,
although borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at a rate per annurodgpar plus 6.5% during the amortization period.
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In addition, Citigroup has an equity participation right of 10% of the realized gains om eeataants collateralized under the Credit
Facility. However, no additional warrants are included in collateral subsequtet fiacility amendment on May 2, 2007. See Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements for discussion of the participation right

At December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, we had the following borrowing capacity and ogtstandi

December 31, 200 December 31, 200
Facility Amount Facility Amount
(in thousands) Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding
Credit Facility $ 89,58: $ 89,58. $250,00( $ 79,20(
Wells Facility 50,00( — — —
SBA Debentur 130,60( 127,20( 127,20( 55,05(
Total $270,18: $ 216,78. $377,20( $ 134,25(

On September 27, 2006, HT Il received a license to operate as a Small Busingsgelm@smpany under the SBIC program and is
to borrow funds from the SBA against eligible previously approved investments andraalditntributions to regulatory capital. At Decem
31, 2008 we had a commitment from the SBA permitting us to draw up to $130.6 million fromAh&[&Bmaximum borrowing available
from the SBA could be increased to $137.1 million with an additional regulatory capiatinent by us of $3.25 million, subject to SBA
approval. We submitted a leverage request in March 2009 to increase the commitmentltarfilidn, subject to certain regulatory
requirements. At December 31, 2008, we had a net investment of $65.3 million in HT II, @naréhimvestments in 41 companies with a fair
value of approximately $170.4 million. Investments held by HT Il comprised approximately 8BtB&fair value of our investments at
December 31, 2008. The Company is the sole limited partner of HT Il and HTM is thel gantrer. HTM is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. If HT Il fails to comply with applicable SBA regulations, the SBA could, deygeadithe severity of the violation, limit or
prohibit HT II's use of debentures, declare outstanding debentures immediately chsyable, and/or limit HT Il from making new
investments. Such actions by the SBA would, in turn, negatively affect us because bidr Wisolly owned subsidiary.

In February 2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 included a provisasiimgcthe current limit to $150.0
million, the increase of approximately $13.0 million from the previous $137.1 milliondsrof December 31, 2008, subject to periodic
adjustments by the SBA. The limit may be increased to $225.0 million with the appravséodnd SBIC lender license and the additional
investment of $37.5 million of regulatory capital. We intend to submit an applicatiorsémoad license, although there is no assurance that
such license will granted. In addition, there is no assurance that we will be doévtup to the maximum limit available under the SBIC
program.

At our Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May 29, 2008, stockholders approved a proposal authorizintj ug to 28% of our
common stock at a price below our net asset value per share, subject to Board approediavirtyelf we determine to conduct an offering
raise equity capital at a price below our net asset value, stockholderspeiiemce immediate dilution following the offering. See Item 1A—
Risk Factors. We intend to include a similar proposal in our proxy statement for 2009.

Current Market Conditions

The debt and equity capital markets in the United States have been negativelydrogaigmificant write-offs in the financial services
sector relating to subprime mortgages and therieiag of credit risk in the broadly syndicated market, among other things. Thess, alemny
with the deterioration of the housing market, the failure of major financialutistis and the resulting United States Federal government
actions have led to worsening general economic conditions, which have matedadigheersely impacted the broader financial and
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credit markets and have reduced the availability of debt and equity capital foartket @s a whole and financial firms in particular.
Commercial finance companies have previously utilized the securitizationtitafience some investment activities and we had intended to
use securitization financing. Due to the current dislocation of the sedimitizaarket, which we believe may continue for an extended period
of time, we and other companies in the commercial finance sector may have tcatteceave debt markets in order to grow. The debt c:
that will be available may be at a higher cost, and terms and conditions may fagdealle which could negatively affect our financial
performance and results. In addition, the prolonged continuation of further deteniafaturrent market conditions could adversely impac
business.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we are party to financial instruments witHarftéaheet risk. These consist primarily of unfunded
commitments to extend credit, in the form of loans, to our portfolio companies. Unfundedticemis to provide funds to portfolio compar
are not reflected on our balance sheet. Our unfunded commitments may be signifioaithé to time. As of December 31, 2008, we had
unfunded commitments of approximately $82.0 million. These commitments will be stabjeetsame underwriting and ongoing portfolio
maintenance as are the balance sheet financial instruments that we hold. Since these commitmgrespina without being drawn upon, 1
total commitment amount does not necessarily represent future cash requirgteeintend to use primarily cashflow from normal and early
principal repayments and our Wells Facility to fund these commitments. Howevercémebe no assurance that we will have sufficient capital
available to fund these commitments as they come due.

Contractual Obligations
The following table shows our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2008:

Payments due by perio
(in thousands)

Contractual Obligations®®) Total 200¢ 201C 2011 201 201 Thereafter
Borrowing$® $216,78. $89,58: $— $— $— $— $127,20(
Operating Lease Obligatiofs 4,70:% 99€ 991 967 952 795 —

Total $221,48! $9058( $991 $967 95: 79t $127,20(

(1) Excludes commitments to extend credit to our ptitfoompanies

(2) We also have warrant participation with Citigrogee" Borrowings”

(3) Includes borrowings under the Credit Facility ahel 8BA debentures. There were no outstanding bargsaunder the Wells Facility at December, 31, 2(
(4) Long-term facility leases

Borrowings

The Company, through Hercules Funding Trust |, an affiliated statutory trust, hasgitizzes credit facility with Citigroup Global
Markets Realty Corp. and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. The initial Ciegdiity-was a one year facility with an interest rate of LIBOR plus a
spread of 1.20% and a borrowing capacity of $250.0 million.

On May 7, 2008, the Company amended and renewed its Credit Facility with Citigroup aschBdsank providing for a borrowing
capacity of $134.9 million and extending the expiration date to October 31, 2008. Under the taerenwénded agreement, the Company
paid a renewal fee of approximately $1.3 million, interest on all borrowings wasL4BOR plus a spread of 5.0%, and a fee of 2.50% is
charged on any unused portion of the facility. The Credit Facility is collateraljzkeébs from the Company’s investment in portfolio
companies, and includes an advance rate of approximately 45% of eligible loans. ThEd&ibgitcontains
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covenants that, among other things, require the Company to maintain a minimum net worttesimitttthe loans securing the Credit Facility
to certain dollar amounts, to concentrations in certain geographic regions andésdtestertain loan grade classifications, to certain security
interests, and to certain interest payment terms. On October 31, 2008 the CompatilyEaCiléy expired under the normal terms. All
subsequent payments secured from the portfolio companies whose debt is included idith&adlliéy collateral pool will be applied against
interest and principal outstanding under the Credit Facility until April 30, 2009, whensthmding interest and principal are due and payable.
During the amortization period, the Company no longer pays a non-use fee on the Criggit &ltmugh borrowings under the Credit Facility
bear interest at a rate per annum equal to Libor plus 6.5% during the amortizatdn AeDecember 31, 2008, the Company had $89.6
million outstanding under the Credit Facility, and was in compliance with all cove Mamsigement believes the Credit Facility will be fully
repaid by April 30, 2009 through proceeds from normal repayments of loans in the dgdlatérearly principal repayments and capital
available to us from the Wells Facility.

Citigroup has an equity participation right through a warrant participatioeragre on the pool of loans and warrants collateralized
under the Credit Facility. Pursuant to the warrant participation agreementrtipa@y granted to Citigroup a 10% participation in all warrants
held as collateral. However, no additional warrants are included in collatdse¢quent to the facility amendment on May 2, 2007. As a result,
Citigroup is entitled to 10% of the realized gains on the warrants until theecglains paid to Citigroup pursuant to the agreement equals
$3,750,000 (the “Maximum Participation Limit”). The obligations under the warrantipatt@n agreement continue even after the Credit
Facility is terminated until the Maximum Participation Limit has be@ched. During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company
recorded a reduction of the derivative liability related to this obligation acréateed its unrealized losses by approximately $143,000 for
Citigroup’s participation in unrealized gains in the warrant portfolio. The value ofgeticipation right on unrealized gains in the related
equity investments was approximately $498,000 at December 31, 2008 and is included in adbdiities. [IBased on the Company’s average
borrowings for the year ended December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the amount of expensd foreitordalized and unrealized
gains for the related periods, the additional cost of borrowings as a result of thetyarticipation agreement could increase by
approximately 0.09% and 1.03%, respectively. There can be no assurances that the uapgaézedion of the warrants will not be higher or
lower in future periods due to fluctuations in the value of the warrants, therebysingreareducing the effect on the cost of borrowing. Since
inception of the agreement, the Company has paid Citigroup approximately $970,000 under theartiaipation agreement thereby
reducing its realized gains by this amount.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company, through its Special Purpose Entity (“SPE”), hadrednsfols of loans and warrants with a
fair value of approximately $263.4 million to Hercules Funding Trust | and had drawn $806 milder the Credit Facility. Transfers of
loans have not met the requirements of SFAS No. Ad€unting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities, for sales treatment and are, therefore, treated as secured borrowings, wéhsteered loans remaining in investments and the
related liability recorded in borrowings. The average debt outstanding under the @cdit for year ended December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007 was approximately $102.9 million and $52.1 million, respectively, and tige averast rate was approximately 6.88%
and 6.56% respectively, excluding facility fees.

In January 2005, the Company formed HT Il and HTM. HT Il is licensed as a SBIC. HT Il bdunds from the SBA against eligible
investments and additional deposits to regulatory capital. Under the Small Buisimestment Act and current SBA policy applicable to
SBICs, an SBIC can have outstanding at any time SBA guaranteed debentures up tteetarmount of its regulatory capital. As of
December 31, 2008, the maximum statutory limit on the dollar amount of outstanding SBAtgedrdebentures issued by a single SBIC is
$137.1 million, subject to periodic adjustments by the SBA. With $65.3 million of regulapitgalcas of December 31, 2008, HT Il has the
current capacity to issue up to a total of $130.6 million of SBA guaranteed debentureshdd¥#vic2 million was outstanding. In February
2009, we invested $3.25 million in regulatory capital and submitted a commitment regbesbw up to $137.1 million. Currently, HT 1l has
paid commitment fees of approximately $1.3 million. There is no assurance thawiilTbl able to draw up to the maximum limit available
under the SBIC program.
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The recently enacted American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“StimilifusdBitains provisions to increase the borrowing
capacity of participants in the SBIC program. The Stimulus Bill will benefiSBIC subsidiary, HT Il, by providing an estimated additional
$23 million of leverage for future investment activities. We estimate lieaetprovisions will increase HT II's maximum amount of SBIC
leverage capacity to $150.0 million from the prior maximum amount of approximately $137ch rfali adjusted annually based upon cha
in the Consumer Price Index). Also included in the new Stimulus Bill is another d&gipn, which allows for existing SBIC entities to obt
a second license and gain access to additional leverage of $75 million, for a maxi$226.6fmillion combined SBIC leverage (subject to
additional required capitalization of its second wholly owned SBIC subsidiargulée anticipates filing for a potential second SBIC license
upon final clarification from the SBA on the application process.

SBICs are designed to stimulate the flow of private equity capital to eligjitddl businesses. Under present SBA regulations, eligible
small businesses include businesses that have a tangible net worth not exceediniipdldhohihave average annual fully taxed net income
not exceeding $6.0 million for the two most recent fiscal years. In addition, SBICslevase 20.0% of its investment activity to “smaller”
concerns as defined by the SBA. A smaller concern is one that has a tangible net wextieeding $6.0 million and has average annual fully
taxed net income not exceeding $2.0 million for the two most recent fiscal years. @Ba#tioms also provide alternative size standard criteria
to determine eligibility, which depend on the industry in which the business is engaged badeat on such factors as the number of
employees and gross sales. According to SBA regulations, SBICs may make tohggates to small businesses, invest in the equity securities
of such businesses and provide them with consulting and advisory services. Through itowhetysubsidiary HT II, the Company plans to
provide long-term loans to qualifying small businesses, and in connection thereviiéhequéty investments.

Through our wholly-owned subsidiary HT Il, the Company plans to provide long-term loans tgiggaiall businesses, and in
connection therewith, make equity investments. HT Il is periodically examinedualited by the SBA'’s staff to determine its compliance with
SBIC regulations. As of December 31, 2008, HT Il could draw up to $130.6 million of leveragen&@BA as noted above. Borrowings
under the program are charged interest based on ten year treasury rates padansiitee rates are generally set for a pool of debentures
issued by the SBA in six month periods. The rate for the $12 million of borrowings ceijifnatn March 13, 2007 to September 10, 2007 was
set by the SBA on September 26, 2007 at 5.528%. The rate for the $58.1 million borrowings m&#pageber 10, 2007 through March 13,
2008 was set by the SBA on March 26, 2008 at 5.471%. The rate for the $38.8 million borrowings matieetité3, 2008 through
September 10, 2008 was set by the SBA on September 24, 2008 at 5.725% and the additional $18.4 milbarimgshorade after
September 13, 2008 are based on LIBOR plus a spread of 0.30% until the next intesestatee SBA occurs in March of 2009. In addit
the SBA charges a fee that is set annually, depending on the Federal fiscal {martse commitment was delegated by the SBA, regardless
of the date that the leverage was drawn by the SBIC. The 2008 and 2007 annual fee hasib@€@06@4. Interest payments are payable semi-
annually and there are no principal payments required on these issues prior to matbenhtubes under the SBA generally mature ten years
after being borrowed. Based on the initial draw down date of April 2007, the initialitpatuour SBA debentures will occur in April 2017.

On August 25, 2008, the Company, through a special purpose wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,Hedinigsl, LLC,
entered into a two-year revolving senior secured credit facility with an optioeayear extension with total commitments of $50 million, with
Wells Fargo Foothill as a lender and as an arranger and administrativeTdgewells Facility has the capacity to increase to $300 million if
additional lenders are added to the syndicate. The Wells Facility expires on August 25, 2&8Hthenbption to extend the facility is exerci
by the parties to the agreement. To date, we have not added any additional lenders under Hzeillye but intend to seek to do so when the
financial markets reopen.

Borrowings under the Wells Facility will generally bear interest ateapat annum equal to Libor plus 3.25% or PRIME plus 2.0%, but
not less than 5.0%. The Wells Facility requires the payment of a non-use fee of
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0.5% annually, which reduces to 0.3% on the one year anniversary of the credit facility. lhEatibty is collateralized by debt investments
in our portfolio companies, and includes an advance rate equal to 50% of eligible loansmptheambllateral pool. The Wells Facility
generally requires payment of interest on a monthly basis. All outstanding prisaile@ upon maturity, which includes the extension if
exercised. We paid a one time $750,000 structuring fee in connection with the Wiitis Which is being amortized over a 2 year period.

There was no outstanding debt under the Wells Facility at December 31, 2008.

The Wells Facility requires various financial and operating covenants. Tovamgants require us to maintain certain financial ratios
minimum tangible net worth of $360 million. The Wells Facility provides for custpeents of default, including, but not limited to,
payment defaults, breach of representations or covenants, bankruptcy events and artga.dVe were in compliance with all covenants

at December 31, 2008.

Debt financing costs are fees and other direct incremental costs incurrethtpbteining debt financing and are recognized as prepaid
expenses amortized into the consolidated statement of operations as laarefebs term of the related debt instrument. As part of the Credit
Facility, at December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had prepaid debt financing costs of approximately $466,080 @00} $2spectively, net of
accumulated amortization. The prepaid debt financing costs incurred by us in connébhtitve Wells Facility was approximately $814,000,
net of accumulated amortization as of December 31, 2008. There were no feestoelae Wells Facility as of December 31, 2007. In
addition, as part of the SBA debenture, we had approximately $3.9 million and $2.5 million, cmirofilated amortization, of prepaid

commitment and leverage fees as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

We plan to aggregate pools of funded loans using the conduits that we may seek untieatuféige pool of funded loans is created
which can then be securitized at a later date. We expect that any loans includezliitiast®n facility may be securitized on a non-recourse
basis with respect to the credit losses on the loans. The current credit dislocation has essentially eliminated access to this funding source
and there can be no assurance that we will be able to complete this seicurisizategy, or that it will be successful if or when the

securitization market is reestablished. See “ltem 1. Business—C3ipitature.”

Dividends

The following table summarizes our dividends declared and paid on all shares, includlicigdestock, to date:

Date Declarec
October 27, 20C
December 9, 20(
April 3, 200¢€
July 19, 200
October 16, 20C
February 7, 20C
May 3, 200°
August 2, 200
November 1, 20C
February 7, 20C
May 8, 200t
August 7, 200
November 6, 20C

Record Date

November 1, 20C
January 6, 20(
April 10, 200¢
July 31, 200
November 6, 20C
February 19, 20(
May 16, 200
August 16, 200
November 16, 20(
February 15, 20(
May 16, 200
August 15, 200
November 14, 20(

Payment Date

November 17, 20(
January 27, 20(
May 5, 200!
August 28, 200
December 1, 20(
March 19, 200
June 18, 20C
September 17, 20
December 17, 20(
March 17, 200
June 16, 20C
September 15, 20
December 15, 20(

Amount Per Share

$0.02¢
0.30(
0.30(C
0.30(C
0.30(C
0.30(C
0.30(C
0.30(
0.30(C
0.30(C
0.34(
0.34(
0.34(

$3.74¢

Of the dividends declared during the year ended December 31, 2008, $1.23 comprised ordinary income amd$&e8 long-term

capital gains. All of the dividends declared during the year ended December 31, 20@dmwerised of ordinary income.
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On February 12, 2009, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of $0.32 per share to shadhrelctand as of February 23, 2009
payable on March 30, 2009. In accordance with Revenue Procedure 2009-15 providing temporary ggafaling certain stock distribution
for public traded RICs, our Board of Directors determined that approximately 90% o¥ithendi would be paid in newly issued shares of our
common stock and no more than 10% will be paid in cash. The liquidity provided to us by paying 90%wvidene éh newly issued shares
common stock will assist us in preservation of capital, which we believe isnpiindée current economy. We will continue to review our
dividend policy quarterly throughout 2009.

Each year a statement on Form 1099-DIV identifying the source of the distributippgidefrom ordinary income, paid from net capital
gains on the sale of securities, and/or a return of paid-in-capital surplus whictointaxable distribution) is mailed to our stockholders. To the
extent our taxable earnings fall below the total amount of our distributions fdistted year, a portion of those distributions may be deemed a
tax return of capital to our stockholders.

We operate to qualify to be taxed as a RIC under the Code. Generally, a RIC is entitthectaédends it pays to its shareholders f
its income to determine “taxable income.” Taxable income includes our taxasksindividend and fee income, as well as taxable net capital
gains. Taxable income generally differs from net income for financial ieggrirposes due to temporary and permanent differences in the
recognition of income and expenses, and generally excludes net unrealized appreciatiet@tidepas gains or losses are not included in
taxable income until they are realized. In addition, gains realized for finaapi@iting purposes may differ from gains included in taxable
income as a result of our election to recognize gains using installmenesdheent, which generally results in the deferment of gains for tax
purposes until notes or other amounts, including amounts held in escrow, received asatmmsfdem the sale of investments are collected in
cash. Taxable income includes non-cash income, such as changes in accrued and reinvestasdétdvidends, which includes contractual
payment-in-kind interest, and the amortization of discounts and fees. Cash cdletiimeome resulting from contractual PIK interest or the
amortization of discounts and fees generally occur upon the repayment of the loans ecwtélgssthat include such items. Non-cash taxable
income is reduced by non-cash expenses, such as realized losses and depaediamortization expense.

Pursuant to Revenue Procedure 2009-15, the IRS has indicated that it will treat iisgifvatn certain publicly traded RICs (including
BDCs) that are paid part in cash and part in stock as dividends that wouldtbatiBf’s annual distribution requirements and qualify for the
dividends paid deduction for income tax purposes. In order to qualify for such trealmeet/énue procedure requires that at least 10% of the
total distribution be paid in cash and that each shareholder have a right to eleeiv®ite entire distribution in cash. If the number of share-
holders electing to receive cash would cause cash distributions to be in excess bEh@ach shareholder electing to receive cash would
receive a proportionate share of the cash to be distributed (although no sharédéciitey te receive cash may receive less than 10% of such
shareholder’s distribution in cash). This revenue procedure applies to distributidasvittarespect to taxable years ending prior to January 1,
2010.

We have distributed and currently intend to distribute sufficient dividendsninatie taxable income. We are subject to a nondeductible
federal excise tax if we do not distribute at least 98% of our capital gain net ifmoeaeh one year period ending on October 31st. At
December 31, 2008 we recorded a provision for excise tax of approximately $203,000 on income amyhirepithhpproximately $5.0
million to be distributed in 2009. The maximum amount of excess taxable income that oaayidover for distribution in the next year
under the Code is the total amount of dividends paid in the following year, subject ito @dectaration and payment guidelines.

Effective in 2009, our Board of Directors adopted a policy to distribute four quarteripdi®ns in an amount that approximates 90-

95% of our taxable income. In addition, at the end of the year we may also pay an additicaladlisigend, such that we may distribute
approximately 98% of our annual taxable income in the year it was earned, instedithgfagr our excess taxable income.
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The table below shows the detail of our distributions for the years ended De@&imBee8 and 2007:

December 31 December 31
2008 2007
Ordinary income and long term capital g: $1.32 100.% $1.2C 100.(%
Accumulated earnings and pro — — — —
Return of capitt — — — —
Total $1.32 100.(% 1.2C 100.(%

On February 12, 2009, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of $0.32 per share to shadhrelctand as of February 23, 2008
payable on March 30, 2009. In accordance with the Revenue Procedure 2009-15 released/igQuzur Board of Directors determined
that approximately 90%, or approximately $9.5 million, of the dividend would be paid in newlgl Esares of our common stock and no r
than 10%, or approximately $1.1 million, would be paid in cash.

The market value per share of common stock used to compute the stock dividend will be tieeweilyimed average price per share of
HTGC’s common stock for the three business day period of March 23, March 24 and March 25g2808eBhe value of shares to be
distributed will be determined subsequent to the filing of our Annual Report on Fokmwi®do not know the actual number of shares we
issue to satisfy the dividend. Accordingly, we have not reflected these changes in @mlistrapture retroactively in these financial statem

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.SPGAduires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilitleliselosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, and revenues and expenses during the petied. ®pan ongoing basis, our management evaluates its
estimates and assumptions, which are based on historical experience and on Vei@assomptions that we believe to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Chamges®stimates and assumptions could materially impact our
results of operations and financial condition.

Valuation of Portfolio InvestmentsThe most significant estimate inherent in the preparation of our consolidetediél statements is
the valuation of investments and the related amounts of unrealized appreciation anthtieprof investments recorded.

At December 31, 2008, approximately 96% of our total assets represented inveBirperifslio companies of which greater than 99%
are valued at fair value by the Board of Directors. Value, as defined in SectigdD)(aj the 1940 Act, is (i) the market price for those
securities for which a market quotation is readily available and (ii) fatledr securities and assets, fair value is as determined in good faith by
the Board of Directors in accordance with established valuation procedures aecbtihhenendation of the Valuation Committee of the Board
of Directors. Since there is typically no readily available market value fontlestiments in our portfolio, we value substantially all of our
investments at fair value as determined in good faith by our board pursuant to a valdatyoangba consistent valuation process. Due to the
inherent uncertainty in determining the fair value of investments that do not headilgt available market value, the fair value of our
investments determined in good faith by our board may differ significantly fromathe that would have been used had a ready market ¢
for such investments, and the differences could be material.

Consistent with FAS 157, the Company determines fair value to be the amount for whigesiment could be exchanged in a current

sale, which assumes an orderly disposition over a reasonable period of timenheitlireg parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The Company’s valuation policy considers the fact that no ready market exisibgtargially all of the securities in which it invests.
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There is no single standard for determining fair value in good faith. As a resetimaeng fair value requires that judgment be applie
the specific facts and circumstances of each portfolio investment. Walikes, we are not permitted to provide a general reserve for anti
loan losses. Instead, we must determine the fair value of each individual ienestma quarterly basis. We will record unrealized depreciation
on investments when we believe that an investment has decreased in value, includdnzplidetion of a loan or realization of an equity
security is doubtful. Conversely, where appropriate, we will record unrealized atioredi we believe that the underlying portfolio company
has appreciated in value and, therefore, that our investment has also appreciated in val

As a business development company, we invest primarily in illiquid securitieslingldebt and equity-related securities of private
companies. Our investments are generally subject to some restrictionslermnesgenerally have no established trading market. Because of
the type of investments that we make and the nature of our business, our valuationrpquiessan analysis of various factors. Our valuation
methodology includes the examination of, among other things, the underlying investment pedofinancial condition and market chang
events that impact valuation, estimated remaining life, and interest raaelspfesimilar securities as of the measurement date. If there is a
significant deterioration of the credit quality of a debt investment, we may condigerfaxdtors that a hypothetical market participant would
use to estimate fair value, including the proceeds that would be received in aitbhquéchetlysis.

With respect to private debt and equity securities, each investment is valuedhdsstgyivaluation benchmarks, and, where appropriate,
the value is assigned a discount reflecting the illiquid nature of the investmemiiaminority, non-control position. When a qualifying
external event such as a significant purchase transaction, public offering, or snbdefptier equity sale occurs, the pricing indicated by the
external event will be used to corroborate our private debt or equity valuation. \&eigedly review the valuation of our portfolio companies
that have not been involved in a qualifying external event to determine if the esgtesgitie of the portfolio company may have increased or
decreased since the last valuation measurement date. We may considembulirareed to, industry valuation methods such as price to
enterprise value or price to equity ratios, discounted cash flow, valuation comnganscomparable public companies or other industry
benchmarks in our evaluation of the fair value of our investment. Securitiesatiesded in the over-the-counter market or on a stock
exchange will be valued at the prevailing bid price on the valuation date.

Income Recognition Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis and is recognized asreaaweddance with the contractual te
of the loan agreement to the extent that such amounts are expected to be collected.|€xug Discount, (“OID”), initially represents the
value of detachable equity warrants obtained in conjunction with the acquisition of clgfitieeand is accreted into interest income over the
term of the loan as a yield enhancement. When a loan becomes 90 days or more past dusa@enfiend otherwise does not expect the
portfolio company to be able to service its debt and other obligations, we will, as al geaiter, place the loan on non-accrual status and
cease recognizing interest income on that loan until all principal has been paid. Haveeney make exceptions to this policy if the
investment has sufficient collateral value and is in the process of amfie€tiere were four loans on non-accrual status as of December 31,
2008 with a fair value of approximately $864,000. There was no loan on non-accrual stdtDeesmber 31, 2007.

Paid-In-Kind and End of Term IncomeContractual paid-in-kind (“PIK”) interest, which represents contractuafigroedl interest added
to the loan balance that is generally due at the end of the loan term, is genevatllgdem the accrual basis to the extent such amounts are
expected to be collected. We will generally cease accruing PIK intetkstéfis insufficient value to support the accrual or we do not expect
the portfolio company to be able to pay all principal and interest due. In addition, we may aitiidebte an end-of-term payment that we
amortize into income over the life of the loan. To maintain our status as a RICndPBad-of-term income must be paid out to stockholders in
the form of dividends even though we have not yet collected the cash. Amounts necessafyesepdiyilends may come from available cash
or the liquidation of certain investments. For the year ended December 31, 2008 and 200mafgydki.0 million and $381,000 in PIK
income were recorded respectively. There was no PIK income in 2006.
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Fee Income Fee income, generally collected in advance, includes loan commitment and feedifpr due diligence and structuring, as
well as fees for transaction services and management services rendered pgrtfslio companies and other third parties. Loan and
commitment fees are amortized into income over the contractual life afaheNManagement fees are generally recognized as income wil
services are rendered. Loan origination fees are capitalized and then ahinttizeterest income using the effective interest rate method. In
certain loan arrangements, warrants or other equity interests are recemdtié borrower as additional origination fees.

Stock-Based Compensatiod/e have issued and may, from time to time, issue additional stock options to employeesiu2d64
Equity Incentive Plan. We follow Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.eV2&#¢t 2004)Share-Based Paymer{t§AS 123R"),
to account for stock options granted. Under FAS 123R, compensation expense assobtiatedkyitased compensation is measured at the
grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized.

Federal Income TaxesWe intend to operate so as to qualify to be taxed as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Cadsuahdwall not
be subject to federal income tax on the portion of our taxable income and gains distdtsitekholders. To qualify as a RIC, we are required
to distribute at least 90% of our investment company taxable income, as defined bg¢h&\@ are subject to a non-deductible federal excise
tax if we do not distribute at least 98% of our taxable income and 98% of our capital gaconet for each 1 year period ending on
October 31. At December 31, 2008, we recorded a liability for excise tax of approyi$2@&,000 on income and capital gains of
approximately $5.0 million to be distributed in 2009. At December 31, 2007, we recordedty fimbéxcise tax of approximately $139,000
on income and capital gains of approximately $4.3 million to be distributed in 2008.

Because federal income tax regulations differ from accounting principlesaigr@ecepted in the United States, distributions in
accordance with tax regulations may differ from net investment income armkdegdiins recognized for financial reporting purposes.
Differences may be permanent or temporary. Permanent differenceslassified among capital accounts in the financial statement to reflect
their tax character. Temporary differences arise when certain iteimsoofie, expense, gain or loss are recognized at some time in the future.
Differences in classification may also result from the treatment of-gkron gains as ordinary income for tax purposes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS 157. FAS 157 defines fair value, establiahemnafk for measuring fair value, outlines a
fair value hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhancssrdisetpuirements for fair value measurements. SFAS 157
does not change existing guidance as to whether an instrument is carried atéair valu

The Company adopted FAS 157 effective January 1, 2008. No material change to the Conmagatyed $tatements resulted from its
adoption of FAS 157. For additional information regarding the Company’s adoption of FAS 150ts&; Nhvestments,to the Consolidate
Financial Statements.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP 157-3 “Determining the Fair Value of a FisssgaM/hen the Market for That Asset Is Not
Active” (FSP 157-3). FSP 157-3 clarifies the application of SFAS No. 157 in a market thaaiginet and addresses application issues such
as the use of internal assumptions when relevant observable data does nbeexsst of observable market information when the market is
not active, and the use of market quotes when assessing the relevance of observable andhiealzda. FSP 157-3 is effective for all
periods presented in accordance with SFAS No. 157. The adoption of FSRIibidet have a significant impact on our financial results o
value determinations.
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In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. EITF 03Betermining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions
Are Participating Securitie (“FSP EITF 03-6-1"). The objective of this FSP is to address questions thatregasding whether unvested
share-based payment awards with rights to receive dividends or dividend equivedeidsbe considered participating securities for the
purposes of applying the two-class method of calculating earnings per sha®)(‘{iiiPsuant to FASB Statement No. 1E&rnings per
Share. In FSP EITF 03-6-1, the FASB staff concluded that unvested share-based paymeésitlaatarontain rights to receive non-forfeitable
dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating secaritglus, should be included in the two-class method of
computing EPS. It is effective for fiscal years beginning after Decetrihe2008, and interim periods within those years with early application
prohibited. This FSP requires that all prior-period EPS data be adjusted refvedpedanagement is currently evaluating the impact on our
consolidated financial statements of adopting FSP EITF 03-6-1.

Subsequent Events

Hercules’ portfolio company, Transcept Pharmaceuticals (NASDAQ: TSPTQuaoaed completion of its merger with Novacea, Inc. on
February 2, 2009. Hercules received full principal repayment of approximately $2chnillistanding to this specialty pharmaceutical
company.

Guava Technologies announced on February 2, 2009, that it has entered into an agreemequite thdya Millipore Corp., a San
Francisco Bay Area biotechnology company, for approximately $22.6 million. Herculesedeidl principal repayment of the loan made to
Guava Technologies.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are subject to financial market risks, including changes in interest fet of December 31, 2008, approximately 38% of our por
loans were at fixed rates and 62% of our loans were at variable rates. Over fitoeaddvestments may be at variable rates. We do not
currently engage in any hedging activities. However, we may, in the future, hedge agaiest rate fluctuations by using standard hedging
instruments such as futures, options, and forward contracts. While hedging aatiajiénsulate us against changes in interest rates, they may
also limit our ability to participate in the benefits of lower interegsavith respect to our borrowed funds and higher interest rates with t
to our portfolio of investments. Interest rates on our borrowings are based primarlg®@R.LBorrowings under our SBA program are fixe
the ten-year treasury every March and September for borrowings of the precedimap#is. Borrowings under the program are charged
interest based on ten year treasury rates plus a spread and the rates alfg genfar a pool of debentures issued by the SBA in six month
periods. The rate for the $12 million of borrowings originated from March 13, 2007 to Septem2@®7A®as set by the SBA on
September 26, 2007 at 5.528%. The rate for the $58.1 million borrowings made after Septemli@at th@p@@h March 13, 2008 was set by
the SBA on March 26, 2008 at 5.471%. The rate for the $38.8 million borrowings made afterll8la?©08 through September 10, 2008 was
set by the SBA on September 24, 2008 at 5.725%. In addition, the SBA charges an annual feet tyaniglly, depending on the Federal
fiscal year the leverage commitment was delegated by the SBA, regarfiiessiate that the leverage was drawn by the SBIC. The 2008 and
2007 annual fee has been set at 0.906%. Interest payments are payable semi-adrthallg are no principal payments required on these
issues prior to maturity.

On May 7, 2008, we amended and renewed our Credit Facility with Citigroup and Deutsche Batikgpforia borrowing capacity of
$134.9 million. Under the terms of the agreement, we paid a renewal fee of approxiha8ehillion, interest on all borrowings was set at
LIBOR plus a spread of 5.0%, and a fee of 2.50% that is charged on any unused portion oftthélfeeiredit Facility expired on
October 31, 2008 and are entered the amortization period which expires on April 30, 2009 whsteatiiog principal and interest are due
and payable. Interest charged during this period is at LIBOR plus a spread of 6.50%.&yomere of the amount outstanding under the
Credit Facility, the facility’s collateral will be released and ala# to collateralize the Wells Facility or other financings or borrowings at
later date.
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Borrowings under the Wells Facility will generally bear interest ateapat annum equal to Libor plus 3.25% or PRIME plus 2.0%, but
not less than 5.0%. The Wells Facility requires the payment of a non-use fee afrtb8dy, which reduces to 0.3% on the one year
anniversary of the credit facility. The Wells Facility is collateradi by debt investment in our portfolio companies, and includes an advance
rate equal to 50% of eligible loans placed in the collateral pool. The Well#yFgeiterally requires payment of interest on a monthly basis.
All outstanding principal is due upon maturity, which includes the extension ifissg@r&Ve paid a or- time $750,000 structuring fee in
connection with the Wells Facility.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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MANAGEMENT’'S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL REPORTING

The management of Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. (the “Company’pisiséisle for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting and for the assessment of the \edfezts of internal control over financial reporting. As defined
SEC, internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the sopefvise Company’s principal executive and principal
financial and accounting officer, and effected by the Company’s Board of Directaragement and other personnel, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparatioaofifil statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is supported by written gadingéprocedures, that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and féérty tieé transactions and dispositions of the Company’s assets;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neressary preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Coenpaimganade only in accordance with
authorizations of the Company’s management and directors; and (3) provide reaaesataace regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could hasea eff@ct on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial regpntiay not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk thadlsenaly become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management of the Company conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of the ‘€amgxanay control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrateelvork issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“the COSO Framework”). Baséis@ssessment, management has concluded that the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of Deredd, 2008.

The Company'’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 hasidiesthtay Ernst & Young LLP, an

independent registered public accounting firm who also audited the Coragamgolidated financial statements. Their attestation report (
Company’s internal control over financial reporting appears on Page 76.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of assets anesliabtiercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc.,
including the consolidated schedules of investments, as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, atebticenmetdidated statements of operations,
changes in net assets and cash flows for each of the three years in the period eshbeCRL, 2008. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opiriesefirtancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards of the Public CompanyiAgddvetsight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonableassout whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, exsdpporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significaatesstimde by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our procedures included confirmation of secavitied as of December 31, 2008, by correspondence with the
custodians. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above presenirfaillynaterial respects, the consolidated financial
position of Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. at December 31, 2008 and 2007, the cexsagldts of its operations, the changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ecelatdéde31, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company AccounsighOBeard (United States), Hercules
Technology Growth Capital, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting agoémber 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring OrganizdtibasTreadway Commission and our report dated
March 9, 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Francisco, California
March 9, 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc.

We have audited Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc.’s internal control naaci&l reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued bythenitee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Hercules Technology Growth Capital, marsigement is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectivenesgsrofi control over financial reporting included in the
accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportimgsunsibility is to express an opinion on the
company'’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company AccountiighOBeard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuraneetbeueffective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining astandieg of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaheatiegign and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necégsairgimistances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to preagimable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external esiipagccordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes thogggsohnd procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect thadtmms and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary pguamation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the compamgarnatie only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance negeetition or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a refferian the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial regpntiay not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risbtirais may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. maintained, in all matesjedats, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company AccounsighOBeard (United States), the
consolidated statements of assets and liabilities, including the consolidateédlsstaé investments of Hercules Technology Growth Capital,
Inc. as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operation8) oeaagssts, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008 of Hercules Technology Growthi@agited our report dated March 9, 2009
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

San Francisco, California
March 9, 2009

76

file://c:\WINNT\Profiles\hallers\Desktop\2009 -k hercules.htr 5/10/201(



Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, -

Table of Contents

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(in thousands, except per share data)

Asset:
Investment:

Non-affiliate investments (cost of $583,592 and $513,106, respec
Affiliate investments (cost of $8,756 and $6,344, respecti
Total investments, at value (cost of $592,348 and $519,450, respe:

Deferred loan origination reven

Cash and cash equivale

Interest receivab

Other asse

Total assei

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabili
Shor-term credit facilit

Long-term SBA debentur

Total liabilities

Net asset

Net assets consist ¢
Common stock, par val
Capital in excess of par va
Deferred stock compensat
Unrealized appreciation on investme
Accumulated realized gains on investm
Distributions in excess of investment incc

Total net asset
Shares of common stock outstanding ($0.001 par value, 60,000 authoriz
Net asset value per shal

See Notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31

December 31

2008 2007
$ 579,07¢ $ 525,72
2,22: 4,247
581,30 529,97.
(6,871) (6,599
17,24: 7,85¢
8,80: 6,381
8,197 4,321
608,67: 541,94
9,43: 6,95¢
89,58: 79,20
127,20 55,05(
226,21 141,20¢
$ 382,45¢ $ 400,73
$ 33 $ 33
398,08: 393,53
(2,329) (78)
(11,297 10,12¢
3,90¢ 81¢
(5,944) (3,696)
$ 382,45¢ $ 400,73
33,09¢ 32,54
$  11.5¢ $ 1231
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)
1 Principal ) Va3|ue
Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment®) Amount  Cost? @)
. Drug Discovery Senior Debt
*
Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.649%) Matures January 2010
Interest rate 10.25 $ 1,75¢ $ 1,728 $ 1,72¢
Preferred Stock Warrar 69 59€
Preferred Stock Warrar 35 11€
Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.3! Preferred Stoc 1,24¢ 1,354
Total Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, | 3,07¢ 3,79¢
. Drug Discovery Senior Debt
Aveo Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (3.9’#@) Matures November 2011
Interest rate 11.13 $ 15,00C 14,90¢ 14,90«
Preferred Stock Warrar 19C 257
Preferred Stock Warrar 104 83
Preferred Stock Warrar 24 28
Total Aveo Pharmaceuticals, Ii 15,22: 15,27:
s - Drug Discovery Senior Debt
Elixir Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (2.9148) Matures December 2010 Interest rate Prime + 4 $ 11,000 11,000 11,000
Preferred Stock Warrar 217 11€
Total Elixir Pharmaceuticals, Ir 11,217  11,11¢
- . Drug Discovery Senior Debt
EpiCept Corporation (0.33%) Matures April 2009
Interest rate 15.00 $ 8 8 8
Common Stock Warrar 161 992
Common Stock Warrar 40 25C
Total EpiCept Corporatic 20¢  1,25C
. ) Drug Discovery Senior Debt
Horizon Therapeutics, Inc. (1.92%)) Matures July 2011
Interest rate Prime + 1.5( $ 7,20C 7,042 7,042
Preferred Stock Warrar 231 281
Total Horizon Therapeutics, Ir 7,27: 7,32
Inotek Pharmaceuticals Corp. (0.3( Drug Discover Preferred Stoc 1,500 1,144
Total Inotek Pharmaceuticals Cc 1,50C 1,144
. ) Drug Discovery Senior Debt
Memory Pharmaceuticals Corp. (2.8%9%) Matures December 2010
Interest rate 11.45 $ 11,87¢ 10,97¢ 10,97¢
Common Stock Warrar 1,751 —
Total Memory Pharmaceuticals Cc 12,73(  10,97¢
Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.19%%) Drug Discovery o, o red Stock Warrar 158 742
Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.6¢ Preferred Stoc 2,00( 2,61(
Total Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, | 2,15¢ 3,35¢
Paratek Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.04%) Drug Discover Preferred Stock Warrar 137 164
Paratek Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.2. Preferred Stoc 1,000 92€
Total Paratek Pharmaceuticals, 1,137 1,09
. ¢ Drug Discovery Senior Debt
Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (3.14%b) Matures September 2011
Interest rate Prime + 2.1¢ $ 11,66¢ 11,60C 11,60C
Preferred Stock Warrar 152 39¢
Total Portola Pharmaceuticals, | 11,75 11,99¢
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Portfolio Company
Recoly, N.V. (0.79%

Total Recoly, N.V
Total Drug Discovery (18.39%)

Affinity Videonet, Inc. (1.70%"

Total Affinity Videonet, Inc

E-band Communications, Inc. (0.24“7/3)

Total E-Band Communications, Ir

IKANO Communications, Inc. (3.2296)

Total IKANO Communications, In

Kadoink, Inc. (0.5094f)

Kadoink, Inc. (0.07%
Total Kadoink, Inc

Neonova Holding Company (2.35

Neonova Holding Company (0.06
Total Neonova Holding Compa

Peerless Network, Inc. (0.3460)7)

Peerless Network, Inc. (0.00
Total Peerless Network, Ir

Ping Identity Corporation (0.0096)
Total Ping Identity Corporatic

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Industry

Type of Investmenf!)

Drug Discovery Senior Debt

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Matures May 2012
Interest rate Prime + 4.2¢

Senior Debt
Matures June 2012
Interest rate Prime + 4.5(
Senior Debt
Matures June 2012
Interest rate Prime + 5.5(
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures June 2012
Interest rate Prime + 3.5(
Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures April 2011
Interest rate 11.00
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures April 2011
Interest rate Prime + 2.0(
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures September 2012
Interest rate Prime + 3.2¢
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures June 2011
Interest rate Prime + 3.2¢
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Preferred Stock Warrar

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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. Value
Z\rmghpr?tl Cost? @

$ 3,000 $ 3,000 $ 3,00C
3,00C _ 3,00¢
69,27( 70,32(

$ 4,000 3,94z 3,947

$ 2,00 2,000 2,00C

$ 50C 50C 50C

75 57
6,517  6,49¢
2,00¢ 904
2,00 904

$ 11,94¢ 11,94¢ 11,94¢

73 221
12,06+ 12,31¢

$ 187¢ 1,83 1,83

73 72
25C 25C
2,158 2,15«

$ 9,000 8931 8,931

94 66
25C 224
9,278 9,221

$ 1,37¢  1,31¢  1,31¢

95 —
1,00C —
2,41 1,31¢

52 2

52 2
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Portfolio Company
Purcell Systems, Inc. (2.55%)

Total Purcell Systems, Ir

Rivulet Communications, Inc. (0.5168)

Rivulet Communications, Inc. (0.00'
Total Rivulet Communications, Ir

Seven Networks, Inc. (2.649%)

Total Seven Networks, Ir
Stoke, Inc. (0.71%)

Total Stoke, Inc

Tectura Corporation (6.5496)

Total Tectura Corporatic

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Industry
Communications &

Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Type of Investmenf!)

Senior Debt
Matures June 2010
Interest rate Prime + 3.5(
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures July 2009
Interest rate Prime + 2.7¢
Senior Debt
Matures July 2011
Interest rate Prime + 3.5(
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures April 2010
Interest rate 10.50
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures April 2010
Interest rate Prime + 6.0(
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures September 2009
Interest rate Prime + 5.0(
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures August 2010
Interest rate 10.55
Senior Debt
Matures August 2010
Interest rate 10.05
Senior Debt
Matures August 2010
Interest rate 7.30
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures April 2012
Interest rate LIBOR + 6.90
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures April 2009
Interest rate LIBOR + 6.35
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures March 2009
Interest rate LIBOR + 7.50
Preferred Stock Warrar

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Value

Principal
Amount  Cost?) ®)
$ 1,65¢ $ 1,601 $ 1,601
$ 6,00C 6,00C 6,00C
$ 1,60C 1,60 1,60C
128 53¢
9,324 9,73¢
$ 1,98: 1,96( 1,96(
50 —
25C 4
2,26( 1,96¢
$ 6,941 6,87¢ 6,87¢
$ 3,00C 3,00C 3,00C
174 20¢
10,04¢ 10,08
$ 574 54& 54&
$ 1,14 1,14« 1,14¢
$ 94¢€ 94¢€ 94¢€
53 91
2,68¢ 2,72¢
$ 7,23 7,43¢ 7,43¢
$ 12,00C 12,00 12,00(
$ 5,507 5,507 5,507
51 77
24,997 25,02¢
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment!)
- Communications &  Senior Debt
Wireless Channels, Inc. (3'04%)) Networking Matures April 2010
Interest rate Prime + 4.2¢
Senior Debt
Matures August 2010

Interest rate Prime + 0.5(
Preferred Stock Warrar

Total Wireless Channels, It

Zayo Bandwidth, Inc. (6.42%) Communications &  Senior Debt
Networking Matures November 2013
Interest rate Libor +5.25
Total Zayo Bandwith, Ini
Total Communications & Networking (30.89%)
Software Senior Debt
Atrenta, Inc. (2'36%5) Matures January 2010
Interest rate 11.50
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures October 2009
Interest rate Prime + 2.0(
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Atrenta, Inc. (0.05% Preferred Stoc
Total Atrenta, Inc
Blurb, Inc. (1.76%) Software Senior Debt

Matures December 2009
Interest rate 9.55
Senior Debt
Matures June 2011
Interest rate Prime + 3.5(
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Total Blurb, Inc

Software Senior Debt
Matures July 2012
Interest rate Libor + 7.25
Preferred Stock Warrar

Braxton Technologies, LLC. (2.64%%)

Total Braxton Technologies, LL

Bullhorn, Inc. (0.26%) Software Senior Debt
Matures November 2010
Interest rate Prime + 3.7¢
Preferred Stock Warrar
Total Bullhorn, Inc
Cittio, Inc. (0.19%) Software Senior Debt
Matures May 2010
Interest rate 11.00
Preferred Stock Warrar

Total Cittio, Inc
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Principal

Amount  Cost®  value®

$ 10,00C $ 10,38¢ $ 10,38

$ 89t 89t 89t

15E 344

11,43« 11,62:¢

$ 25,00( 25,00( 24,561

25,00( 24,56:

120,22¢ 118,13:

$ 2,78¢ 2,742 2,742

$ 6,00C 6,00( 6,00(

103 17¢€

34 58

71 43

25C 197

9,20(C 9,21¢

$ 1,41« 1,40% 1,408

$ 5,00C 4,701 4,701

25 35C

29¢ 27€

6,43( 6,732

$ 10,00( 9,91¢ 9,91¢

18¢ 172

10,10+ 10,08¢

$ 782 76C 76C

43 222

803 982

$ 731 72C 72C

58 ___—=

773 72C
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Portfolio Company
Clickfox, Inc. (0.65%)

Total Clickfox, Inc

Forescout Technologies, Inc. (0.40%)

Total Forescout Technologies, |

GameLogic, Inc. (0.00%Y
Total GameLogic, Ini

Gomez, Inc. (0.22%
Total Gomez, Inc

HighJump Acquisition, LLC. (3.929%9

Total HighJump Acquisition, LL(

HighRoads, Inc. (0.0204)
Total HighRoads, In
Infologix, Inc. (5.49%f"

Total Infologix, Inc
Intelliden, Inc. (0.37%)

Total Intelliden, Inc

Oatsystems, Inc. (0.0048)
Total Oatsystems, In
Proficiency, Inc. (0.00%4§)(7)®)

Proficiency, Inc. (0.00%
Total Proficiency, Inc

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Industry
Software

Software

Software

Software

Software

Software

Software

Software

Software

Software

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Type of Investmenf!)

Senior Debt
Matures September 2011
Interest rate 10.25
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures August 2009
Interest rate 11.15
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures March 2009
Interest rate Prime + 2.2¢
Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stock Warrants

Preferred Stock Warrants

Senior Debt
Matures May 2013
Interest rate Prime + 7.5(

Preferred Stock Warrants

Senior Debt
Matures May 2012
Interest rate Prime + 8.7¢
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures November 2009
Interest rate Prime + 6.7¢

Senior Debt
Matures February 2010
Interest rate 13.20
Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stock Warrants

Senior Debt
Matures August 2012
Interest rate 8.00
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc
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. Value
Z\rmghpr?tl Cost? @

$ 2,500 $ 2,357 $ 2,357
163 131
2,520 2,48¢

$ 90€ 892 892

$ 50C 50C 50C

99 13C
1,491 1,522
92 3
92 3
35 832
35 832

$ 15,00 15,00 15,00C
15,00C 15,00(

44 59
44 59

$ 12,00¢ 12,007 12,007

$ 9,00 _9,00C _ 9,00C
21,007 21,000

$ 1,39¢ 1,39/ 1,39/

18 38
1,41z 1,43

67 —

67 —

$ 1500 1491 @ —
97  —

275 —

434 —
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Portfolio Company
PSS Systems, Inc. (0.65%)

Total PSS Systems, It
Rockyou, Inc. (0.72%f)

Total Rockyou, Inc
Savvion, Inc. (1.429%f)

Total Savvion, Inc
Sportvision, Inc. (0.02%9
Total Sportvision, In

WildTangent, Inc. (0.01%
Total WildTangent, In
Total Software (21.15%,

Luminus Devices, Inc. (3.08%)

Total Luminus Devices, In

Maxvision Holding, LLC. (2.71%f)

Maxvision Holding, LLC. (0.07%f)

Total Maxvision Holding, LL(

Shocking Technologies, Inc. (0.94%)

Total Shocking Technologies, i

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Industry
Software

Software

Software

Software

Software

Electronics &
Computer
Hardwar¢

Electronics &
Computer
Hardwar¢

Electronics &
Computer
Hardwar¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Type of Investmentf!)

Senior Debt
Matures May 2010
Interest rate 11.48
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures May 2011
Interest rate Prime + 2.5(
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures April 2009
Interest rate Prime + 3.4¢
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures March 2009
Interest rate Prime + 4.4¢
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures March 2009
Interest rate Prime + 3.0(
Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stock Warrants

Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures December 2010
Interest rate 12.875
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures October 2012
Interest rate Prime + 5.5(
Senior Debt
Matures April 2012
Interest rate Prime + 2.2¢

Common Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures December 2010
Interest rate 9.75
Senior Debt
Matures December 2010
Interest rate 7.50
Preferred Stock Warrar
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Value

Principal
Amount  Cost? ®)
$ 2,427 $2,40: $ 2,40¢
51 96
2,45¢ 2,49¢
$ 2,75C 2,674 2,674
117 66
2,791 2,74C
$ 331 27¢ 27¢
$ 3,36¢€ 3,36¢€ 3,36¢€
$ 1,61¢ 1,61¢ 1,61¢
53 16€
5,317 5,432
39 91
39 91
23¢ 41
23¢ 41
84,161 80,88t
$ 11,79: 11,51+ 11,51«
182 50
84 25
334 18¢
12,118 11,77¢
$ 5,00C 5,00C 5,00C
$ 5,167 5,36: 5,36:
81 26¢
10,44 10,63
$ 22t 192 192
$ 3,36t 3,36¢ 3,36¢
63 55
3,62( 3,612
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company
SiCortex, Inc. (1.83%)

Total SiCortex, Inc

Spatial Photonics, Inc. (0.976%)

Spatial Photonics, Inc. (0.13'
Total Spatial Photonics Ir

VeriWave, Inc. (0.85%)

Total Veriwave, Inc
Total Electronics & Computer Hardware (10.58%)

Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (2.06%)

Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.268b)
Total Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, |

Panacos Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.0@%)

Panacos Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.0
Total Panacos Pharmaceuticals,

Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Company (5.2696)

Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Company (0.2
Total Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Comp
Total Specialty Pharmaceuticals (7.81%)

Industry
Electronics &

Computer Hardware

Electronics &

Computer Hardware

Electronics &
Computer
Hardwar¢

Specialty
Pharmaceuticals

Specialty
Pharmaceutica

Specialty
Pharmaceuticals

Type of Investmenf!)
Senior Debt
Matures December 2010
Interest rate 10.95
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures April 2011
Interest rate 10.066
Senior Debt
Mature April 2011
Interest rate 9.217
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures May 2010
Interest rate 10.75
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures September 2009
Interest rate Prime + 4.5(
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures September 2011
Interest rate Prime + 2.5(

Covertible Senior Debt Matures December 2009 Iistenage
Prime + 2.50¢

Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stoc

Common Stock Warrar
Common Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures October 2011
Interest rate Prime +4.8¢

Covertible Senior Debt Matures May 2009 Interet Rrime +
2.50%

Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stoc

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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. Value
Z\rmghpr?tl Cost? @

$ 7,36¢ $ 7,274 $ 6,774
164 21€
7,438 6,99(

$ 3,21€ 3,14€  3,14¢

$ 321 321 321

131 251
50C 50C
4,09¢  4,21¢

$ 254¢ 2,507 2,507

54 76

46 38
3,237 _ 3,251
40,95: 40,48(

$ 7,52t 7528 752t

$ 17¢ 17¢ 17¢

69 272

1,00C _ 1,00C

8,772  8,97¢

877 11

41C 28

1,287 39

$ 20,00 19,761 19,761
$ 82 82 82
22C 143

30€ 12C

75C 75C

21,121 20,85¢

31,18( 29,87(
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

- Value
Principal
Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investmenf®) Amount  Cost? @)
Annie’s, Inc. (1.59%) Consumer & Senior Debt - Second Lien
Business Matures April 2011
Product Interest rate LIBOR + 6.50 $ 6,000 $ 582« $ 5,82
Preferred Stock Warrar 321 272
Total Anni€’s, Inc 6,14¢ 6,097
. Consumer & Senior Debt
IPA Holdings, LLC. (4'50%51) Business Matures November 2012
Product Interest rate Prime + 3.5( $ 10,00C 10,00C 10,00C
Senior Debt
Matures May 2013
Interest rate Prime + 6.0( $ 6,50C 6,59( 6,59(
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures November 2012
Interest rate Prime + 2.5( $ 60C 60C 60C
IPA Holding, LLC.(0.12% Common Stoc 50C 447
Total IPA Holding, LLC 17,69C 17,631
Market Force Information, Inc. (0.0l‘%) Consumer &
Business
Product Preferred Stock Warrar 24 40
Market Force Information, Inc. (0.07" Preferred Stoc 50C 274
Total Market Force Information, Ir 524 314
. Consumer & Revolving Line of Credit
OnTech Operations, Inc. (0.0163) Business Matures June 2009
Product Interest rate Prime + 5.62¢ $ 54 54 54
Preferred Stock Warrar 452 —
Preferred Stock Warrar 21€& —
OnTech Operations, Inc. (0.00 Preferred Stoc 1,000 —
Total OnTech Operations, It 1,72 54
Consumer &
Wageworks, Inc. (0.23%) BUsiness
Product Preferred Stock Warrar 252 881
Wageworks, Inc. (0.07¢ Preferred Stoc 25C 26€
Total Wageworks, In 502 1,147
Total Consumer & Business Products (6.60%) 26,58t 25,24¢
. Semiconductors Senior Debt
Custom One Design, Inc. (0.14%3) Matures September 2010
Interest rate 11.50 $ 7% 76E 522
Common Stock Warrar 18 —
Total Custom One Design, It 782 522
Enpirion, Inc. (1.97%) Semiconductors Senior Debt
Matures August 2011
Interest rate Prime + 4.0( $ 7,50C 7,38¢ 7,38¢
Preferred Stock Warrar 157 13€
Total Enpirion, Inc 7,54¢ 7,52¢
iWatt Inc. (0.07%" Semiconductors o forred Stock Warrar 46 28
Preferred Stock Warrar 51 13
Preferred Stock Warrar 73 13
Preferred Stock Warrar 45¢ 222
iWatt Inc. (0.25% Preferred Stoc 49C 961
Total iwatt Inc 1,11¢ 1,237

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Portfolio Company
NEXX Systems, Inc. (2.03%%)

Total NEXX Systems, In
Quartics, Inc. (0.08%§)®)

Total Quartics, Inc

Solarflare Communications, Inc. (0.11%)

Solarflare Communications, Inc. (0.0C
Total Solarflare Communications, |
Total Semiconductors (4.65%

Labopharm, Inc. (5.55%4)(©)

Total Labopharm USA, In
Transcept Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.9(%)

Transcept Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.0$%)
Total Transcept Pharmaceuticals,
Total Drug Delivery (6.52%)

BARRX Medical, Inc.(0.86%)

BARRX Medical, Inc. (0.36%
Total BARRX Medical, Inc

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Industry
Semiconductors

Semiconductors

Semiconductors

Drug Delivery

Drug Delivery

Therapeutic

Type of Investmenf!)

Senior Debt

Matures March 2010

Interest rate Prime + 3.5(
Revolving Line of Credit

Matures December 2009

Interest rate Prime + 3.0(
Revolving Line of Credit

Matures December 2009

Interest rate Prime + 5.0(
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures August 2010
Interest rate 8.80
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures August 2010
Interest rate 11.75
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures December 2011
Interest rate 10.95
Common Stock Warrar
Common Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures October 2009
Interest rate 10.69
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Mature December 2011
Interest rate 11.00
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Value

Principal
Amount  Cost? @)
$ 2,65¢ $ 2,59: $ 2,59¢
$ 4,60t 4,60¢ 4,60¢
$ 39t 39t 39t
165 182
7,75¢ 7,77¢
$  62¢ 601 28€
53 —
654 28€
$ 464 42C 42C
83 —
641 —
1,144 42C
19,00: 17,76¢
$ 20,00C 19,58: 19,58:
45¢ 1,20€
1432 422
20,187 21,21«
$ 3,35% 3,33¢ 3,33¢
35 46
51 75
50C 287
3,92( 3,742
24,107 24,952
$ 3,33 3,27(C 3,27(C
63 41
1,50 1,38¢
4,83: 4,69¢
5/10/201(
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Portfolio Company
EKOS Corporation (1.29%)

Total EKOS Corporatic
Gelesis, Inc. (0.39%)

Total Gelesis, Ini

Gynesonics, Inc. (0.02%)
Gynesonics, Inc. (0.08¢
Total Gynesonics, In

Light Science Oncology, Inc. (0.01
Total Light Science Oncology, Ir

Novasys Medical, Inc. (0.96¢4)

Novasys Medical, Inc.(0.12¢
Total Novasys Medical, In

Power Medical Interventions, Inc. (0.00
Total Power Medical Interventions, I
Total Therapeutic (4.09%)

Cozi Group, Inc. (0.04%)
Cozi Group, Inc. (0.06%

Total Cozi Group, Int

Invoke Solutions, Inc. (0.29%)

Total Invoke Solutions, In
Prism Education Group Inc. (0.42%)

Total Prism Education Group It

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Industry
Therapeutic

Therapeutic

Therapeutic

Therapeuti

Therapeutic

Therapeuti

Internet Consumer
& Business
Service

Internet Consumer
& Business
Service

Internet Consumer
& Business
Service

Type of Investmentf!)

Senior Debt
Matures November 2010
Interest rate Prime + 2.0(
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures May 2012
Interest rate Prime + 5.6¢
Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures February 2010
Interest rate 9.70
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Common Stock Warrar

Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures November 2009
Interest rate Prime + 3.7¢
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures December 2010
Interest rate 11.25
Preferred Stock Warrar

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Principal
Amount  Cost?)

Value
@3)

$ 5,000 $ 4,84€ $ 4,84¢
€ 51

158 25

5,17¢ 4,92

$ 1,500 1,477 1,477
27 27

1,50¢ 1,50/

18 92

25C 304

26€ 39€

98 26

98 26

$ 3,607 358 3,58t
71 56

54 25

55E 444

4,268 4,11:

21 1

21 1

16,16¢ _15,66!

147 15C

177 22E

324 37&

$ 982 99C 99C
56 101

26 23

1,072 1,114

$ 151€ 1,49z 1,49
43 11&

1,53t 1,607
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

- Value
Principal
Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment®) Amount  Cost? @)
. Internet Consumer Revolving Line of Credit
RazorGator Interactive Group, Inc. (0.94%) 2 Business Matures January 2009
Service Interest rate Prime + 1.8( $ 3,000 $ 3,00C $ 3,00C
Preferred Stock Warrar 13 562
Preferred Stock Warrar 29 42
RazorGator Interactive Group, Inc. (0.4¢ Preferred Stoc 1,000 1,70¢
Total RazorGator Interactive Group, | 4,042 5,31z
Serious USA, Inc. (0.36%) Internet Consumer Senior Debt
& Business Matures February 2011
Service Interest rate Prime + 7.0( $ 2,90¢ 2,851 1,351
Preferred Stock Warrar 93 —
Total Serious USA, In 2,94« 1,351
Spa Chakra, Inc. (2.61%) Internet Consumer Senior Debt
& Business Matures June 2010
Service Interest rate 14.45% $ 10,00C 10,00C 10,00C
Total Spa Chakra, In 10,00 10,00(
Total Internet Consumer & Business Services (5.17%) 19,917 19,75¢
P Ener Senior Debt
Lilliputian Systems, Inc. (1.15%) 9y Matures March 2010
Interest rate Prime + 6.0( $ 432 4,204 4,20¢
Preferred Stock Warrar 15E 19C
Total Lilliputian Systems, In 4,35¢ 4,39¢
Total Energy (1.15%) 4,35¢ 4,39
. Information Senior Debt
Active Response Group, Inc. (2.52#3) Services Matures March 2012
Interest rate LIBOR + 6.55 $ 6,90t 6,86: 6,862
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures December 2009
Interest rate Prime + 14.0( $ 3,00C 3,00( 3,00(
Common Stock Warrar 92 11
Preferred Stock Warrar 46 11
Active Response Group, Inc. (0.0:#’3) Common Stoc 10& 10&
Total Active Response Group, | 10,10¢ 9,99(
Box.net, Inc. (0.37%) Information Senior Debt
Services Matures June 2011
Interest rate Prime + 1.5( $ 1,00C 95C 95C
Senior Debt
Matures September 2011
Interest rate Prime + 0.5( $ 40C 40C 40C
Preferred Stock Warrar 73 48
Total Box.net, Inc 1,428 1,39¢
Buzznet, Inc. (0.00%) Information
Service Preferred Stock Warrar 9 —
Buzznet, Inc. (0.069 Preferred Stoc 25C 224
Total Buzznet, Inc 25¢ 224

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Portfolio Company
hi5 Networkss, Inc. (2.21%)

Total hi5 Networks, Int

Jab Wireless, Inc. (3.9498)

Total Jab Wireless, In

Solutionary, Inc. (1.68%)

Solutionary, Inc. (0.049
Total Solutionary, Inc

The Generation Networks, Inc. (1.5298)
The Generation Networks, Inc. (0.12
Total The Generation Networks, |

Visto Corporatio
Total Visto Corporation (0.169

Wallop Technologies, Inc. (0.03%)

Total Wallop Technologies, Ir

Zeta Interactive Corporation (3.74(%)

Zeta Interactive Corporation (0.13
Total Zeta Interactive Corporati
Total Information Services (16.61%)

Novadaq Technologies, Inc. (0.0%
Total Novadaq Technologies, Ii

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Industry
Information
Services

Information
Services

Information
Services

Information
Services

Information
Services

Information
Services

Diagnostic

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Type of Investmenf!)

Senior Debt
Matures December 2010
Interest rate Prime + 2.£
Senior Debt
Matures June 2011
Interest rate Prime + 0.5
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures November 2012
Interest rate Prime + 6.5(
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures June 2010
Interest rate LIBOR + 5.50
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures June 2010
Interest rate LIBOR + 5.00
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures December 2012
Interest rate 7.42
Common stoc

Common Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures April 2010
Interest rate 10.00
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures November 2011
Interest rate Prime +2.0C
Senior Debt
Matures November 2011
Interest rate Prime +3.0C
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Common Stoc
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Principal

Amount  Cost?  Value®

$ 3,00C $ 3,00 $ 3,00C

$ 5,49¢ 5,36: 5,36:

2132 75

8,57¢ 8,43¢

$ 15,00 14,82: 14,82

264 24€

15,08¢  15,06¢

$ 4,59¢ 4,80¢ 4,80¢

$ 1,50C 1,50C 1,50C

94 128

2 3

25C 162

6,65¢ 6,59¢

$ 5,93 5,93( 5,82¢

50C 471

6,43( 6,297

602 602

602 602

$ 134 131 131

7 —

13¢€ 131

$ 6,164 6,06 6,06:

$ 8,00C 8,00C 8,00C

172 222

50C 50C

14,738 14,78¢

64,011 63,537

1,62¢ 198

1,62¢ 198
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

- Value
Principal
Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investmenf®) Amount  Cost? @)
. . . Diagnostic Senior Debt
Optiscan Biomedical, Corp. (2.69%)) Matures June 2011
Interest rate 10.25 $ 10,00C $ 9,51¢ $ 9,51¢
Preferred Stock Warrar 76C 782
Optiscan Biomedical, Corp. (0.79 Preferred Stoc 3,00( 3,00(
Total Optiscan Biomedical, Coi 13,27¢ 13,30!
Total Diagnostic (3.53% 14,90¢ 13,49«
Guava Technologies, Inc. (1.28%) Biotechnology Tools Senior Debt
Matures May 2011
Interest rate Prime + 10.5( $ 2,80C 2,791 2,791
Convertible Dek $ 25C 25C 25C
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures December 2009
Interest rate Prime + 9.5( $ 1,84C 1,84C 1,84(
Preferred Stock Warrar 10€ —
Preferred Stock Warrar 68 —
Total Guava Technologies, Ii 5,061 4,887
Biotechnology Tools Senior Debt
Kamada, LTD. (5'13%§) Matures February 2012
Interest rate 10.60 $ 20,00C 19,57: 19,57
Common Stock Warrar 531 41
Common Stock Warrar 20 8
Total Kamada, LTC 20,12: 19,62
NuGEN Technologies, Inc. (0.67' Biotechnology Tools Senior Debt
Matures November 2010
Interest rate Prime + 3.4 $ 1,54¢ 1,52C 1,52C
Senior Debt
Matures November 2010
Interest rate Prime + 1.7( $ 892 892 892
Preferred Stock Warrar 45 161
Preferred Stock Warrar 33 18
NuGEN Technologies, Inc. (0.07' Preferred Stoc 50C 26E
Total NuGEN Technologies, Ir 2,99( 2,85¢
. Biotechnology Tools Senior Debt
Solace Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(0.46%) Matures August 2012
Interest rate Prime + 4.2¢ $ 1,75C 1,711 1,711
Preferred Stock Warrar 42 49
Total Solace Pharmaceuticals, 1,75¢ 1,76(
Total Biotechnology Tools (7.61%) 29,927 29,12«
Crux Biomedical, Inc. (0.009 Surgical Device Preferred Stock Warrar 37 —
Crux Biomedical, Inc. (0.019 Preferred Stoc 25C 26
Total Crux Biomedical, Ini 287 26

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

90

file://c:\WINNT\Profiles\hallers\Desktop\2009 -k hercules.htr 5/10/201(



Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, - Page93 of 14C

Table of Contents

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Principal

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment) Amount _Cost?  Value®
. Surgical Devices Senior Debt
Transmedics, Inc. (2.6198) 9 Matures December 2011
Interest rate Prime + 5.2¢ $ 10,00 $ 9,81« $ 9,81«
Preferred Stock Warrar 224 172
Total Transmedics, In 10,03¢ 9,987
Total Surgical Devices (2.62% 10,32¢ 10,01
Glam Media, Inc. (2.18%) Media/Content/Info Revolving Line of Credit
Matures April 2009
Interest rate Prime + 1.5( $ 8,28t 8,13¢ 8,13¢
Preferred Stock Warrar 482 20¢
Total Glam Media, Int 8,62- 8,34¢
. Media/Content/Info Senior Debt
Waterfront Media Inc. (2.08%) Matures September 2010
Interest rate Prime + 3.0( $ 2,597 2,57¢ 2,57¢
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures October 2009
Interest rate Prime + 1.2 $ 5,00C 5,00( 5,00(
Preferred Stock Warrar 60 392
Waterfront Media Inc. (0.369 Preferred Stoc 1,000 1,358
Total Waterfront Media In 8,63¢ 9,32(
Total Media/Content/Info (4.62%) 17,25¢ 17,66¢
Total Investments (151.99¢ $592,34¢ $581,30:

Value as a percent of net ass

(1) Preferred and common stock, warrants, and equi¢yests are generally n-income producing

(2) Gross unrealized appreciation, gross unrealiegdteciation, and net depreciation for federal inedax purposes totaled $8,473, $22,551 and $14r83gectively. The tax cost of
investments is $595,37

(3) Except for warrants in six publicly traded comjes and common stock in three publicly traded camigs, all investments are restricted at Decembg2@08 and were valued at fair
value as determined in good faith by the Board isé®ors. No unrestricted securities of the sarseds are outstanding. The Company uses the Stahuthrstrial Code for classifyir
the industry grouping of its portfolio compani

(4) Debt and warrant investments of this portfolio camyp have been pledged as collateral under the Gredility. Citigroup has an equity participatidght on loans collateralized unc
the Credit Facility. The value of their participatiright on unrealized gains in the related eqgintestments was approximately $498,000 at Dece®bge?008 and is included in
accrued liabilities and reduced the cumulative alized gain recognized by the Company at Decembg2@08.

(5) Debt investments of this portfolio company haverbpledged as collateral under the Wells Faci

(6) Non-U.S. company or the compe’s principal place of business is outside the Un8tates

(7) Affiliate investment that is defined under timvéstment Company Act of 1940 as companies in WHIEBC owns as least 5% but not more than 25% ofitiieg securities of the
company. All other investments are less than 5%eula

(8) Debt is on no-accrual status at December 31, 2008, and is theerefmsidered nc-income producing

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.9448)*

Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.4!
Total Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, |

Aveo Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (3.06’%)

Total Aveo Pharmaceuticals, Ii
Elixir Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (3.58%)

Total Elixir Pharmaceuticals, Ir
EpiCept Corporation (1.77%)

Total EpiCept Corporatic
Horizon Therapeutics, Inc. (0.30%)

Total Horizon Therapeutics, Ir
Inotek Pharmaceuticals Corp. (0.37
Total Inotek Pharmaceuticals Cc

Memory Pharmaceticals Corp. (3.48%)

Total Memory Pharmaceticals Cc
Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.376b)

Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.7¢
Total Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, |
Neosil, Inc. (1.53%

Total Neosil, Inc

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Industry
Drug Discovery

Drug Discovery

Drug Discovery

Drug Discovery

Drug Discovery

Drug Discover

Drug Discovery

Drug Discovery

Drug Discovery

Type of Investmenf!)

Senior Debt
Matures June 2009
Interest rate 10.25
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures September 2009
Interest rate 10.75
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures June 2010
Interest rate Prime + 2.4¢
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures August 2009
Interest rate 11.70
Common Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures April 2011
Interest rate 8.75
Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures February 2011
Interest rate 11.45
Common Stock Warrar

Convertible Senior Debt
Matures October 2008
Interest rate 11.15

Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures May 2010
Interest rate 10.75
Preferred Stock Warrar

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Principal

Amount  Cost?  Value®

$ 3,237 $3,18. $ 3,18/

69 472

35 10¢

1,247 1,804

4,531 5,56¢

$ 12,07¢ 11,98 11,98¢

144 204

46 74

12,17:  12,26:

$ 13,997 13,83¢ 13,83¢

217 511

14,05 14,347

$ 7,301 6,87¢ 6,87¢

423 214

7,301 7,092

$ 12,00C 1,022 1,022

17¢ 17¢

1,201 1,201

1,50 1,50

1,50C 1,50C

$ 15,00 13,60¢ 13,60¢

1,751 341

15,35¢  13,94¢

$ 1,02« 994 994

15¢& 502

2,00 2,781

3,14¢ 4,28t

$ 6,000 5,93¢ 5,93¢

82 177

6,01¢ 6,11:
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Portfolio Company
Paratek Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.64%)

Paratek Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.1.
Total Paratek Pharmaceuticals,

Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (3.80%b)

Total Portola Pharmaceuticals, |

Sirtris Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (2.469)

Sirtris Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.1¢
Total Sirtris Pharmaceuticals, Ii
Total Drug Discovery (23.78%

E-band Communications, Inc. (O.Sd%)

Total E-Band Communications, Ir

IKANO Communications, Inc. (5.099)

Total IKANO Communications, In

Ping Identity Corporation (0.4096)

Total Ping Identity Corporatic
Purcell Systems, Inc. (2.33%)

Total Purcell Systems, Ir

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Industry
Drug Discovery

Drug Discovery

Drug Discovery

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Type of Investmenf!)

Senior Debt
Matures June 2008
Interest rate 11.10
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures September 2010
Interest rate Prime + 1.7¢
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures April 2011
Interest rate 10.60
Common Stock Warrar
Common Stoc

Preferred Stock

Senior Debt
Matures March 2011
Interest rate 11.00
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures June 2009
Interest rate 11.50
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures June 2009
Interest rate Prime + 3.5(
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures June 2008
Interest rate Prime + 2.0(
Preferred Stock Warrar

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

93

file://c:\WINNT\Profiles\hallers\Desktop\2009 -k hercules.htr

Page9s of 14C
Principal

Amount Cost®  Vvalue®

$ 2,587 $ 2,56 $ 2,56¢

137 —

55C 55C

3,25¢ 3,11¢

$ 15,00C 14,89¢ 14,89«

152 35C

15,04¢ 15,24+«

$ 907¢ 9,02 902

89 81¢&

50C 77€

9,611 10,61¢

93,19¢ 95,29

2,000 2,000

2,00 2,00

$ 19,98: 19,98: 19,98:

45 1632

7 25€

20,10C 20,40:

$ 1,63 1,60¢ 1,60¢

52 11

1,66( 1,61¢

$ 2,22 3,12¢ 3,12¢

$ 7,00C 6,00C 6,00(

122 19¢

9,24¢ 9,324
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company
Rivulet Communications, Inc. (0.83%%)

Rivulet Communications, Inc. (0.06'
Total Rivulet Communications, Ir

Seven Networks, Inc. (2.899%)

Total Seven Networks, Ir

Simpler Networks Corp. (1.0194)

Simpler Networks Corp. (0.00¢
Total Simpler Networks Cor

Stoke, Inc. (0.57%)

Total Stoke, Inc

Tectura Corporation (5.269)

Total Tectura Corporatic

Teleflip, Inc. (0.25%)

Total Teleflip, Inc
Wireless Channels, Inc. (3.02%)

Total Wireless Channels, It

Industry
Communications &

Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Communications &
Networking

Type of Investmenf!)

Senior Debt
Matures September 2009
Interest rate 10.60
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures April 2010
Interest rate Prime + 3.7¢
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures April 2008
Interest rate Prime + 3.0(
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures July 2009
Interest rate 11.75
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures August 2010
Interest rate 10.55
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures March 2012
Interest rate LIBOR + 6.15
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures March 2008
Interest rate LIBOR + 5.15
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures May 2010
Interest rate Prime + 2.7¢
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt -Second Lien
Matures April 2010
Interest rate 9.25

Senior Debt -Second Lien
Matures April 2010
Interest rate Prime + 4.2¢

Preferred Stock Warrar

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Principal

Amount  Cost?  Value®

$ 3,50C $ 3,272 $ 3,27

50 63

25C 25C

3,572 3,58¢

$ 9,41¢ 9,291 9,291

$ 2,00C 2,00 2,00

174 29E

11,468  11,58¢

$ 4,112 4,04¢ 4,04¢

16C —

50C —

4,70¢ 4,04¢

$ 2,25 2,20¢ 2,20¢

53 79

2,251 2,28t

$ 9,051 9,007 9,007

$ 12,00C 12,00C 12,00(

52 83

21,05¢  21,09(

$ 1,00C 992 992

10 9

1,00z 1,001

$ 11,94¢ 1,71¢ 1,71¢

$ 10,11¢ 10,11¢ 10,11¢

15¢ 241
11,99: 12,07¢
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company
Zayo Bandwith, Inc. (6.24%)

Industry

Communications &

Type of Investmenf!)
Senior Debt -Second Lien

Networking Matures April 2013
Interest rate Prime + 3.5(
Total Zayo Bandwith, Ini
Total Communications & Networking (28.45%)
Software Senior Debt
Atrenta, Inc. (0'98%?) Matures June 2009
Interest rate 11.50
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar
Atrenta, Inc. (0.06% Preferred Stoc
Total Atrenta, Inc
Blurb, Inc. (0.63%) Software Senior Debt
Matures December 2009
Interest rate 9.55
Preferred Stock Warrar
Total Blurb, Inc
Software Senior Debt
Bullhorn, Inc. (0.25%) Matures March 2010
Interest rate Prime + 3.7¢
Preferred Stock Warrar
Total Bullhorn, Inc
Cittio, Inc. (0.25%) Software Senior Debt
Matures April 2010
Interest rate 11.00
Total Cittio, Inc
Software Senior Debt
Compete, Inc. (0'63%‘5) Matures March 2009
Interest rate Prime + 3.5(
Preferred Stock Warrar
Total Compete, In
" Software Senior Debt
Forescout Technologies, Inc. (0.649%) Matures August 2009
Interest rate 11.15
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures August 2007
Interest rate Prime + 1.4¢
Preferred Stock Warrar
Total Forescout Technologies, |
Software Senior Debt

GameLogic, Inc. (0.74%

Total GameLogic, Ini

Matures December 2009
Interest rate Prime + 4.12¢
Preferred Stock Warrar

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

95

file://c:\WINNT\Profiles\hallers\Desktop\2009 -k hercules.htr
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Principal

Amount  Cost®  value®

$ 25,00( $ 25,00 $ 25,00(

" 25,000 __25,00(

114,06: 114,01

$ 3,68C 3,63¢ 3,63¢

102 22C

34 73

25C 25C

4,024 4,181

$ 2,50C 2,48: 2,482

25 44

2,507 2,52¢

$ 1,00C 95¢ 95¢

43 41

1,002 1,00C

$ 1,00C 1,00C 1,000

1,00C 1,00C

$ 2,40¢ 2,38¢ 2,38¢

62 13€

2,44¢ 2,52(

$ 1,99¢ 1,97C 1,97C

$ 50C 50C 50C

58 76

2,52¢ 2,54¢

$ 3,00C 2,881 2,881

93 91

2,98( 2,97¢
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment?)

of4) Software  Senior Debt
Gomez, Inc. (0.15 Aﬁ Matures December 2007

Interest rate 12.25
Preferred Stock Warrar
Total Gomez, Inc

HighRoads, Inc. (0 010)@ Software Preferred Stock Warrants

Total HighRoads, In

Intelliden, Inc. (0.60%) Software  Senior Debt
Matures February 2010
Interest rate 13.20
Preferred Stock Warrar

Total Intelliden, Inc

Software  Senior Debt
Matures September 2009
Interest rate 11.00
Preferred Stock Warrar

Oatsystems, Inc. (1.0848)

Total Oatsystems, In

Software  Senior Debt
Matures July 2008
Interest rate 12.00
Preferred Stock Warrar
Proficiency, Inc. (0.19% Preferred Stoc
Total Proficiency, Inc

Proficiency, Inc. (0.38%$)(®)

Software  Senior Debt
Matures March 2010
Interest rate 10.74
Preferred Stock Warrar

PSS Systems, Inc. (0.89%)

Total PSS Systems, It

Software  Senior Debt

Matures March 2009
Interest rate Prime + 3.4¢

Revolving Line of Credit
Matures March 2008
Interest rate Prime + 2.0(

Revolving Line of Credit
Matures March 2008
Interest rate Prime + 3.4¢

Preferred Stock Warrar

Sawvion, Inc. (1.62%f)

Total Savvion, Inc
Sportvision, Inc. (0.01% Software Preferred Stock Warrar
Total Sportvision, Inc

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Page98 of 14C

Principal
Amount  Cost®  value®

$ 9% $ 98 $ 98

35 512
132 611
44 58
44 58

$ 2,36( 2,34¢ 2,34¢

2,361 2,40¢

$ 4,37¢ 4,33¢ 4,33¢

4,407 434C

$ 1,50C 1,497 1,497

96 —
2,75C 75C
4,34: 2,247

$ 3,50C 3,462 3,462

3,514 3,54¢

$ 1,26¢ 1,26¢ 1,26¢
$ 3,000 3,00 3,00

$ 1,98t 1,98¢ 1,98¢

52 2432
6,30¢ 6,49¢
39 50
39 50
5/10/201(
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Portfolio Company
Talisma Corp. (0.11%9
Total Talisma Cory

WildTangent, Inc. (0.50%9

Total WildTangent, In
Total Software (9.72%,

Agami Systems, Inc. (1.3094)

Total Agami Systems, In

Luminus Devices, Inc. (2.95%)

Total Luminus Devices, In

Maxvision Holding, LLC. (2.87%f)

Total Maxvision Holding, LL(
NetEffect, Inc. (0.61%

Total NetEffect, Inc

Shocking Technologies, Inc. (0.02%)

Total Shocking Technologies, i

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Industry

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

Type of Investmentf!)

Software

Software

Preferred Stock Warrants

Senior Debt
Matures March 2011
Interest rate 9.65
Preferred Stock Warrar

Electronics & Senior Debt
Computer Matures August 2009
Hardwar¢ Interest rate 11.00

Preferred Stock Warrar

Electronics & Senior Debt
Computer Matures August 2009
Hardwar¢ Interest rate 12.50

Electronics &
Computer
Hardwar¢

Electronics &
Computer
Hardwar¢

Electronics &
Computer
Hardwar¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures May 2012
Interest rate Prime + 5.5(
Senior Debt
Matures May 2012
Interest rate Prime + 2.2¢
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures September 2012
Interest rate Prime +2.2¢

Senior Debt
Matures May 2010
Interest rate 11.95
Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stock Warrants
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Principal

Amount  Cost®  Value®

$ 49 $ 448

49 44¢€

$ 2,00C 1,76€ 1,76€

23€ 23€

2,004 2,004

39,68¢ 38,96!

$ 5,102 5,05¢ 5,05¢

85 137

5141  519¢

$ 1511¢  11,31¢ 11,31

182 112

84 61

334 334

11,91¢ 11,82¢

$ 5,01z 5,01z 5,01z

$ 5,50C 5,00( 5,00(

$ 972 1,472 1,472

11,48¢ 11,48¢

$ 2,431 2,39¢ 2,39¢

44 50

2,44( 2,44¢

63 63

63 63
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company
SiCortex, Inc. (2.52%)

Total SiCortex, Inc

Spatial Photonics, Inc. (0.93%%)

Spatial Photonics, Inc. (0.12'
Total Spatial Photonics Ir

VeriWave, Inc. (1.35%)

Total Veriwave, Inc

ViDeOnline Communications, Inc. (0.04%)

Total ViDeOnline Communications, It
Total Electronics & Computer Hardware (12.71%)

Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (2.488b)

Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.2¢
Total Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, |

Panacos Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (4.84%)

Panacos Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.0
Total Panacos Pharmaceuticals,

Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Company (3.669%)

Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Company (0.1
Total Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Comp
Total Specialty Pharmaceuticals (11.40%

Industry
Electronics &
Computer
Hardwar¢

Electronics &
Computer
Hardwar¢

Electronics &
Computer
Hardwar¢

Electronics &
Computer
Hardwar¢

Specialty
Pharmaceuticals

Specialty
Pharmaceuticals

Specialty
Pharmaceuticals

Type of Investmenf!)

Senior Debt
Matures December 2010
Interest rate 10.95
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures May 2011
Interest rate 10.75
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures May 2010
Interest rate 10.75
Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures August 2010
Interest rate Prime + 2.5(
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures January 2011
Interest rate 11.20
Common Stock Warrar
Common Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures January 2010
Interest rate Prime + 3.0(
Preferred Stock
Warrant:
Preferred Stoc

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Principal

Amount  Cost?  Value®

$ 10,00C $ 9,861 $ 9,861

164 23C

10,02t 10,09

$ 3,751 3,62: 3,62:

13C 12€

50C 50C

4,25 4,24¢

$ 4,25 5,34( 5,34(

54 85

5,394 5,42¢

29¢€ 17€

29¢€ 17€

51,017 50,95!

$ 9,73t 9,682 9,682

70 243

1,000 1,000

10,75 10,92t

$ 20,00 19,27¢C 19,27(

87€ 137

41C 157

20,55¢  19,56¢

$ 14,32¢ 14,21¢ 14,21«

22C 192
75C 75C
15,18< 15,15

46,49: _45,64¢
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment) Amount  Cost®  value®
. Consumer &
0)
BabyUniverse, Inc. (0.05%) Busmess
Product Common Stoc $ 267 § 21¢
Total BabyUniverse, In 267 21¢
: Consumer & Senior Debt
Market Force Information, Inc. (0.34¢%) Business Matures May 2009
Product Interest rate 10.45 $ 1,29 1,282 1,28¢
Preferred Stock Warrar 23 92
Market Force Information, Inc. (0.12' Preferred Stoc 50C 50C
Total Market Force Information, Ir 1,807 1,87¢
Consumer &
0
Wageworks, Inc. (0.1204) BUsiness
Product Preferred Stock Warrar 252 512
Wageworks, Inc. (0.05¢ Preferred Stoc 25C 20¢
Total Wageworks, In 502 722
Total Consumer & Business Products (0.70%) 2,57¢ 2,817
. ) Semiconductors Senior Debt
Ageia Technologies, Inc. (1.25%) Matures August 2008
Interest rate 10.25 $ 5,047 4,904 4,90
Convertible Dek 124 124
Preferred Stock Warrar 99 —
Ageia Technologies, Inc. (0.00 Preferred Stoc 50C —
Total Ageia Technologit 5,621 5,02¢
Custom One Design, Inc. (0.26%) Semiconductors Senior Debt
Matures September 2010
Interest rate 11.50 $ 1,00C 984 984
Common Stock Warrar 18 43
Total Custom One Design, It 1,002 1,027
; o) Semiconductors Senior Debt
iwatt Inc. (1.19 /°§4 Matures September 2009
Interest rate Prime + 2.7¢ $ 1,457 1,382 1,382
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures September 2007
Interest rate Prime + 1.7¢ $ 3,23t 3,23¢ 3,23t
Preferred Stock Warrar 46 101
Preferred Stock Warrar 51 51
Total iwatt Inc 4,71« 4,76¢
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investmenf?)
Semiconductors Senior Debt

o(4)
NEXX Systems, Inc. (3.269 Matures February 2010

Interest rate Prime + 2.7¢
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures December 2009
Interest rate Prime + 1.7¢
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures December 2009
Interest rate Prime + 3.7¢
Preferred Stock Warrar
Total NEXX Systems, In
. o Semiconductors Senior Debt
Quartics, Inc. (0.09 Af}) Matures August 2010
Interest rate 11.05
Preferred Stock Warrar

Total Quartics, Inc

Solarflare Communications, Inc. (0.19%) Semiconductors Senior Debt
Matures August 2010
Interest rate 11.75
Preferred Stock Warrar
Solarflare Communications, Inc. (0.12 Preferred Stoc
Total Solarflare Communications, |

Total Semiconductors (6.36%

(5) Drug Delivery Senior Debt
Labopharm USA, Inc. (3.74%) Matures July 2008

Interest rate 11.95
Preferred Stock Warrar

Total Labopharm USA, In
Drug Delivery Senior Debt
Matures October 2009
Interest rate 10.69
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar
Transcept Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (0.1 Preferred Stoc
Total Transcept Pharmaceuticals,
Total Drug Delivery (5.67%)
BARRX Medical, Inc. (0.19% Therapeuti Preferred Stoc
Total BARRX Medical, Inc

Transcept Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (1.86%)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Principal
Amount Cost?  value®

$ 4,551 $ 4,43t $§ 4,43¢

$ 5,00C 5,000 5,00

$ 3,00 3,000 3,00¢
165 622
12,60: 13,061

$ 30C 254 254

53 11&
307 36¢
$ 62E 552 552
84 194
50C 50C
1,137 1,247
25,39C 25,50

$ 15,000 14,547 14,547
45¢ 454
15,00¢ 15,001

$ 6990 694 694

36 107

50 172

50C 50C
7,53(C 7,724
22,53¢ 22,72¢
1,50C 75€
1,50C 75€
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Portfolio Company
EKOS Corporation (1.28%)

Total EKOS Corporatic

Gynesonics, Inc. (0.01%)
Gynesonics, Inc. (0.06¢
Total Gynesonics, In

Novasys Medical, Inc. (1.65¢4)

Total Novasys Medical, In

Power Medical Interventions, Inc. (0.02
Total Power Medical Interventions, I
Total Therapeutic (3.21%)

Invoke Solutions, Inc. (0.56%)

Total Invoke Solutions, In
Prism Education Group Inc. (0.51%)

Total Prism Education Group It

RazorGator Interactive Group, Inc. (1.174})

RazorGator Interactive Group, Inc. (1.2:
Total RazorGator Interactive Group, |

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Industry
Therapeutic

Therapeutic

Therapeutic

Therapeuti

Internet
Consumer
& Busines:
Service

Internet
Consumer
& Busines:
Service

Internet
Consumer
& Busines:
Service

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Type of Investment!)

Senior Debt
Matures November 2010
Interest rate Prime + 2.0(
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures January 2010
Interest rate 9.70

Common Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures December 2008
Interest rate 11.25
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures December 2010
Interest rate 11.25
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures January 2008
Interest rate 9.95
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

file://c:\WINNT\Profiles\hallers\Desktop\2009 -k hercules.htr

~
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Principal

Amount  Cost®  value®

$ 5000 $4,701 $ 4,707

174 281

153 15¢

5038 513t

18 40

25C 25C

26€ 29C

$ 6,60¢ 6,60¢ 6,60¢

6,60¢ 6,60¢

21 58

21 58

13,43: 12,85:%

$ 2,181 2,15¢ 2,15¢

56 74

11 10

2,22 2,23¢

$ 2,00C 1,964 1,964

44 67

2,00¢ 2,031

$ 1,13« 1,11¢ 1,11¢

13 3,20:

28 362

1,00 4,93¢

2,16( 9,61¢
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment!)
Serious USA, Inc. (0.75%) Internet

Consumer Senior Debt

& Business Matures February 2011

Service Interest rate Prime + 3.0(

Revolving Line of Credit
Matures July 2008
Interest rate Prime + 2.0(
Preferred Stock Warrar
Total Serious USA, In
Total Internet Consumer & Business Services (4.229

Energy Senior Debt
Matures March 2010
Interest rate 9.75
Preferred Stock Warrar

Lilliputian Systems, Inc. (1.75%)

Total Lilliputian Systems, In
Total Energy (1.75%)

Active Response Group, Inc. (2.50%) Information Senior Debt
Services Matures March 2012
Interest rate LIBOR + 6.55
Preferred Stock Warrar
Common Stock Warrar

Total Active Response Group, |

Buzznet, Inc. (0.25%) Information Senior Debt
Services Matures March 2010
Interest rate 10.25
Preferred Stock Warrar

Buzznet, Inc. (0.069 Preferred Stoc
Total Buzznet, Inc
hi5 Networks, Inc. (1.00%) Information Senior Debt
Services Matures March 2011

Interest rate Prime + 2.£
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures June 2011
Interest rate 7.75
Preferred Stock Warrar
Total hi5 Networks, In

Jab Wireless, Inc. (0.78%) Information Senior Debt
Services Matures March 2012
Interest rate 10.75
Preferred Stock Warrar

Total Jab Wireless, In
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Principal
Amount Cost?  value®

$ 2,450 $2,37C $ 2,37C

$ 654 654 654

93 5
3,117 3,02¢
9,507 _16,91¢

$ 6,956 6,931 6,931

48 85
6,97¢ 7,01€
6,97¢ 7,01€

$ 10,00C 9,88t 9,88t
83

92
46 60
10,02:  10,02¢

$ 914 90€ 90€

9 86
25C 25C
1,167 1,244

$ 3,000 2,78¢ 2,78¢

1,00C 1,00C
212 214
4,002 4,002

$ 3,097 283 2,83¢

264 26E
3,09¢ 3,09¢
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Portfolio Company
Solutionary, Inc. (1.78%)

Solutionary, Inc. (0.069
Total Solutionary, Inc

The Generation Networks, Inc. (4.12%)

The Generation Networks, Inc. (0.12

Total The Generation Networks, |
Wallop Technologies, Inc. (0.06%)

Total Wallop Technologies, Ir

Zeta Interactive Corporation (3.74%%)

Zeta Interactive Corporation (0.12
Total Zeta Interactive Corporati
Total Information Services (14.59%

Novadaq Technologies, Inc. (0.32
Total Novadaq Technologies, Ii

Optiscan Biomedical, Corp. (0.08%))
Optiscan Biomedical, Corp. (0.18

Total Optiscan Biomedical, Col
Total Diagnostic (0.58%

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Industry
Information
Services

Information Services

Information Services

Information
Services

Diagnostic

Diagnostic

Type of Investment!)

Senior Debt
Matures June 2010
Interest rate LIBOR + 5.50
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures June 2010
Interest rate LIBOR + 5.00
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures March 2012
Interest rate Prime + 4.5(
Preferred Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures March 2010
Interest rate 10.00
Preferred Stock Warrar

Senior Debt
Matures November 2011
Interest rate Prime + 2.0(
Senior Debt
Matures November 2011
Interest rate Prime + 3.0(
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

Common Stoc

Senior Debt
Matures March 2008
Interest rate 15.00
Preferred Stock Warrar
Preferred Stoc

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Principal

Amount  Cost®  value®

$ 5526 $545¢ $ 545¢

$ 1508 1,508 1,50

94 15C

2 5

25C 25C

7,30¢ 7,36¢

$ 16,50( 16,50( 16,50(

50C 50C

17,00 17,00(¢

$ 222 21€ 218

7 9

22E 227

$ 15,00( 6,82¢ 6,82¢

8,00( 8,00(

172 171

50C 50C

15,50( 15,49¢

58,32( 58,46

1,62¢ 1,284

1,62¢ 1,282

$ 271 263 263

80 47

1,000 722

1,343 1,032

2,96¢ 2,31¢€
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Principal

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment!) Amount  Cost®  value®
. Biotechnology Tools Senior Debt
Guava Technologies, Inc. (1.7793) 9y Matures July 2009
Interest rate Prime + 3.2¢ $ 4,07¢ $479C $ 4,79
Convertible Dek 25C 25C
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures December 2007
Interest rate Prime + 2.0( $ 2,59 1,77¢ 1,77¢
Preferred Stock Warrar 105 20C
Preferred Stock Warrar 69 93
Total Guava Technologies, Ii 6,992 7,111
NuGEN Technologies, Inc. (0.53 Biotechnology Tools  Senior Debt
Matures March 2010
Interest rate 11.70 $ 1,88¢ 1,81¢ 1,81¢
Preferred Stock Warrar 45 252
Preferred Stock Warrar 32 32
NuGEN Technologies, Inc. (0.12 Preferred Stoc 50C 50C
Total NuGEN Technologies, Ir 2,39¢ 2,60:
Total Biotechnology Tools (2.42% 9,38¢ 9,71£
. Advanced Specialty
Rubicon Technology Inc. (0'69%) Materials & Chemica  Preferred Stock Warrar 82 2,764
Total Rubicon Technology Ir 82 2,764
Total Advanced Specialty Materials & Chemicals (0.8%) 82 2,764
Crux Biomedical, Inc. (0.15%) Surgical Devices Senior Debt
Matures December 2010
Interest rate Prime + 3.37¢ $ 60C 56& 56&
Preferred Stock Warrar 37 36
Crux Biomedical, Inc. (0.069 Preferred Stoc 25C 25C
Total Crux Biomedical, Ini 852 851
. . Surgical Devices Senior Debt
Diomed Holdings, Inc. (1.49%) Matures July 2010
Interest rate Prime + 3.0( $ 6,00C 5,96: 5,962
Common Stock Warrar 43 8
Total Diomed Holdings, In 6,00¢ 5,97(C
Light Science Oncology, Inc. (2.50%) Surgical Devices Senior Debt
Matures July 2011
Interest rate 11.20 $ 10,00(¢ 9,60¢ 9,60t
Preferred Stock Warrar 39t 39t
Total Light Science Oncology, Ir 10,00( 10,00(
Total Surgical Devices (4.20% 16,857 16,82!

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment!) Amofm Cost?  value®
. Media/Content/Info Senior Debt
Waterfront Media Inc. (1.54%Y Matures December 2010
Interest rate Prime + 3.0( $ 3,941 $ 3,89¢ $ 3,89¢
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures March 2008
Interest rate Prime + 1.2 $ 2,00C 2,00( 2,00(
Preferred Stock Warrar 60 29t
Waterfront Media Inc. (0.25¢ Preferred Stoc 1,000 1,000
Total Waterfront Media In 6,95¢ 7,19:
Total Media/Content/Info (1.79%) 6,95¢ 7,19:
Total Investments (132.24¢ $519,45( $529,97.

Value as a percent of net ass

(1) Preferred and common stock, warrants, and equi¢yests are generally n-income producing

(2) Gross unrealized appreciation, gross unrealisgteciation, and net appreciation for federal inedax purposes totaled $16,430, $9,009 and $7ré8pectively. The tax cost of
investments is $522,55

(3) Except for warrants in ten publicly traded comipa and common stock in four publicly traded comigs, all investments are restricted at Decembg@17 and were valued at fair
value as determined in good faith by the Board isé®ors. No unrestricted securities of the sarseds are outstanding. The Company uses the Stahuthrstrial Code for classifyir
the industry grouping of its portfolio compani

(4) Debt and warrant investments of this portfolio camyp have been pledged as collateral under the Gredility. Citigroup has an equity participatidght on loans collateralized unc
the Credit Facility. The value of their participatiright on unrealized gains in the related eqgintestments was approximately $690,000 at Dece®bge2007 and is included in
accrued liabilities and reduces the unrealized gaingnized by the Company at December 31, 2

(5) Non-U.S. company or the compe’s principal place of business is outside the Un8tates

(6) Affiliate investment that is defined under tmvéstment Company Act of 1940 as companies in WHIEBC owns as least 5% but not more than 25% ofitiieg securities of the
company. All other investments are less than 5%eula

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Investment incom:
Interes
Fee:
Total investment incon
Operating expense
Interes
Loan fee
General and administrati
Employee Compensatic
Compensation and bene
Stock-based compensati
Total employee compensat
Total operating expens

Net investment income before provision for income taxes and investment gainssa:
Provision for income tax

Net investment incon

Net realized gain (loss) on investme

Provision for excise t¢

Net increase (decrease) in unrealized appreciation on inves
Net realized and unrealized gain (Ic

Net increase in net assets resulting from opere

Net investment income before provision for income taxes and investment gainssasdlescommo

share
Basic

Diluted

Change in net assets per common s
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shares outstan
Basic

Diluted

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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For the Years Ended December 3

200¢ 2007 200¢€
$67,28:  $48,75,  $26,27¢
8,55¢ 5,127 3,23(
75,83t 53,88: 29,50¢
13,12 4,40« 5,77(
2,64¢ 1,29( 81C
6,89¢ 5,437 5,40¢
11,598 9,13t 5,77¢
1,59¢ 1,127 617
13,18 10,26 6,39¢
35,85¢ 21,39: 18,38t
39,98: 32,49: 11,12
— 2 642
39,98: 32,48¢ 10,48(
2,64% 2,791 (1,602)
(203) (139 —
(21,426 7,26¢ 2,50¢
(18,986) 9,92( 904
$20,99:  $42,40¢  $11,38
$ 128 0§ 115§ 08¢
$ 122 0§ 114 $ 0.8z
$ 0.6¢ $ 15 $ 0.8
$ 06/ $ 14 § 0.8/
32,61¢ 28,29t 13,35:
32,61¢ 28,38: 13,52
5/10/201(
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(in thousands)

Accumulated Provision
C%ETE“ Capital Unrealized Realized Distributions  for Income
in excess Deferred Appreciation Gains in Excess of Taxes on
Par of par Stock on (Losses) on Investment Investment Net
Shares  Value value Compensation  Investments  Investments Income Gains Assets
Balance at January 1, 2( 9,80z $ 10 $11452! $ — $ 352§ 48z (8 1,017 $ — $114,35!
Net increase in net assets resulting from
operation — — — — 2,50¢ (1,60¢) 10,48( — 11,38¢
Issuance of common stc 45€ 1 5,28¢ — — — — — 5,28¢
Issuance of common stock in rights offering,
of offering cost 3,412 3 33,82¢ — — — — — 33,82¢
Issuance of common shares in public offerings,
net of offering cos 8,20( 8 104,17: — — — — — 104,17¢
Issuance of common stock under dividend
reinvestment ple 57 — 723 — — — — — 723
Dividends declare — — (1,719) — — — (13,247) — (14,967)
Conversion to a regulated investment company
and other tax iten — — (197 — — (850) 1,047 — —
Stock-based compensati — — 61€ — — — — — 61€
Balance at December 31, 2( 21,923 22 257,23! — 2,861 (1,979) (2,737 — 25541
Net increase in net assets resulting from
operation — — — — 7,26¢ 2,791 32,48¢ (139 42,40¢
Issuance of common stc 26 — 371 — — — — — 371
Issuance of common stock in public offerings,
net of offering cos' 10,04( 11 128,33: — — — — — 128,34.
Issuance of common stock from warrant
exercise 291 — 3,071 — — — — — 3,071
Issuance of common stock under dividend
reinvestment ple 25C — 3,30¢ — — — — — 3,30¢
Issuance of common stock under restricted ¢
plar 7 — 91 (92) — — — — —
Dividends declare — — — — — — (33,313 — (33,313
Stock-based compensati — — 1,127 13 — — — — 1,14
Balance at December 31, 2( 32,541 33 393,53( (79 10,12¢ 81¢ (3,557) (139 400,73
Net increase in net assets resulting from
operation — — — — (21,42¢ 2,64: 39,98! (209 20,99¢
Issuance of common stc 7 — 70 — — — — — 70
Issuance of common stock from exercise of
warrant: 88 — 934 — — — — — 934
Issuance of common stock under restricted ¢
plans 23¢ — 2,847 (2,847) — — — — —
Issuance of common stock under dividend
reinvestment ple 222 — 1,41< — — — — — 1,414
Dividends declare — — — — — — (43,287) — (43,287)
Reclassification of net assets to reflect
permanent book tax differenc — — (1,700) — — 444 1,25¢€ — —
Stock-based compensati — — 98€ 602 — — — — 1,59(C
Balance at December 31, 2( 33,09¢ $ 33 $398,08! $ (232) % (11,29) $ 3,906 $ (5,605 $ (342) $382,45!

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the Years Endec
December 31,

200¢ 2007 200¢
Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers $ 20,99¢ $ 42,40¢ $ 11,38¢
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net agsststing from operations to net cash used in afjpgy activities
Purchase of investmel (351,92¢) (368,119 (195,989
Principal payments received on investm 269,93( 128,68: 87,53¢
Proceeds from sale of investme 20,17( 5,96¢ 4,58¢
Net unrealized depreciation (appreciation) on itwest: 21,42¢ (7,26¢) (2,50¢)
Net unrealized depreciation (appreciation) on ibvests due to lend 143 (82) 34
Net realized (gain) loss on investme (2,647) (2,797) 1,604
Accretion of pai-in-kind principa (954) (321) —
Accretion of loan discoun (7,239) (2,11%) (1,795)
Accretion of loan exit fee (1,58¢) (974) (597)
Depreciatiol 30€ 204 65
Shar+-based compensati 98¢ 1,127 61€
Amortization of restricted stock gra 602 13 —
Common stock issued in lieu of director compens 70 371 28¢
Amortization of deferred loan origination reve (5,17%) (3,01¢) (2,35¢€)
Change in operating assets and liabili
Interest receivab (830C) (2,50€) (830)
Prepaid expenses and other as 50€ (421) 80€
Income tax receivah — 34 (34)
Deferred tax ass — — 1,45¢
Accounts payab 302 (360) 39C
Income tax payab 98 13¢ (1,709
Accrued liabilitie: 1,84( 1,75¢ 2,71¢
Deferred loan origination rever 5,45¢ 6,15¢ 3,077
Net cash used in operating activi (27,527) (201,110 (91,257)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of capital equipment and leasehold inepnent (60€) (181) (817)
Other lon¢-term asse (6) 21E (660
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activ (612) 34 (1,477)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 934 131,41: 143,00¢
Dividends pai (41,86¢) (30,00¢) (14,23¢)
Borrowings of credit facilitie 252,49t 246,55( 50,00(
Repayments of credit faciliti (169,96°) (153,300 (85,000)
Fees paid for credit facilities and debent (4,073) (2,12¢) —
Net cash provided by financing activit 37,52¢ 192,52¢ 93,77(
Net increase (decrease) in ¢ 9,38¢ (8,54¢) 1,042
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p 7,85¢€ 16,404 15,36:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of p $ 17,24 $ 7,85¢ $ 16,40«
Supplemental Disclosure:
Interest pai $ 10,88( $ 281 $ 5,661
Income taxes pa $ 6 $ 2 $ 932
Common stock issued under dividend reinvestmem $ 141 $ 3,30« $ 723
Common stock issued under restricted stock $ 2841 $ 91 $ —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Sigréfit Accounting Policies

Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) is a specialty fir@ropany that provides debt and equity growth capital
to technology-related companies at all stages of development from seed and enmtevgingogexpansion and established stages of
development, including expanding into select publicly listed companies and lower middl¢ coanpanies. The Company sources its
investments through its principal office located in Silicon Valley, as vgathi@ugh its additional offices in the Boston, Massachusetts, Bc
Colorado and Chicago, lllinois. The Company was incorporated under the General Corporatidhea$tate of Maryland in December
2003. The Company commenced operations on February 2, 2004 and commenced investmenira8eptiesber 2004.

The Company is an internally managed, non-diversified closed-end investmenngdhgtehas elected to be regulated as a business
development company (“BDC”) under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “134Bréwt'incorporation through
December 31, 2005, the Company was taxed as a corporation under Subchapter C of theéviemnal Code of 1986, (the “Code”).
Effective January 1, 2006, the Company has elected to be treated for tax purposes ated iegestment company, or RIC, under the Code
(see Note 4).

The Company formed Hercules Technology Il, L.P. (“HT II"), which was licensed onrSleete7, 2006, to operate as a Small Business
Investment Company (“SBIC”) under the authority of the Small Business Admatinsti(“SBA”). As an SBIC, the Fund is subject to a variety
of regulations concerning, among other things, the size and nature of the companies ihméycimvest and the structure of those
investments. The Company also formed Hercules Technology SBIC ManagementHIINT'), a limited liability company. HTM is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company is the sole limited partner of RMTHITaV is the general partner (see Note 3).

The Company also established wholly owned subsidiaries, all of which are stlasubelaware corporations and limited liability
companies, to hold portfolio companies organized as limited liability companiesCsr (or other forms of pass-through entities). We
currently qualify RIC for federal income tax purposes, which allows us to avoid paypayata income taxes on any income or gains that we
distribute to our stockholders. The purpose of establishing these entitiésfisthatRIC tax requirement that at least 90% of our gross income
for income tax purposes is investment income.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and itarsesaskdi inter-company accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. In accordance with ArticRegolffation S-X under the Securities Act of 1933 and the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the Company does not consolidate portfolio companyeirtgestm

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in cynfatinaccounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. This requires management to make estimates and assumgtaffectithe amounts and disclosures reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Such estimates and assumptions could changer& éisenfiore information becomes known, and
actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Valuation of Investments

Our investments are carried at fair value in accordance with the 1940 Actadeiah&it of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 157,Fair Value Measuremen{8FAS No. 157"). At December 31, 2008, approximately 96% of the Company’s total agsetsented
investments in portfolio companies of which greater than 99% are valued at faibyahe=Board of Directors. Value, as defined in Section 2
(a) (41) of the 1940 Act, is (i) the market price for those securities for whigdrlket quotation is readily available and (ii) for all other
securities and assets, fair value is as determined in good faith by the BoarelotdiiSi Since there is typically no readily available market
value for the investments in the Company’s portfolio, it values substantiallyitdliofestments at fair value as determined in good faith
pursuant to a consistent valuation policy and the CompaBgard of Directors in accordance with the provisions of FAS 157 and the 19
Due to the inherent uncertainty in determining the fair value of investments that livea readily available market value, the fair value of
the Companys investments determined in good faith by its Board may differ significantly from line theat would have been used had a r
market existed for such investments, and the differences could be material.

We adopted FAS No. 15Fair Value Measuremen{8FAS 157”) on January 1, 2008. FAS 157 establishes a framework for measuring
the fair value of the assets and liabilities and outlines a fair value hierahitly prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value and the effect
of fair value measures on earnings. FAS 157 also enhances disclosure requif@nf@intgalue measurements based on the level within the
hierarchy of the information used in the valuation. FAS 157 applies whenever otherdgaedaire (or permit) assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value but doesn’t expand the use of fair value in any new circes\stekt 157 defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly ttenrshetween market participants at the measurement date.

In October 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or the FASB, issued FASBSitain (“FSP”) No. 157-3etermining
the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not.A&SReNo. 157-3 clarifies the application of SFAS No. 157 in a
market that is not active. More specifically, FSP No. 157-3 states thaicaghiudgment should be applied to determine if observable data in
a dislocated market represents forced liquidations or distressed sales antirapresentative of fair value in an orderly transaction. FSP
No. 15%-3 also provides further guidance that the use of a reporting entity’s own assumiptionBiaure cash flows and appropriately risk-
adjusted discount rates is acceptable when relevant observable inputsaaailabte. In addition, FSP No. 157-3 provides guidance on the
level of reliance of broker quotes or pricing services when measuring fair value in dimemeket stating that less reliance should be pl
on a quote that does not reflect actual market transactions and a quote that isdiogeoffier. The guidance in FSP No. 157-3 is effective
upon issuance for all financial statements that have not been issued and any changasdn tedhniques as a result of applying FSP
No. 15-3 are accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Consistent with FAS 157, the Company determines fair value to be the amount for whigesiment could be exchanged in a current
sale, which assumes an orderly disposition over a reasonable period of timenheitlireg parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The Company’s valuation policy considers the fact that no ready market exisibgtargially all of the securities in which it invests.

In accordance with FAS 157, the Company has considered the principal market, or tiémvelnieh it exits its portfolio investments
with the greatest volume and level of activity. FAS 157 requires that the portfolgirmemt is assumed to be sold in the principal market to
market participants, or in the absence of a principal market, the most advantagelets Market participants are defined as buyers and <
in the principal or most advantageous market that are independent, knowledgeable jramndnvlhble to transact. The Company believes that
the market participants for its investments are primarily other technosdated companies. Such participants acquire the company’s
investments in order to gain access to the underlying assets of the portfolio comparsh,AkesCompany believes the estimated value of the
collateral of the portfolio company, up to the cost value of the investment, regrdsefair value of the investment.
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Determining fair value requires that judgment be applied to the specifiafadisircumstances of each portfolio investment, althoug
Company’s valuation policy is intended to provide a constant basis for determiniiag tredue of portfolio investments. Unlike banks, the
Company is not permitted to provide a general reserve for anticipated loan lodsesl, liie Company must determine the fair value of each
individual investment on a quarterly basis. The Company records unrealized depreciatw@stments when it believes that an investment
has decreased in value, including where collection of a loan or realizationgfignsecurity is doubtful. Conversely, where appropriate, the
Company records unrealized appreciation if it believes that the underlyirfiglipazbmpany has appreciated in value and, therefore, that its
investment has also appreciated in value.

As a business development company providing debt and equity capital primarily to tgghmddded companies, the Company invests
primarily in illiquid securities including debt and equity-related se@asitif private companies. The Company’s investments are generally
subject to some restrictions on resale and generally have no established temitiely Because of the type of investments that the Company
makes and the nature of its business, its valuation process requires an ahabsisis factors that might be considered in a hypothetical
secondary market. The Company’s valuation methodology includes the examinatideriaf siilar to those used in its original investment
decision, including, among other things, the underlying investment performance, the curfeli gornpanys financial condition and mark
changing events that impact valuation, estimated remaining life, current matlletndenterest rate spreads of similar securities as of the
measurement date. If there is a significant deterioration of the crediymqfa debt investment, we may consider other factors that a
hypothetical market participant would use to estimate fair value, includingdbeqats that would be received in a liquidation analysis.

At December 31, 2008, approximately 96% of the Compatotal assets represented investments in portfolio companies of whitdr
than 99% are valued at fair value by the Board of Directors. Value, as defined anS¢a}i(41) of the 1940 Act, is (i) the market price for
those securities for which a market quotation is readily available andr(&@)l fother securities and assets, fair value is as determined in good
faith by the Board of Directors. Since there is typically no readily availabi&anvalue for the investments in the Company’s portfolio, it
values substantially all of its investments at fair value as determineddhfgith pursuant to a consistent valuation policy and the Company’s
Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions of FAS 157 and the 1940 Act. Due to testinheertainty in determining the fair va
of investments that do not have a readily available market value, the fair véthee@dmpany’s investments determined in good faith by its
Board may differ significantly from the value that would have been used had a redkey exésted for such investments, and the differences
could be material.

When originating a debt instrument, the Company generally receives warrants @upilyerelated securities from the borrower. The
Company determines the cost basis of the warrants or other equity-retatdtiesereceived based upon their respective fair values on the date
of receipt in proportion to the total fair value of the debt and warrants or other egjaigdrsecurities received. Any resulting discount on the
loan from recordation of the warrant or other equity instruments is accretgdterest income over the life of the loan.

At each reporting date, privately held debt and equity securities are valued baseshaiysis of various factors including, but not
limited to, the portfolio company’s operating performance and financial condittbgeneral market conditions that could impact the
valuation. When an external event occurs, such as a purchase transaction, publi; offedbsequent equity sale, the pricing indicated b
external event is utilized to corroborate the Company'’s valuation of the debt and equitties. The Company periodically reviews the
valuation of its portfolio companies that have not been involved in a qualifying exteemalte determine if the enterprise value of the
portfolio company may have increased or decreased since the last valuation measdate. The Company may consider, but is not limited
to, industry valuation methods such as price to enterprise value or price to egostydiatiounted cash flow, valuation comparisons to
comparable public companies or other industry benchmarks in its evaluation of trauaiof its investment. We have a limited number of
equity securities in public companies. In accordance with the 1940 Act, urieestrimorityowned publicly traded securities for which mar
quotations are readily available are valued at the closing market quote on thiewvalat.
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An unrealized loss is recorded when an investment has decreased in value, inalbdiegcollection of a loan is doubtful, there is an
adverse change in the underlying collateral or operational performance, thehaigea m the borrower’s ability to pay, or there are other
factors that lead to a determination of a lower valuation for the debt or equitityseCanversely, unrealized appreciation is recorded whe
investment has appreciated in value. Securities that are traded in the aairttex markets or on a stock exchange will be valued at the
prevailing bid price at period end. The Board of Directors estimates the faér afalvarrants and other equity-related securities in good faith
using a Black-Scholes pricing model and consideration of the issuer’s earniaggpdhird parties of similar securities, the comparison to
publicly traded securities, and other factors.

The Company has categorized all investments recorded at fair value in accovidarie&S 157 based upon the level of judgment
associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value. Hieradelviels, defined by FAS 157 and directly related to the amount of
subjectivity associated with the inputs to fair valuation of these assets lititids are as follows:

Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identietal alsthe measurement date. The types of assets carried at
Level 1 fair value generally are equities listed in active markets.

Level 2—Inputs (other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either direatigiactly observable for the asset in connection with
market data at the measurement date and for the extent of the insteuamicipated life. Fair valued assets that are generally inclu
this category are warrants held in a public company.

Level 3—Inputs reflect management'’s best estimate of what marketgemteE would use in pricing the asset at the measurement date. It
includes prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant tir theldie measurement and unobservable. Generally, assets
carried at fair value and included in this category are the debt investmentsreamtsvand equities held in a private company.

Investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis are categorizecdbiehdelow based upon the lowest level of significant input
to the valuations:

Investments at Fair Value as of December 31, 20
Quoted Prices Ir

Active Markets For Significant Other Significant
(in thousands) Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

Description 12/31/200: (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Senior secured de $534,23( $ — $ — $ 534,23(
Senior det-second lie 5,82¢ — — 5,82¢
Preferred stoc 21,24¢ — — 21,24¢
Common stoc 2,11¢ 221 — 1,89
Warrant: 17,88: — 2,931 14,95:
$581,30: $ 221 $ 2,931 $ 578,14¢
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The table below presents a reconciliation for all assets and liahitidasured at fair value on a recurring basis, excluding accrued i
components, using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Fair Value Measurements Usin

Significant Unobservable Inputs Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2008
Balance at January 1, 2( $ 522,74(
Total gains or lossi

Net realized gains/(lossés) (3,25%)

Net change in unrealized appreciation or depreci@tion (17,67¢)
Purchases, repayments, and exits 76,34:
Transfer in and/or out of leve —
Balance at December 31, 2( $ 578,14¢
Net unrealized losses during the period relating to assets still held at thengegate (8,167)

(1) Includes net realized gains /(losses) recorded as realized gains sritodseaccompanying consolidated statement of opera
(2) Included in change in net unrealized appreciation or depreciation in the accompanyoliglatatsstatement of operatiol

As required by the 1940 Act, the Company classifies its investments by level of cabtnaltdi Investments” are defined in the 1940
Act as investments in those companies that the Company is dee“Control.” Generally, under the 1940 Act, the Company is deemed to
“Control” a company in which it has invested if it owns 25% or more of the voting seswitsuch company or has greater than 50%
representation on its board. “Affiliate Investments” are investment®setbompanies that are “Affiliated Companies” of the Company, as
defined in the 1940 Act, which are not Control Investments. The Company is deemed to ffdiate*Af a company in which it has invested
if it owns 5% or more but less than 25% of the voting securities of such company. “NooiBlamttAffiliate Investments” are those
investments that are neither Control Investments nor Affiliate InwegsnAt December 31, 2008, the Company had investments in three
portfolio companies deemed to be Affiliates. Income derived from these investmas less than $280,000 since these investments became
Affiliates. At December 31, 2006, none of the Comy’s investments were deemed to be Affiliates. No realized gains or ledat=i to
Affiliates were recognized during the years end December 31, 2008, 2007 or 2006. We rdaaweizkzed depreciation of approximat
$4.4 million and $1.7 million on affiliate investments in 2008 and 2007, respectively, and niiadrgains or losses in 2006.

Security transactions are recorded on the trade-date basis.

Income Recognition

Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis to the extent it is exjpeotecbilected. Original Issue Discount (“OIDigpresents th
estimated fair value of detachable equity warrants obtained in conjunction wébghisition of debt securities and is accreted into interest
income over the term of the loan as a yield enhancement. When a loan becomes 90 dag/pastrdae, or if management otherwise does not
expect the portfolio company to be able to service its debt and other obligations, thenZuaiifipas a general matter, place the loan on non-
accrual status and cease recognizing interest income on that loan until gligb@émad interest has been brought current through payment.
However, Hercules may make exceptions to this policy if the investment hasesuffiollateral value and is in the process of collection. There
were fours loans on non-accrual status as of December 31, 2008 with an aggregated cost dibf2a@arfihir values of $864,000. All of
these loans were less than 90 days past due. There were no loans on non-accruakasoefr 3éc2007.
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Contractual paid-in-kind (“PIK") interest, which represents contractuallgrdsd interest added to the loan balance that is generally due
at the end of the loan term, is generally recorded on the accrual basis to tihewntteamounts are expected to be collected. The Compal
generally cease accruing PIK interest if there is insufficient value to duppaccrual or if it does not expect the portfolio company to be able
to pay all principal and interest due. To maintain its status as a RIC, PIK imsostée paid out to stockholders in the form of dividends even
though the Company has not yet collected the cash. Amounts necessary to pay these digiglendgerirom available cash or the liquidation
of certain investments. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company recogmizadtapp$1.0 million and $381,000 in
PIK income. There was no PIK income in 2006.

Loan origination and commitment fees received in full at the inception of a loanfareedend amortized into fee income as an
enhancement to the related loan’s yield over the contractual life of the loan. LoBeesxd be paid at the termination of the loan are accreted
into fee income over the contractual life of the loan. The Company had approximately $6:9 anill $6.6 million of unamortized fees at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and approximately $3.6 million and $2.0 million in eitéaeble at December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively.

In certain investment transactions, the Company may provide advisory servicesvigesdbat are separately identifiable and external
evidence exists to substantiate fair value, income is recognized ad, e@nith is generally when the investment transaction closes. The
Company had no income from advisory services in 2008, 2007 or 2006.

Financing costs

Debt financing costs are fees and other direct incremental costs incurreddpntpany in obtaining debt financing and are recognized
as prepaid expenses amortized into the consolidated statement of operdtiansass over the term of the related debt instrument. As part of
the Credit Facility, at December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had prepaid debt financiigappstsximately $466,000 and $280,000,
respectively, net of accumulated amortization. The prepaid debt financing cosipansdes incurred by the Company with its Wells Facili
approximately $814,000, net of accumulated amortization as of December 31, 2008. There eesaelatéd to the Wells Facility as of
December 31, 2007. In addition, as part of the SBA debenture, the Company had approximatelyi®3.&nchi.5 million, net of
accumulated amortization, of prepaid commitment and leverage fees as of De8&n#f¥8 and 2007, respectively.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers money market funds and other highly liquid short-term investmematsnatturity of less than 90 days to be
cash equivalents.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company recognizes share based compensation in accordance with Statemantiafl Bccounting Standards No. 123 (revised
2004),Share-Based Payme(fFAS 123R’). Under FAS 123R, compensation expense associated with stock based compensation id &t
the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized over tigepergtid. Determining the appropriate fair value model and
calculating the fair value of stock-based awards at the grant date requiresdigeiuding estimating stock price volatility, forfeiture rate
and expected option life.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net earnings applicable to common sharebylttersveighted average number of common shares
outstanding. Common shares outstanding includes common stock and

114

file://c:\WINNT\Profiles\hallers\Desktop\2009 -k hercules.htr 5/10/201(



Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, - Pagel17 of 14C

Table of Contents

restricted stock for which no future service is required as a condition to the ylelibe underlying common stock. Diluted EPS includes the
determinants of basic EPS and, in addition, reflects the dilutive effdot abmmon stock deliverable pursuant to stock warrants and options
and to restricted stock for which future service is required as a condition to trerylefithe underlying common stock.

Income Taxes

We operate to qualify to be taxed as a RIC under the Internal Revenue Code. Gener@llig, entfled to deduct dividends it pays to its
shareholders from its income to determine “taxable income.” Taxable inocindes our net taxable interest, dividend and fee income, as well
as our net realized capital gains. Taxable income includes our net taxatdstimdividend and fee income, as well as our net realized capital
gains. Taxable income generally differs from net income for financial reggrirposes due to temporary and permanent differences in the
recognition of income and expenses. In addition, taxable income generally excludes anyeaha@alieciation or depreciation in our
investments, because gains and losses are not included in taxable income unt! tealzad and required to be recognized. Taxable income
includes certain income, such as contractual payment-in-kind interest andzatimrtdf discounts and fees that is required to be accrued for
tax purposes even though cash collections of such income are generally deferregayrtilent of the loans or debt securities that gave rise to
such income.

We have distributed and currently intend to distribute sufficient dividendsiinatie taxable income. We are subject to a nondeductible
federal excise tax of 4% if we do not distribute at least 98% of our investment conyerlg iacome in any calendar year and 98% of our
capital gain net income for each one year period ending on October 31. During the years eeddxD&t, 2008 and 2007, we recorded a
provision for excise tax of approximately $203,000 and $139,000, respectively, on income anda&iagiti approximately $5.0 million and
4.3 million, respectively, to be distributed in 2009 and 2008. The maximum amount of excbiesiteoane that may be carried over for
distribution in the next year under the Code is the total amount of dividends paid inahénfplyear, subject to certain declaration and
payment guidelines.

Dividends
Dividends and distributions to common stockholders are approved by the Board of Directopsaoredy basis and the dividend paye
is recorded on the ex-dividend date.

We have adopted an “opt out” dividend reinvestment plan that provides for reinvestmendistriution on behalf of our stockholders,
unless a stockholder elects to receive cash. As a result, if our Board of Bimdtoorizes, and we declare a cash dividend, then our
stockholders who have not “opted out” of our dividend reinvestment plan will have their cashdiaidematically reinvested in additional
shares of our common stock, rather than receiving the cash dividends. During 2008 and 2007, the Gsuggbaygroximately 222,000 and
250,000 shares, respectively, of common stock to shareholders in connection with the dividesthrent plan.

Segments

The Company lends to and invests in portfolio companies in various sectors of technlaltagl-Tédne Company separately evaluates the
performance of each of its lending and investment relationships. However, beaclusé these loan and investment relationships has similar
business and economic characteristics, they have been aggregated into a single lendiegtamehinrsegment. All segment disclosures are
included in or can be derived from the Company’s consolidated financial statements

Reclassifications
Certain prior period information has been reclassified to conform to currentrgsantation.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS 157. FAS 157 defines fair value, establiahemnafk for measuring fair value, outlines a
fair value hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhancesrdisetpuirements for fair value measurements. SFAS 157
does not change existing guidance as to whether an instrument is carried atéair valu

The Company adopted FAS 157 effective January 1, 2008. No material change to the Conmgatyed $tatements resulted from its
adoption of FAS 157. For additional information regarding the Company’s adoption of FAS 150ts&; Nhvestments,to the Consolidate
Financial Statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. Th8 Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities—Including
an Amendment of FASB Statement No. This statement permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instranmnestain other
items at fair value. This statement applies to all reporting entities, atairc® financial statement presentation and disclosure requirements for
assets and liabilities reported at fair value as a consequence of tlanelBuis statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal y

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP 157-3 “Determining the Fair Value of a FisssgaM/hen the Market for That Asset Is Not
Active” (FSP 157-3). FSP 157-3 clarifies the application of SFAS No. 157 in a market thaaiginet and addresses application issues such
as the use of internal assumptions when relevant observable data does nbeexsst of observable market information when the market is
not active, and the use of market quotes when assessing the relevance of observable andhiealzda. FSP 157-3 is effective for all
periods presented in accordance with SFAS No. 157. The adoption of FSRIibidet have a significant impact on our financial results o
value determinations.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. EITF 03Betermining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions
Are Participating Securitie (“FSP EITF 03-6-1"). The objective of this FSP is to address questions thatregasding whether unvested
share-based payment awards with rights to receive dividends or dividend equivedeidsbe considered participating securities for the
purposes of applying the two-class method of calculating earnings per sha®)(‘{iiiPsuant to FASB Statement No. 1E&rnings per
Share. In FSP EITF 03-6-1, the FASB staff concluded that unvested share-based paymeésitlaatarontain rights to receive non-forfeitable
dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating secaritgbus, should be included in the two-class method of
computing EPS. It is effective for fiscal years beginning after Decetrihe2008, and interim periods within those years with early application
prohibited. This FSP requires that all prior-period EPS data be adjusted refvedpedlanagement is currently evaluating the impact on our
consolidated financial statements of adopting FSP EITF 03-6-1.

2. Investments

Investments consist of securities issued by privately- and publicly-held comganigsting of senior debt, subordinated debt, warrants
and preferred equity securities. Our investments are identified in the jpaogimy consolidated schedule of investments. Our debt securities
are payable in installments with final maturities generally from 3 to 7 yemrsre generally collateralized by all assets of the borrower.
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A summary of the composition of the Company’s investment portfolio as of December 31nd@&4d at fair value is shown as
follows:

December 31, 200 December 31, 200
Investments at Fait Percentage of Tota Investments at Fait Percentage of Tota
(in thousands) __ Vvalue __ Portfolio __ Vvalue __ Portfolio
Senior secured debt with warrs $ 445,57 76.€% $ 429,76( 81.1%
Senior secured de 106,26t 18.2% 61,48: 11.€%
Preferred stoc 21,24¢ 3.8% 23,26¢ 4.4%
Senior debt-second lien with
warrant: 6,097 1.C% 12,07¢ 2.2%
Common Stoc 2,11¢ 0.4% 2,93¢ 0.5%
Subordinated debt with warra — — 44¢ 0.1%
$ 581,30: 100.(% $ 529,97. 100.(%

A summary of the Company'’s investment portfolio, at value, by geographic location is as:follows

December 31, 200 December 31, 200

Investments at Fait Percentage of Tota Investments at Fait Percentage of Tota
(in thousands’ Value Portfolio Value Portfolio
United State $ 537,47( 92.5% $ 512,72 96.8%
Canad 21,21( 3.€% 15,00: 2.8%
Israe 19,62 3.4% 2,247 0.4%
Netherland 3,00( 0.5%

$ 581,30: 100.(% $ 529,97: 100.(%

The following table shows the fair value of our portfolio by industry sector as of Dec8thii2008 and 2007 (excluding unearned
income):

December 31, 200 December 31, 200
Investments at Fait Percentage of Tota Investments at Fait Percentage of Tota
(in thousands) Value Portfolio Value Portfolio
Communications & networkir $ 118,13 20.2% $ 114,01« 21.5%
Software 80,88¢ 13.9% 38,96: 7.4%
Drug discover 70,32( 12.1% 95,29 18.(%
Information service 63,53: 10.€% 58,46¢ 11.(%
Electronics & computer hardwe 40,48: 7.C% 50,95: 9.€%
Specialty pharmaceutici 29,87( 5.1% 45,64¢ 8.€%
Biotechnology tool 29,12« 5.C% 9,71¢ 1.8%
Consumer & business produ 25,25( 4.2% 2,817 0.5%
Drug deliven 24,95; 4.2% 22,72¢ 4.2%
Internet consumer & business
service 19,75¢ 3.4% 16,91¢ 3.2%
Semiconductol 17,76¢ 3.1% 25,50 4.8%
Media/Content/Informatic 17,66% 3.1% 7,19¢ 1.4%
Therapeuti 15,66: 2.7% 12,85: 2.4%
Diagnostic 13,49 2.2% 2,31¢ 0.5%
Surgical Device 10,01: 1.7% 16,82: 3.2%
Energ) 4,39: 0.8% 7,01¢€ 1.2%
Advanced Specialty Materials
Chemical: —_ — 2,76¢ 0.5%
$ 581,30: 100.(% $ 529,97. 100.(%
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During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company made investments in debttseaindi€346.0 million and
$355.5 million, respectively, and made investments in equity securities of appmlyi&0 million and $12.6 million, respectively. In
addition, during the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company converted approximately $8.afrdélx to equity in four portfolio
companies. The Company exercised an equity participation right with one portfolio coamghognverted $4.8 million of debt to equity
during the year ended December 31, 2007. No single portfolio investment representamaf®tlof the fair value of the investments as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007.

3. Borrowings
Credit Facility

The Company, through Hercules Funding Trust |, an affiliated statutory trust, hagitizesl credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) with
Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp. and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. The@nédit Facility was a one year facility with an interest rate
of LIBOR plus a spread of 1.20% and a borrowing capacity of $250.0 million.

On May 7, 2008, the Company amended and renewed its Credit Facility with Citigroup aschBdsank providing for a borrowing
capacity of $134.9 million and extending the expiration date to October 31, 2008. Under the taerenwénded agreement, the Company
paid a renewal fee of approximately $1.3 million, interest on all borrowings wasLl4BOR plus a spread of 5.0%, and a fee of 2.50% is
charged on any unused portion of the facility. The Credit Facility is collateraljzkébs from the Company’s investment in portfolio
companies, and includes an advance rate of approximately 45% of eligible loans. ThEdgiktjitcontains covenants that, among other
things, require the Company to maintain a minimum net worth and to restrict the loansgsthe Credit Facility to certain dollar amounts, to
concentrations in certain geographic regions and industries, to certain loan gsadieai®mns, to certain security interests, and to certain
interest payment terms. On October 31, 2008 the Company’s Credit Facility expiredhendermal terms. All subsequent payments secured
from the portfolio companies whose debt is included in the Credit Facility callpieol will be applied against interest and principal
outstanding under the Credit Facility until April 30, 2009, when all outstanding interestiaciggirare due and payable. During the
amortization period, the Company no longer pays a non-use fee on the Credit Fabitiiglaborrowings under the Credit Facility bear
interest at a rate per annum equal to Libor plus 6.5% during the amortization pericetefnlizr 31, 2008, the Company had $89.6 million
outstanding under the Credit Facility, and was in compliance with all covenants.

In January 2009, Roche completed its acquisition of Memory Pharmaceuticals,myd¥édcules with approximately $12.0 million of
early principal repayment. This early repayment combined with the normal prineggaled in January allowed Hercules to further reduce it
liability under the Credit Facility by approximately $18.7 million, bringing the balancéamdiisg to approximately $70.9 million as of
January 31, 2009.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company, through its special purpose entity (SPE), haddcthpstds of loans and warrants with a fair
value of approximately $263.4 million to Hercules Funding Trust | and had drawn $89.6 milliorthem@zedit Facility. Transfers of loans
have not met the requirements of SFAS No. Mgounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishmerabidfies,
for sales treatment and are, therefore, treated as secured borrowings, wihdfegred loans remaining in investments and the related liability
recorded in borrowings. The average debt outstanding under the Credit Facility for yeaDendmber 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 was
approximately $102.9 million and $52.1 million, respectively, and the average interesasapproximately 6.88% and 6.56%, respectively,
excluding facility fees.

Citigroup has an equity participation right through a warrant participatioeragre on the pool of loans and warrants collateralized
under the Credit Facility. Pursuant to the warrant participation agreement, the
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Company granted to Citigroup a 10% participation in all warrants held as cdllatenaever, no additional warrants are included in collateral
subsequent to the facility amendment on May 2, 2007. As a result, Citigroup is entitled o6 th@tealized gains on the warrants until the
realized gains paid to Citigroup pursuant to the agreement equals $3,750,000 (the “M&srtinipation Limit”). The obligations under the
warrant participation agreement continue even after the Credit Fagilgyminated until the Maximum Participation Limit has been reached.
During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company recorded a reduction of the derhititiveelizted to this obligation and decreased
its unrealized losses by approximately $143,000 for Citigroup’s participation in i@eceghins in the warrant portfolio. The value of their
participation right on unrealized gains in the related equity investmentgpwasanately $498,000 at December 31, 2008 and is included in
accrued liabilities. Based on the Company’s average borrowings for the years exdetbBr 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the amount of
expense it recorded for its realized and unrealized gains for the related piecaidditional cost of borrowings as a result of the warrant
participation agreement could increase by approximately 0.09% and 1.03%, respectivelyahhge no assurances that the unrealized
appreciation of the warrants will not be higher or lower in future periods due todticets in the value of the warrants, thereby increasing or
reducing the effect on the cost of borrowing. Since inception of the agreement, tharfydms paid Citigroup approximately $970,000 under
the warrant participation agreement thereby reducing its realized gains lyrihiint.

Long-term SBA Debentures

In January 2005, the Company formed HT Il and HTM. HT Il is licensed as a SBIC. HT Il bdunds from the SBA against eligible
investments and additional deposits to regulatory capital. Under the Small Buisimestment Act and current SBA policy applicable to
SBICs, an SBIC can have outstanding at any time SBA guaranteed debentures uptteetarmount of its regulatory capital. As of
December 31, 2008, the maximum statutory limit on the dollar amount of outstanding SBAtgedrdebentures issued by a single SBIC is
$137.1 million, subject to periodic adjustments by the SBA. With $65.3 million of regulapitgalcas of December 31, 2008, HT Il has the
current capacity to issue up to a total of $130.6 million of SBA guaranteed debentureshdd1#vic2 million was outstanding. In February
2009, the Company invested $3.25 million in regulatory capital and submitted a leverageteegilms up to $137.1 million, subject to the
payment of a 1% commitment fee to the SBA on the amount of the commitment. CuH@niiijhas paid commitment fees of approximately
$1.3 million. There is no assurance that HT Il will be able to draw up to the maximitravailable under the SBIC program.

SBICs are designed to stimulate the flow of private equity capital to elgjitddl businesses. Under present SBA regulations, eligible
small businesses include businesses that have a tangible net worth not exceediniipdldhohihave average annual fully taxed net income
not exceeding $6.0 million for the two most recent fiscal years. In addition, SBICslevase 20.0% of its investment activity to “smaller”
concerns as defined by the SBA. A smaller concern is one that has a tangible net wextieeding $6.0 million and has average annual fully
taxed net income not exceeding $2.0 million for the two most recent fiscal years. @Ba#tioms also provide alternative size standard criteria
to determine eligibility, which depend on the industry in which the business is engaged badeat on such factors as the number of
employees and gross sales. According to SBA regulations, SBICs may make tohggates to small businesses, invest in the equity securities
of such businesses and provide them with consulting and advisory services. Through itowhetysubsidiary HT II, the Company plans to
provide long-term loans to qualifying small businesses, and in connection thereviiéhequéty investments.

HT Il is periodically examined and audited by the Small Business AdministratedT to determine its compliance with small business
investment company regulations. As of December 31, 2008, HT Il could draw up to $130.6 mikivera§e from the SBA as noted above.
Borrowings under the program are charged interest based on ten year treasurysaepm@ad and the rates are generally set for a pool of
debentures issued by the SBA in six month periods. The rate for the $12 million of borrougngsed from March 13, 2007 to
September 10, 2007 was set by the SBA on September 26, 2007 at 5.528%. The rate for the $58.1 million
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borrowings made after September 10, 2007 through March 13, 2008 was set by the SBA on March 26, 2008 dthe 4&tfor the $38.8
million borrowings made after March 13, 2008 through September 10, 2008 was set by the Spfemb&e24, 2008 at 5.725% and the
additional $18.4 million of borrowings made after September 13, 2008 are based on LIBOR phaglafp.30% until the next interest rate
set by the SBA occurs in March of 2009. In addition, the SBA charges a fee that is sdiyadapending on the Federal fiscal year the
leverage commitment was delegated by the SBA, regardless of the date tnatthge was drawn by the SBIC. The 2008 and 2007 annt
has been set at 0.906%. Interest is payable semi-annually and there are no principaspaguieed on these issues prior to maturity.
Debentures under the SBA generally mature ten years after being borrowed. Baseditalttieaiv down date of April 2007, the initial
maturity of SBA debentures will occur in April 2017.

Wells Facility

On August 25, 2008, the Company, through a special purpose wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,Hedinigsl, LLC,
entered into a two-year revolving senior secured credit facility with an optioeayear extension with total commitments of $50 million, with
Wells Fargo Foothill as a lender and as an arranger and administrativéthgékitells Facility”). The Wells Facility has the capacity to
increase to $300 million if additional lenders are added to the syndicate. ThePaflity expires on August 25, 2010, unless the option to
extend the facility is exercised by the parties to the agreement.

Borrowings under the Wells Facility will generally bear interest ateapat annum equal to Libor plus 3.25% or PRIME plus 2.0%, but
not less than 5.0%. The Wells Facility requires the payment of a non-use fee afrtb8dy, which reduces to 0.3% on the one year
anniversary of the credit facility. The Wells Facility is collateradi by debt investments in our portfolio companies, and includes an advance
rate equal to 50% of eligible loans placed in the collateral pool. The Well#yFgeiterally requires payment of interest on a monthly basis.
All outstanding principal is due upon maturity, which includes the extension ifiss@r&Ve paid a one time $750,000 structuring fe
connection with the Wells Facility which is being amortized over a 2 year perioc Wasrno outstanding debt under the Wells Facility at
December 31, 2008.

The Wells Facility requires various financial and operating covenants. Toamgants require us to maintain certain financial ratios
minimum tangible net worth of $360 million. The Wells Facility provides for custpeents of default, including, but not limited to,
payment defaults, breach of representations or covenants, bankruptcy events and artga.dVe were in compliance with all covenants
at December 31, 2008.

At December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the Company had the following borrowing capacitytamndirggs

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007
Facility Amount Facility Amount
(in thousands’ Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding
Credit Facility $ 89,58. $ 89,58. $250,00( $ 79,20(
Wells Facility 50,00( — — —
SBA Debentur 130,60( 127,20( 127,20( 55,05(
Total $270,18: $ 216,78. $377,20( $ 134,25(

4. Income Taxes

The Company intends to operate so as to qualify to be taxed as a RIC under SubchapterGbdétand, as such, will not be subject to
federal income tax on the portion of taxable income and gains distributed to stimckhol
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To qualify as a RIC, the Company is required to meet certain income and asssifidation tests in addition to distributing at least 90%
of its investment company taxable income, as defined by the Code. Because federal inceméatons differ from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, distributions in accordance xvigtgtdations may differ from net investment income and realized
gains recognized for financial reporting purposes. Differences may be permatenporary in nature. Permanent differences are reclassified
among capital accounts in the financial statements to reflect their taactdra Differences in classification may also result from thentresat
of short-term gains as ordinary income for tax purposes. During the year ended December 3id 2008.che Company reclassified for
book purposes amounts arising from permanent book/tax differences primarilgl telatzelerated revenue recognition for income tax
purposes, respectively, as follows:

(in thousands’ 200¢ 2007

Distributions in excess of investment incc $ 1,25¢ $ (642)
Accumulated realized gai 444 1,46:
Additional paic-in capita (1,700 (821)

For income tax purposes, distributions paid to shareholders are reported as ordinagy iatemof capital, long term capital gains or a
combination thereof. The tax character of distributions paid for the yeard Bedember 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

(in thousands’ 200¢ 2007
Ordinary Incom& $40,78( $33,31:
Long term capital gait 2,501 —
Return of capitt — —
Total reported on tax Form 1C-DIV $43,28: $33,31:

(a) Ordinary income is reported on form 1(-DIV as nor-qualified.

The aggregate gross unrealized appreciation of our investments over costridrifedene tax purposes was $8.5 million and $16.4
million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The aggregate gross unrealesdtepof our investments under cost for federal
income tax purposes was $22.6 million and $9.0 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respentivedt unrealized depreciation over
cost for federal income tax purposes was $14.1 million as of December 31, 2008 and needrapplieciation over cost for federal income
tax purposes was $7.4 million as of December 31, 2007. The aggregate cost of secutiiesdbincome tax purposes was $595.4 million
and $522.6 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the components of distributable earnings on a tax baside&taildiffer from the amounts reflected
in the Company’s Statement of Assets and Liabilities by temporary book/taredies primarily arising from the treatment of loan related
yield enhancements.

(in thousands’ 200¢ 2007

Accumulated Capital Gains (Loss $ — $ 3,25¢
Other Temporary Differen: (4,729 (2,98¢)
Undistributed Ordinary Incon 5,72¢ 91t
Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciatic (14,329 4,851
Components of Distributable Earnii $(13,33%) $ 6,042

5. Shareholders’ Equity

The Company is authorized to issue 60,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of $hGbhr&ac common stock entitles
the holder to one vote.
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In conjunction with a June 2004 private placement, the Company issued warrants tegarghahare of common stock within five
years (the “Five Year Warrants”). The exercise price of these waiiea$10.57, and the warrants will expire in June 2009.

A summary of activity in the 5 Year Warrants for each of the three periods endedli2e&1, 2008 is as follows:

Five-Year

Warrants
Outstanding at January 1, 2( 616,67
Warrants issue —
Warrants cancelle —
Warrants exercist —
Outstanding at December 31, 2! 616,67
Warrants issue —
Warrants cancelle —
Warrants exercis¢ (244,73Y
Outstanding at December 31, 2! 371,93
Warrants issue —
Warrants cancelle —
Warrants exercis¢ (88,327)
Outstanding at December 31, 2! 283,61«

The Company received net proceeds of approximately $934,000 and $3.1 million from the efe¢hgss-Year Warrants in the period
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

On March 7, 2006, the Company issued 432,900 shares of common stock for approximately $5.0 million in glagweraent. The
shares of common stock are subject to a registration rights agreement betweemgagy and the purchasers. The shares were registered
pursuant to a registration statement that was declared effective on June 7, 2006.

On April 21, 2006, the Company raised approximately $33.8 million, net of issuance cosis rigtis offering of 3,411,992 shares of
its common stock. The shares were sold at $10.55 per share which was equivalent toH@59%lafme weighted average price of shares tr
during the ten days immediately prior to the expiration date of the offering.

On October 20, 2006, the Company raised approximately $30.0 million, net of issuance costs, inoff@ufdjof 2.5 million shares of
its common stock.

On December 12, 2006, the Company raised approximately $74.1 million, net of issuance aqsiblic offering of 5.7 million shares
of its common stock.

On January 3, 2007, in connection with the December 12, 2006 common stock issuance, the undrengised their overallotment
option and purchased an additional 840,000 shares of common stock for additional net proggedsiofately $10.9 million.

On June 4, 2007, the Company raised approximately $102.2 million, net of issuance costs, inoff@uitdjof 8.0 million shares of its
common stock. On June 19, 2007, in connection with the same common stock issuance, the undeenisexd their over-allotment option
and purchased an additional 1.2 million shares of common stock for additional net poiaggaeximately $15.4 million.
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During 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Board of Directors elected to receive approximately $70,000, $371,000 and $28&88i081yresf
their compensation in the form of common stock and the Company issued 6,668, 26,668 and 23,334 ghetige)ye® the directors based
on the closing prices of the common stock on the specified election dates.

Common stock subject to future issuance is as follows:

200¢ 2007
Stock options and warral 3,942,21! 2,911,20!
Warrants issued in June 2( 283,61« 371,93
Common stock reserv 4,225,83. 3,283,14.

6. Equity Incentive Plan

The Company and its stockholders have authorized and adopted an equity incentive plan (thet2pést Burposes of attracting and
retaining the services of its executive officers and key employees. Under the 2004e”@omipany is authorized to issue 7,000,000 shares of
common stock. Unless terminated earlier by the Company’s Board of Directors, thel20@4ll terminate on June 9, 2014, and no additional
awards may be made under the 2004 Plan after that date.

The Company and its stockholders have authorized and adopted the 2006 Non-Employee Rirefttee 2006 Plan”) for purposes of
attracting and retaining the services of its Board of Directors. Under the 2006Hd Company is authorized to issue 1,000,000 shares of
common stock. Unless terminated earlier by the ComgaBgard of Directors, the 2006 Plan will terminate on May 29, 2016 and no adt
awards may be made under the 2006 Plan after that date. The Company filed an exeimeptigguest with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) to allow options to be issued under the 2006 Plan which was approvetdlmer @0, 2007.

On June 21, 2007, the shareholders approved amendments to the 2004 Plan and the 2006 Plan allowirgfof testgcted stock.
The amended Plans limit the combined maximum amount of restricted stock that issiyeloeunder both Plans to 10% of the outstanding
shares of the Company’s stock on the effective date of the Plans plus 10% of the nuindersodfsstock issued or delivered by Hercules
during the terms of the Plans. The proposed amendments further specify that no onenpérisergsanted awards of restricted stock relating
to more than 25% of the shares available for issuance under the 2004 Plan. Further, the amtingtsefcurities that would result from the
exercise of all of the Company’s outstanding warrants, options and rights, togethanwiestricted stock issued pursuant to the Plans, at the
time of issuance shall not exceed 25% of its outstanding voting securities, excéghthamount of voting securities that would result from
such exercise of all of the Company’s outstanding warrants, options and rights éskigedules directors, officers and employees, together
with any restricted stock issued pursuant to the Plans, would exceed 15% of the Compatayidiogtvoting securities, then the total amount
of voting securities that would result from the exercise of all outstandingnigroptions and rights, together with any restricted stock issued
pursuant to the Plans, at the time of issuance shall not exceed 20% of our outstandirgguaotitigs.

In conjunction with the amendment and in accordance with the exemptive order, on June 21, 200pémy @G@de an automatic grant
of shares of restricted common stock to Messrs. Badavas, Chow and Woodwardpésdiede Board of Directors, in the amounts of 1,667,
1,667 and 3,334 shares, respectively. In May 2008, the Company issued restricted shares.tBadiesss and Chow in the amount of 5,000
shares each. The shares were issued pursuant to the 2006 Plan and vest 33% on an aifirumalthasiate of grant and deferred
compensation cost will be recognized ratably over the three year vesting period.

In 2008, the Company issued a total of 248,650 restricted shares pursuant to the 2004 Plarer&heta of 228,150 shares outstan:
as of December 31, 2008. The shares vest 25% per year on an annual basis from
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the date of grant and deferred compensation cost will be recognized ratably deer tear vesting period. No restricted stock was granted
pursuant to the 2004 Plan prior to 2008.

In conjunction with stock options issued in 2004, the Company issued warrants to purchéseenemmon stock within five years.
The warrants expire in June 2009.

A summary of common stock options and warrant activity under the Company’s 2006 and 200drRlacis 6f the three periods ended
December 31, 2008 is as follows:

Common Stock Five-Year
Options Warrants
Outstanding at January, 2( 1,337,431 56,55
Grantel 663,50( —
Exercisel — —
Canceller (119,92) —
Outstanding at December 31, 2! 1,881,01: 56,55
Grantel 1,131,001 —
Exercise! — (45,859)
Canceller (111,500 —
Outstanding at December 31, 2! 2,900,51: 10,69:
Grantel 1,319,08i —
Exercisel — —
Canceller (288,077) —
Outstanding at December 31, 2! 3,931,52 10,69:
Weightec-average exercise price at December 31, $ 12.7¢ $ 10.5%

Options generally vest 33% one year after the date of grant and ratably over tleglimgc24 months. All options may be exercised for a
period ending seven years after the date of grant. At December 31, 2008, options for atelpgi million shares were exercisable at a
weighted average exercise price of approximately $13.19 per share with an estinesitgge exercise term of 4.5 years. The outstanding five
year warrants have an expected life of five years.

The Company determined that the fair value of options and warrants granted under the 2006 Btah2@l#ing the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was approximately $1.2 million, $1.6 million, $843,000, respectively. Durang #redyeel
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, approximately $1.0 million, $1.1 million and $618,000 of share-based xpshsexs eespectively. As
of December 31, 2008, there was $1.5 million of total unrecognized compensation ctedsoedtock options. These costs are expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 2.6 years. The fair value of options grantedi ipbas Black-Scholes option pricing model
using the assumptions in the following table for each of the three periods ended De&En2068:

200¢ 2007 200¢

Expected Volatilit 23% 24% 24%

Expected Dividenc 8%-10% 8% 8%
Expected term (in yeal 4.t 4.t 4.t
Risk-free rate 2.27%- 4.29 - 4.53 -

3.18% 4.92% 5.05%
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7. Earnings per Share
Shares used in the computation of the Company’s basic and diluted earnings peesimfelmws:

Year ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2008 2007 2006

Net increase in net assets resulting from opere $20,99¢ $42,40¢ $11,38¢
Weighted average common shares outstal 32,61¢ 28,29¢ 13,35:
Change in net assets per common s—basic $ 064 $ 15 $ 0.8t
Net increase in net assets resulting from opere $20,99¢ $42,40¢ $11,38¢
Weighted average common shares outstal 32,61¢ 28,29¢ 13,35:
Dilutive effect of warrants, stock options and restricted s — 92 17t
Weighted average common shares outstanding, assuming ¢ 32,61¢ 28,387 13,527
Change in net assets per common s—assuming dilutio $ 064 $ 14¢ $ 084

The calculation of change in net assets per common share—assuming dilution, exthrtediltive shares. For the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the number of anti-dilutive shares, as calculated based ghtéteawerage closing price of the
Company’s common stock for the periods, was approximately 3,844,000; 2,217,000; and 2,142,000 shateglyespe

8. Related-Party Transactions
In conjunction with the Company’s rights offering completed on April 21, 2006, the Company agregdldm Securities LLC a fee of
approximately $700,000 as co-manager of the offering.

In conjunction with the Company’s public offering completed on December 7, 2006, the Company agrgeidvte Sacurities LLC a
fee of approximately $1.2 million as co-manager of the offering.

During February 2007, Farallon Capital Management, L.L.C and its relatedtesfiiad Manuel Henriquez, the Company’s CEO,
exercised warrants to purchase 132,480 and 75,075 shares of the Company’s commonpstotikelgsThe exercise price of the warrants
was $10.57 per share resulting in net proceeds to the company of approximately $2.2 million

In conjunction with the Company’s public offering completed on June 4, 2007 and the relatedotvemnélexercise, the Company
agreed to pay JMP Securities LLC a fee of approximately $1.6 million as co-mand#ge offering.

In connection with the sale of public equity investments, the Company paid IMP Setl@iapproximately $80,000, $22,000 and
$12,000, respectively, in brokerage commissions during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and @d@8yrespe

9. Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company is party to financial instrumentsf+oi#iflaoce sheet risk. These instruments consist
primarily of unused commitments to extend credit, in the form of loans, to the Cormpamifblio companies. The balance of unused
commitments to extend credit at December 31, 2008 totaled approximately $82.0 milliorthBigoenmitment may expire without being
drawn upon, the total commitment amount does not necessarily represent futusgjoasiments.

Certain premises are leased under agreements which expire at varisubmaigh December 2013. Total rent expense amounted to
approximately $957,000; 749,000; and $380,000 during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Future commitments under the credit facility and operating leases wereoassfatl December 31, 2008:

Payments due by perio
(in thousands)

Contractual Obligations®®) Total 200¢ 201C 2011 201z 201t  Thereafter
Borrowing$® $216,78. $89,58. $— $— $— $— $127,20(
Operating Lease Obligatiofis 4,702 99€ 991 967 95z _79c —
Total $221,480 $90,58( $991 $967 $95. $79t $127,20(

(1) Excludes commitments to extend credit to our ptitfoompanies

(2) The Company also has a warrant participation ageeemith Citigroup. See Note

(3) Includes borrowings under the Credit Facility anel 8BA debentures. There were no outstanding bargsaunder the Wells Facility at December 31, 2(
(4) Long-term facility leases

10. Indemnification

The Company and its executives are covered by Directors and Officers Insurdhdbkewlirectors and officers being indemnified by the
Company to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law subject to the restriotibies1940 Act.

11. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company’s customers are primarily small and medium sized companies in tieriiapeutical, communications and networking,
consumer and business products, electronics and computers, energy, information geraricesconsumer and business services, medical
devices, semiconductor and software industry sectors. These sectors areGhadaby high margins, high growth rates, consolidation and
product and market extension opportunities. Value is often vested in intangible adsatsliectual property.

The largest portfolio companies vary from year to year as new loans are recordegnanuhly off. Loan revenue, consisting of interest,
fees, and recognition of gains on equity interests, can fluctuate dramatically Va@enigpaid off or a related equity interest is sold. Revenue
recognition in any given year can be highly concentrated among several portfolio compariies.y€ars ended December 31, 2008 and :
the Company’s ten largest portfolio companies represented approximately 33.6% andvegiphpd3.7%, respectively, of the total fair value
of its investments. At December 31, 2008, we had six equity investments which megtet8% of the total fair value of its equity
investments and each represents 5% or more of the total fair value of such int@stthBecember 31, 2007, we had five equity investments
representing approximately 50.0% of the total fair value of our equity investnmehésah represents 5% or more of the total fair value of
investments.
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12. Financial Highlights

Following is a schedule of financial highlights for four years ended December 31, 200 gediod from February 2, 2004 to
December 31, 2004

Period from
February 2, 2004
(commencement
of operations) to
For the Years Ended December 3 December 31,
(in thousands, except per share dat 200¢ 2007 200¢ 200¢ 200¢
Per share dai
Net asset value at beginning of period ¢ 12.37 $ 11.6F $ 11.67 $ 12.1¢ $ 13.1¢@
Net investment income (los 1.2¢ 1.1t 0.7¢ 0.1¢ (0.99
Net realized gain (loss) on
investment 0.07 0.0¢ (0.12) 0.07 —
Net unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) on investme! (0.6€) 0.2¢ 0.1¢ 0.0t —
Total income (loss) from investment
operation 0.64 1.5C 0.8t 0.3C (0.99
Net increase (decrease) in net assets
from capital share transactic (0.12 0.32 0.2¢ (0.82) (0.35)@
Distributions (1.39 (1.20) (2.20 (0.03) —
Stock-based compensation expense
included in investment incorie 0.0t 0.04 0.0t 0.04 0.3
Net asset value at end of petl $ 11.5¢ $ 12.31 $ 11.6F $ 11.67 $ 12.1¢
Ratios and supplemental d:
Per share market value at end of pefiod $ 7.9 $ 12.42 $ 14.2¢ 11.9¢ $ —
Total returrf)® (25.60% (4.42)% 28.8t% (7.58)% N/A
Shares outstanding at end of pe 33,09¢ 32,54 21,927 9,80: 2,05¢
Weighted average number of common
shares outstandi 32,61¢ 28,29¢ 13,35: 6,93¢ 1,187
Net assets at end of per $382,45¢ $400,73 $255,41: $114,35: $ 25,07¢
Ratio of operating expense to average net
asset 8.85% 6.4€% 13.11% 11.5% 8.81%™
Ratio of net investment income before
provision for income tax expense and
investment gains and losses to average
net asse 9.8€% 9.81% 7.9%% 1.92% 7.95%™
Average debt outstandi $196,92¢ $ 66,33« $ 77,79¢ $ 20,28¢ $ —
Weighted average debt per common s $ 6.0C $ 2.3 $ 588 $ 2.9z $ —
Portfolio turnove 3.3% 0.42% 1.5(% 0.6(% 0.0(%

(1) On June 29, 2004, the Company completed its saterafmon stock in a private placement at $15.06pare ($13.19 per share net of offering co

(2) Immediately after the sale of common stock in J2@@4, 600 convertible preferred shares were coedénto 125,000 unit:

(3) Stock option expense is a non-cash expenséésato effect on net asset value. Pursuant to Eimlafccounting Standards No. 123R, net investnhest includes the expense
associated with the granting of stock options wligcbffset by a corresponding increase in -in capital.

(4) The Company completed the initial public offerirfgte common stock in June 2005, therefore, no mvklue data is presented as of December 31, !

(5) The total return for the period ended Decemter2B08, 2007 and 2006 equals the change in thegntarket value over the beginning of period ppee share plus dividends paid
per share during the period, divided by the begigrgrice.

(6) The total return for the period ended Decembe2805 is for a shareholder who owned common sharesighout the period, and received one additiooairaon share for every tw
5 Year Warrants cancelled. Shareholders who puechesmmon shares on January 26, 2005, exerciseghlWarrants, or purchased common shares in ttial ipitblic offering will
have a different total return. The Company compléinitial public offering on June 11, 2005;qrio that date shares were issued in private places.

(7) Notannualized
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13. Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

The following tables set forth certain quarterly financial information for eatfeofight quarters ended December 31, 2008. This
information was derived from our unaudited consolidated financial statementssResahy quarter are not necessarily indicative of results
for the full year or for any further quarter.

Quarter Ended

(in thousands, except per share data) 3/31/08 6/30/08 9/30/08 12/31/08
Total investment incon $15,60( $19,02: $19,24¢ $21,96:
Net investment income before provision for income taxes and investment gainssa: 9,00( 9,97: 9,99: 11,01¢
Net income (los: 11,037 8,35¢ 12,53¢ (10,939
Net income (loss) per common share (b: $ 032 $ 028 $ 03¢ $ (0.39
Quarter Ended

3/31/07 6/30/07 9/30/07 12/31/0"
Total investment incon $ 9,67¢ $13,27¢ $15,14: $15,79(
Net investment income before provision for income taxes and investment gainssa: 5,22¢ 7,24( 10,04+ 9,981
Net incomq 6,331 8,27( 7,17¢ 20,63:
Net income per common share (ba $ 026 $ 03: $ 022 $ o0.6:

14. Subsequent Events
Dividend Declaration

On February 12, 2009, the Board of Directors announced a dividend of $0.32 per share to sharehettedsasf of February 23, 2008
and payable on March 30, 2009. In accordance with the Internal Revenue Procedure relensadyi@Q@9, our Board of Directors
determined that 90% of the dividend will be paid in newly issued shares of common stock and tham086 of the dividend will be paid in
cash. The total dividend distribution is expected to be approximately $10.6 million.

The market value per share of common stock used to compute the stock dividend (the” Dividentaiied) will be the volume
weighted average price per share of HTGC’s common stock for the three businessadbgfpédarch 23, March 24 and March 25, 2009.
Because the Dividend Share Value of shares to be distributed will be dettsubsequent to the filing of our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
we do not know the actual number of shares we will issue to satisfy the dividend. Agbgrdie have not reflected these changes in our
capital structure retroactively in these financial statements.

Impact of Enacted American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

The recently enacted American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Stimulu®ii#ins provisions to increase the borrowing
capacity of participants in the Small Business Investment Company (SBIC)mprora Stimulus Bill will benefit our SBIC subsidiary, HT
by providing an estimated additional $13.0 million of leverage for future investmentiastiVi'e estimate that these provisions will increase
HT II's maximum amount of SBIC leverage capacity to $150.0 million from the priommamiamount of approximately $137.1 million (as
adjusted annually based upon changes in the Consumer Price Index). Also included in theolew Biil is another key provision, which
allows for existing SBIC entities to obtain a second license and gain accesgitmadéverage of $75.0 million, for a maximum of $225.0
million combined SBIC leverage (subject to additional required capitalizatiit® $écond wholly owned SBIC subsidiary). Hercules
anticipates filing for its potential second SBIC license upon final clatitin from the SBA on the application process.
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Portfolio Company Events

In January 2009, Roche completed its acquisition of Memory Pharmaceuticals,myd¥édcules with approximately $12.0 million of
early principal repayment. This early repayment combined with the normal prinegealed in January allowed Hercules to further reduce it
liability under the Credit Facility by approximately $18.7 million, bringing the balancéamdiisg to approximately $70.9 million as of
January 31, 2009.

Hercules’ portfolio company, Transcept Pharmaceuticals (NASDAQ: TSPTQuaoaed completion of its merger with Novacea, Inc. on
February 2, 2009. Hercules received full principal repayment of approximately $2chnillistanding to this specialty pharmaceutical
company.

Guava Technologies announced on February 2, 2009, that it has entered into an agreemequite thdya Millipore Corp., a San
Francisco Bay Area biotechnology company, for approximately $22.6 million. Herculesedeidl principal repayment of the loan made to
Guava Technologies.

Reduction in Workforce

During the first quarter of 2009, we completed a reduction in force of five individredpproximately 11.0% of our work force. This
reduction is expected to represent an annual cost savings of approximately $800,000 to tlmy Compa

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Finariisclosure
Not applicable.

Item 9a. Controls and Procedures
1. Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under tvisisand with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial and Accgu@fiicer, of the effectiveness of the design and operati
our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Seexcdiiange Act of 1934). Based on that evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial and Accounting Officer have conclud®dur disclosure controls and procedures are effective in
timely alerting them of material information relating to us that is requée disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

2. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
a. Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate odatr@lover financial reporting, as such term is defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and for sisenass®f the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting.

Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting is seufatér the heading “Management’s Annual Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting” in this Annual Report which is indwugtepage 74.

b. Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP has issuedstatiatieeport on our internal control over
financial reporting, which is included at the beginning of Part Il, Iltem 8 of this AnrediRon Form 10-K.
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c. Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occungdhguguarter ended December 31, 2008
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affectntemnal control over financial reporting.

Item 9b. Other Information
None.

PART 1l

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference tddtraation provided in our definitive Proxy Statement for
our 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “2009 Proxy Statement”) to be filed with th#i€eand Exchange Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 under the headings “PROPEGSBCTION OF DIRECTORS,”
“INFORMATION ABOUT EXECUTIVE OFFICERS WHO ARE NOT DIRECTOR and “CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS.”

We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that applies to directars aoffieenployees. The code of business conduct
and ethics is available on our website at http//www.herculestech.com. Wepwilt any amendments to or waivers of a required provision of
the code of business conduct and ethics on our website or in a Form 8-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information with respect to compensation of executives and directors isiedniader the caption “Compensation of Executive
Officers and Directors” in our 2009 Proxy Statement and is incorporated in thislARepart by reference in response to this item.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management andaRel Stockholder Matters

The information with respect to security ownership of certain benefigiaés and management is contained under the captions
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Cmapen of Executive Officers and Directors” in our 2009
Proxy Statement and is incorporated in this Annual Report by reference in resptinisétem.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information with respect to certain relationships and related trasrsadicontained under the caption “Certain Relationships and
Transactions” and the caption “Proposal I: Election of Directors” in our 2009 Ptaten®nt and is incorporated in this Annual Report by
reference in response to this item.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information with respect to principal accountant fees and services &neshtinder the captions “Principal Accountant Fees and
Services” and “Proposal |l: Ratification of Selection of Independent Auditors” iB@2® Proxy Statement and is incorporated in this Annual
Report by reference to this item.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
1. Financial Statements

The following financial statements of Hercules Technology Growth Capital, hec*Q@ompany” or the “Registrant”) are filed herewith:

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities as of December 31, 2008 and

December 31, 200 77
Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31. 78
Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31 92
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three years ended December 10¢
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the three years endelddd&de 200 107
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years ended December 10¢
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 10¢

2. The following financial statement schedule is filed herewith:
Schedule 12-14 Investments In and Advances to Affiliates

3. Exhibits required to be filed by Item 601 of Regulation S-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hercules Technolegi Gepital, Inc., including the consolidated schedule
of investments, as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and for each of the three years in the period emted 82008, and have issued our
report thereon dated March 9, 2009 (included elsewhere in the Form 10-K). Our auditslatiedi the financial statement schedule listed in
Item 15 of this Form 10-K. This schedule is the responsibility of the Company’s mamdg@ueresponsibility is to express an opinion based
on our audits.

In our opinion, the financial statement schedule referred to above, when considelatibm t@ the basic financial statements taken as a
whole, present fairly in all material respects the information set fortkither

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

San Francisco, California
March 9, 2009
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Schedule 1214

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO AFFILIATES

Year Endec
December 31,
2008
Amount of
In.teArest or As of As of
(:Drgltlit?géd; Dec;rgg;er 31, Gross Gross Decezrgggr 31,
Portfolio Company (in thousands Investment®) Income® Fair Value Additions®) Reductiond®) Fair Value
Affiliate Investments
E-band Communications, Ir Preferred Stoc $ — $ 2,00C $ — $ (1,096 $ 904
Proficiency, Inc Senior Dek 13¢€ 1,497 — (1,497) —
Preferred Stock
Warrant: — — — — —
Preferred Stoc — 75C — (750) —
Peerless Network LL Senior Dek 127 — 1,31¢ — 1,31¢
Preferred Stock
Warrant: — — 95 (95 —
Preferred Stoc — — 1,00( (1,000) —
Total Affiliate Investment $ 26E $ 4,247 2,41 $ (4,439 $ 2,22

(1) Preferred stock and warrants are generally non-income producing andeestrigt principal amount for debt is shown in the
Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of December 31,

(2) Represents the total amount of interest or dividends credited to income for ibe pbtthe year an investment was an affiliate
investment (5% to 25% ownec

(3) Gross additions include increases in investments resulting from new poctolipany investments, the amortization of discounts and
fees, and the exchange of one or more existing securities for one or more nevese¢

(4) Gross reductions include decreases in investments resulting from the exashang®r more existing securities for one or more new
securities and net increases in unrealized depreciation or net decneaseslized appreciatio
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3. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number
3(a)
3(b)
3(c)
4(a;
4(b)
4(c)

4(d)
4(e)

10(a)
10(b)
10(c)
10(d)
10(e)
10(f)

10(g;
10(h)

10(i)

10()

10(k)
10(l)*
10(m;
10(n;
10(o;

Description
Articles of Amendment and Restatemeni

Amended and Restated Bylaws

Articles of Amendment.(’

Specimen certificate of the Compis common stock, par value $.001 per shar
Form of Dividend Reinvestment Plan.

Indenture between Hercules Funding Trust | and U.S. Bank National Associationslafed a
August 1, 2005.(

Registration Rights Agreement dated June 22, 2004 between the Company and JMiesSelcGri(1,

Registration Rights Agreement dated March 2, 2006 between the Company andsfffliaarallon Management, L.L.C.
©)

Credit Agreement dated as of April 12, 2005 between Hercules Technology Growth Qapitahd Alcmene Funding,
L.L.C.(8)

Pledge and Security Agreement dated as of April 12, 2005 between Hercules Techmoletly@pital, Inc. and
Alcmene Funding, L.L.C.(¢

First Amendment to Credit and Pledge Security Agreement dated August 1, 200&rbieveules Technology Growth
Capital, Inc. and Alcmene Funding L.L.C.

Second Amendment to Credit and Pledge and Security Agreement by and among Heotule®@ye Growth Capital,
Inc. and Alcmene Funding, L.L.C., as lender and administrative agent for the lendet$/detk 6, 2006.(1:

Loan Sale Agreement between Hercules Funding LLC and Hercules Technology Growdih Cepidated as of August
1, 2005.(2

Sale and Servicing Agreement among Hercules Funding Trust I, Hercules Funding lrt@ebi&@echnology Growth
Capital, Inc., U.S. Bank National Association and Lyon Financial Services, lec @abf August 1, 2005.

Indenture between Hercules Funding Trust | & U.S. Bank National Association dadédagust 1, 2005.(

Note Purchase Agreement among Hercules Funding Trust |, Hercules Funding | LLdesl@&echnology Growt
Capital, Inc. and Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp. dated as of August 1, 2

Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. 2004 Equity Incentive Plan (2007 Amendment sate fRest).(1(
Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. 2006 -Employee Director Plan (2007 amendment and Restatemer
Form of Custody Agreement between the Company and Union Bank of Califor

Form of Restricted Stock Award under the 2004 Equity Incentive

Subscription Agreement by and among the Company and the subscribers named therein dated Marctir)
Form of Incentive Stock Option Award under the 2004 Equity Incentive Pl

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Award under the 2004 Equity Incentive P
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Number

10(p)
10(a)
10(r)
10(s;
10(t)

10(u;

10(v)
10(w)

10(x)

10(y)

10(2)

10(aa
10(bb)
10(cc)

10(dd)

10(ee)
10(ff)

10(gg)*

Description
Form of Registrar Transfer Agency and Service Agreement between the Compahyerican Stock Transfer & Trt

Company. (€
Warrant Agreement dated June 22, 2004 between the Company and American Stock &ransfeCompany, as
warrant agent.(!

Side Letter dated February 2, 2004 between the Company and Jolson Merchant Partnerc Gfaoprlknown as
JMP Group LLC).(9

Letter Agreement dated February 22, 2005 between the Company and JMP Asset Managern(#)

Letter Agreement dated February 22, 2005 between the Company and Farallon Capigeinvamal .L.C.(€
Subscription Agreement dated February 2, 2004 between the Company and the subscrézetisarem. (¢
Lease Agreement dated June 13, 2006 between the Company and 400 Hamilton Assc

Third Amendment to Sale and Servicing Agreement among Hercules Funding Trestuldd Funding LLC, Hercules
Technology Growth Capital, Inc., U.S. Bank National Association and Lyon Financié& Inc. dated as of July 28,
2006.(5

Second Omnibus Agreement by and among Hercules Funding Trust I, Hercules Funding | tdu@zdHEechnology
Growth Capital, Inc., U.S. Bank National Association, Lyon Financial Servicesanhd Citigroup Global Markets
Realty Corp. dated December 6, 200¢

Fifth Amendment to Sale and Servicing Agreement by and among Hercules Funding Marsules Funding I, LLC,
Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc., U.S. Bank National Association, Lyon Fah&eeiices, Inc. and Citigrol
Global Markets Realty Corp. dated March 30, 2007

Amended and Restated Sale and Servicing Agreement by and among Hercules Fundingl@rasies Funding
LLC, the Company, U.S. Bank National Association, Lyon Financial Services, Inc.oQjiiglobal Markets Inc., and
Deutsche Bank AG dated as of May 2, 2007

Fourth Amendment to the Warrant Participation Agreement dated as of May 2, 2(

Amended and Restated Note Purchase Agreement by and among the Company, Herculgs Fustdj Hercule
Funding | LLC, and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. dated as of May 2, 200

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Note Purchase Agreement by and among timy,Gtenpales Funding
Trust I, Hercules Funding | LLC, and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. dated as of May 7, 20

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Sale and Servicing Agreement by and amoss) Flerdinlg Trust |,
Hercules Funding | LLC, the Company, U.S. Bank National Association, Lyon Financiale3eivic., Citigroup
Global Markets Inc., and Deutsche Bank AG dated as of May 7, 20C

Loan and Security Agreement by and among Hercules Funding Il LLC and Wells Farpil,HddT dated August 25,
2008.(18

Sale and Servicing Agreement among Hercules Funding Il LLC, the Company, Lyon Filssrciees, Inc., and Wells
Fargo Foothill, LLC, dated August 25, 2008.(

Form of SBA Debentur
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Number Description

14 Code of Ethics.(¢

21* List of Subsidiarie:

23.1* Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accountin

31(a)* Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Sesufikehange Act of 1934, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z

31(b)* Principal Financial and Accounting Officer Certification Pursuant to Rulel23zf the Securities Act of 1934, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 200z

32(a)* Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant to Section 1350, Chapter 63 oflBitlénited States Code, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z

32(b)* Principal Financial and Accounting Officer Certification pursuant to 8edB50, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States
Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sa-Oxley Act of 200z

(1) Previously filed as part of Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2, as filed June 8, 28g5tRtion No. 333-122950) to the Registration

Statement on Form-2 of the Company

Previously filed as part of a Forn-K filed with the Commission on August 5, 20(

Previously filed as part of a Forr-K filed with the Commission on March 2, 20(

Previously filed as part of a Forn-K filed with the Commission on June 13, 20

Previously filed as part of a Forn-K filed with the Commission on July 28, 20(

Previously filed as part of a Forn-K filed with the Commission on December 6, 20

Previously filed as part of the Current Report on Fo-K of the Company, as filed March 9, 20(

Previously filed as part of a Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1, as filed on May 17,AG0N¢. 333-122950) to the Registration
Statement on Form-2 of the Company

Previously filed as part of the Registration Statement on F¢-2 of the Company, as filed on February 22, 2(

Previously filed as part of the Securities to be Offered to Employees in Emlepeéit Plans on Form-8, as filed June 22, 200
Previously filed as part of the Securities to be Offered to Employees in Emlepeéit Plans on Form-8, as filed October 10, 200
Previously filed as part of the Post-Effective Amendment No. 3, as filed ahMa2006 (File No. 333-126604) to the Registration
Statement on Form-2 of the Company

Previously filed as part of the Current Report on Fo-K of the Company, as filed April 3, 200

Previously filed as part of the Current Report on Fo-K of the Company, as filed May 5, 20(

Previously filed as part of the Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1, as filedlBla3007 (File No. 333-141828), to the Registration
Statement on Form-2 of the Company

Previously filed as part of Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2, as filed on June 5, 2608qF333-150408to the Registration Statement
on Form M2 of the Company

Previously filed as part of the Post-Effective Amendment No. 3, as filed ahMa2006 (File No. 333-126604) to the Registration
Statement on Form-2 of the Company

Previously filed as part of the Current Report on Fo-K of the Company, as filed on August 27, 20

Filed herewitt
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act dfid @8distrant has duly caused this report t
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.

Date: March 16, 2009 By: /sl MANUEL A. HENRIQUEZ

Manuel A. Henriquez
Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signeblybttle following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the following capacities on March 16, 2009.

Signature Title Date
/s/ MaNUEL A. HENRIQUEZ Chairman of the Board, President and Chief March 16, 2009
Manuel A. Henriquez Executive Officer (principal executive offic
/s/ _Davib M. LunD Chief Financial Officer (principal financial ai March 16, 2009
David M. Lund accounting officel
/sl  ALYN C. WOODWARD, R. Director March 16, 2009

Allyn C. Woodward, Jr.

/sl  DbsepHW. CHow Director March 16, 2009
Joseph W. Chov

/s/ FoBERT P. BADAVAS Director March 16, 2009
Robert P. Badava:
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Number

10(l)

10(gg.
21

23.1
31(a)

31(b)
32(a)

32(b)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Descriptionss

Form of Restricted Stock Award under the 2004 Equity Incentive

Form of SBA Debentur

List of Subsidiarie:

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accountin

Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Sesufikehange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 200z

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer Certification Pursuant to Rulel23zf the Securities Act of 1934, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z

Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant to Section 1350, Chapter 63 ofL8itlgnited States Code, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer Certification pursuant to 8edtB50, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 200z
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